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IntroductIon

About GOTAFE

goulburn ovens Institute 
of taFE (gotaFE) is 
the largest tertiary 
educational provider in 
northern Victoria (Hume 
region). 

In 2013 gotaFE delivered 
in excess of 12.2 million 
student contact Hours 
(scHs) across 38 industry 
sub-sectors for more 
than 25,000 student 
enrolments. 

gotaFE employs more 
than 500 staff located 
in 13 locations, and 
achieved an annual 
turnover in excess of $110 
million in 2013.

The region covered by GOTAFE includes 11 
local	government	authorities	and	services	the	
vocational	education	and	training	needs	of	
more than 220,000 Victorians. Students live 
in	locations	ranging	from	Wallan	in	the	south	
to	Kyabram	in	the	west,	Mansfield	in	the	east,	
and Cobram to Rutherglen in the north. 

GOTAFE has a rich history of providing 
technical,	vocational	and	further	education	
to the region. The establishment of GOTAFE 
took	effect	upon	the	amalgamation	of	
Wangaratta	Institute	of	TAFE	and	Goulburn	
Valley	Institute	of	TAFE	on	October	1,	1996.	
This	followed	a	Committee	of	Review	of	TAFE	
services in North East Victoria, headed by Dr 
Tom Kennedy. 

Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	TAFE	is	
established under the Education and Training 
Reform Act 2006.	Its	powers	and	duties	are	
primarily	established	in	its	Constitution,	the	
Education and Training Reform Act 2006, 
Tertiary Education Act 2003 and Financial 
Management Act 1994. The responsible 
Minister during 2013 was the Hon. Peter Hall, 
MLC,	Minister	for	Higher	Education	and	Skills.

The	principal	objective	of	GOTAFE,	within	
the	context	of	National	and	Victorian	State	
Government policies and management 
frameworks,	is	articulated	in	its	strategic	
purpose:

To deliver quality vocational training and 
tertiary education that responds to the 
needs of industry, enterprises, communities 
and individuals in the regions GOTAFE 
serves.

The strength of GOTAFE lies with its 
experienced,	skilled	and	innovative	staff	
who provide training, skills development 
and other services to students, industry 
clients and the wider community through:

 Ì Innovative,	customised	and	quality	
assured	training	programs	and	products

 Ì Flexible	education	and	training	delivery	
methodologies; and

 Ì A	commitment	to	consultation,	
partnerships	and	customer	satisfaction.
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Chairman’s Welcome

on behalf of gotaFE, I 
am proud to present the 
Institute’s 2013 annual 
report.

In 2013 the challenges and demands faced 
by	the	TAFE	Sector	and	GOTAFE	particularly	
included	a	better	understanding	of	the	impact	
and drivers of demand driven funding and the 
need	to	foster	innovation	and	new	business	
models for TAFE provision and delivery.

Changes	in	Government	policy	settings,	
funding cuts and TAFE sector reform required 
GOTAFE to become more commercially 
flexible	and	innovative	and	courageously	
pursue new business models working closely 
in partnership with private enterprise.

GOTAFE	recognises	that	educational	training	
and employment is a key component of 
the economic and social sustainability of 
the	region	and	is	strongly	committed	to	the	
direct link between skills and knowledge of 
individuals	within	its	footprint	and	its	ultimate	
economic and social sustainability.  

The	operating	practices	and	rules	of	the	
Institute	are	being	geared	towards	qualified	
risk	taking	as	opposed	to	conservatism	or	
“don’t	change	attitude”	and	innovation	is	
seen as a measure of performance.

This	process	is	instilling	within	the	Institute	
cultures	and	behaviours	towards	innovation	
and being embedded as part of daily work.

Over many years GOTAFE has developed 
partnerships with local secondary schools and 
a	range	of	universities	based	on	location	and	
capacity to provide greater and more relevant 
course	options	for	regional	students	and	to	
provide	education	pathways	from	school	to	
TAFE to University.

The great challenge facing the TAFE Sector 
and	in	particular	GOTAFE	is	its	ability	through	
strong	leadership	and	a	collaborative	
approach to get key people, industries, 
organisations	and	communities	at	all	levels	
to strategically align and engage, to achieve 
an agreed regional vision with the outcome 
being	the	development	of	truly	competitive	
and sustainable businesses and industries. 

In	2013	GOTAFE	strengthened	its	financial	
position	and	outlook	in	achieving	a	strong	
financial	result	and	improving	cash	reserves	
to ensure it can prudently meet the demands 
of	a	rapidly	growing	organisation	and	which	
will	serve	the	organisation	well	into	the	
future.

On behalf of the Board I acknowledge the 
extraordinary leadership oversight and 
contribution	made	by	the	GOTAFE	Board,	
Chief	Executive	Officer	Paul	Culpan	and	the	
Executive	Management	Team	and	staff	to	
ensure	that	GOTAFE	continues	to	be	a	leading	
regional TAFE provider.

I also acknowledge and thank my fellow 
Board Members for their diligent business 
insight and robust governance of the 
Institute.		I	record	the	Board’s	appreciation	
for the hard work and leadership of 
Management	and	Staff	in	meeting	the	ever	
increasing and varied changes in funding and 
TAFE provision and delivery challenges.

The	Institute	has	received	and	is	very	grateful	
for the advice support and input received 
from	its	higher	education	providers	and	
business and industry partners in our local 
and	regional	communities.

The	GOTAFE	Board	extends	its	appreciation	to	
the Honourable Peter Hall Minister for Higher 
Education	and	Skills	and	the	staff	of	the	
Department	of	Education	and	Early	Childhood	
Development	and	the	Higher	Education	and	
Skills Group for their advice, guidance and 
co-operation	throughout	2013.

Michael	H.	Tehan
Chair of the Board 
January 2014
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Chief Executive Officer Report

In a year of significant 
change for the taFE 
sector in Victoria, gotaFE 
was very successful in 
achieving significant 
growth in enrolments, 
excellent financial results 
and high employer and 
student satisfaction. 

This overall excellent performance was 
driven	by	the	extraordinary	efforts	and	
commitment	of	GOTAFE’s	Board	and	staff	
challenged	with	continuing	uncertainty	of	
funding	changes	and	reductions.	As	well	
as	the	success	of	the	Institute’s	strategic	
plan	with	the	positioning	of	the	student	at	
the	centre	of	all	strategic	and	operational	
thinking, the development of commercial 
teaching centres focussed on industry 
sectors,	strengthening	of	education	
quality, the development of strategic 
partnerships	with	Universities	and	Schools	
and	an	underpinning	staff	culture	based	on	
responsiveness,	creativity,	collaboration,	
excellence, accountability, integrity and 
respect.

In	2014	the	Institute	will	continue	to	
go from strength to strength with the 
implementation	of	a	new	Student	
Management	Solution	(SMS)	designed	to	
enhance the student customer service 
experience, strengthening of our e-learning 
education	models	with	more	courses	
available online and an increased focus and 
development	of	interstate	and	international	
programs.

I would like to acknowledge the 
contribution	made	by	our	executive,	
management	and	staff	in	2013	who	have	
worked	above	and	beyond	expectations	to	
achieve the 2013 results in an environment 
of	significant	uncertainty.	

I	would	also	like	to	express	my	appreciation	
for the support and guidance provided by 
Mr Michael Tehan, Chair of the GOTAFE 
Board and all Board Directors over the past 
year with regards to excellent governance 
of	the	Institute	ensuring	the	success	that	
has been achieved in 2013.  

In closing, GOTAFE has demonstrated in the 
past year that it can be successful under 
the new policy environment and is very 
well	positioned	to	continue	its	success	into	
future years.

Paul	Culpan
CEO

January 2014
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HIgHLIgHts

2013 Highlights

the highlights section of 
gotaFE’s annual report 
provides a snapshot 
of the Institute’s 2013 
activities relating to it’s 
students and customers 
and corporate functions 
and services. the 
Highlights section is  
summarised under the 
following headings: 

 › student and 
customer

 ›  Partnerships

 ›  community

 ›  awards

 › staff

 › Environmental 
Performance

 › Infrastructure 

 › Financial 
Performance

student and customer

student outcomes survey
A total of 505 graduates responded to the 2013 Student Outcomes Survey conducted 
by	the	National	Centre	for	Vocational	Education	Research	(NCVER).	In	all	key	measures,	
the	outcomes	for	GOTAFE	are	better	than	the	average	for	TAFE	institutes	in	Victoria	and	
Australia	and	VET	providers	nationally.	Key	indicators	are	shown	in	the	table	below.

2013 Student Outcomes Survey (of 2012 graduates)

Key Indicators
2013

GOTAFE
2013 

TAFE VIC
2013 

TAFE AUS
2013 

All	RTOs

Graduates would recommend 
the training they undertook to 
others

95.4% 91.6% 92.5% 92.2%

Graduates would recommend 
RTO to others

92.0% 89.8% 91.7% 90.4%

Graduates	were	satisfied	with	the	
overall quality of training

89.4% 86.5% 88.0% 87.3%

Graduates	satisfied	with	teaching 92.0% 89.3% 90.2% 90.1%

Graduates employed or in further 
study	after	their	training

90.5% 90.1% 88.5% 88.1%

Table:	Key	Indicators	for	GOTAFE,	Victorian	TAFE	institutes	and	All	Australian	VET	Providers	2013.	 
 
In	2013	GOTAFE	conducted	the	Employer	Satisfaction	Survey	of	employers	of	apprentices	
and trainees and Learner Engagement Survey of selected student groups to obtain valuable 
client feedback and meet ASQA Quality Indicator requirements. 

2013 Employer Satisfaction Survey & Learner Engagement Survey

Employers

Questions
2012   
Survey

2013   
Survey

Overall,	we	are	satisfied	with	the	training 94.7% 91.6%

We	would	recommend	the	training	organisation	to	others 93.5% 91.5%

We	would	recommend	the	training	to	others 93.8% 92.2%

Learners

Questions
2012   
Survey

2013
	Survey

Overall,	I	am	satisfied	with	the	training 89.5% 90.2%

I would recommend the training to others 90.3% 92.5%

I	would	recommend	the	training	organisation	to	others 89.7% 91.9%
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studEnt and 
custoMEr  

Fit2Drive and Looking 
After Our Mates Program 
During August, more than 70 students from 
the	Shepparton,	Seymour,	Wangaratta	and	
ASHE Campuses travelled to Benalla to 
participate	in	workshops	presented	by	the	
Fit2Drive	Foundation.	

The	Road	Safety	Workshops	presented	
by	the	Fit2Drive	Foundation	provided	
participants	with	the	skills	and	strategies	
to	assist	them	in	making	positive	and	safe	
decisions	on	and	off	the	road.	The	program	
aims to make young drivers safer on the 
road, and reduce the total number of young 
people directly involved in road trauma. 

GOTAFE students mentors 
for design program

Two past 
GOTAFE 
students, 
Shannon Jukes 
and Alvin 
Briggs, were 
employed by 
the Koorie 

Heritage	Trust	to	mentor	participants	in	the	
Kooriez in da Hood program that 
commenced at GOTAFE in April. 

The Kooriez in da Hood program is designed 
to promote Koorie pride and provides 
participants	with	studio	training	in	graphic	
design, concept development and screen 
printing	to	create	their	own	individualised	
hoodie. 

Hospitality students 
highly sought after
Tourism, hospitality and events students 
are	highly	employable	after	a	survey	
revealed 90% of students who successfully 
completed their training have gained 
employment. 

The quality, relevancy and hands-on delivery 
of training provided students with greater 
employment	opportunities	and	skills	for	
success	in	their	chosen	field	of	work.	

Sewing project bridges 
cultural barriers

 A small group 
of students who 
elected to 
undertake a 
sewing course 
gained a lot 
more from the 
workshops than 

just	sewing	skills.	Participants	from	various	
backgrounds and cultures built strong cross 
cultural	relationships	with	each	other	
through the sharing and exchange of skills 
and storytelling and through the ability to 
express	themselves	creatively.	

The program aims to overcome cross 
cultural barriers by providing an 
opportunity for newcomers, as well as 
those who have established themselves 
within the local community to build 
relationships	and	friendships	through	a	
shared interest in sewing. 

NCDEA receives tick 
of approval from 
independent study
The	National	Centre	for	Dairy	Education	
Australia	(NCDEA)	received	a	tick	of	
approval from an independent study 
commissioned	by	Dairy	Australia	(DA).	

The results of the study gave NCDEA 
a	positive	assessment	with	strong	
recommendations	for	the	future	of	this	
unique	collaborative	national	vocational	
education	and	training	model.	The	NCDEA	
recognised by industry and is the Australian 
provider	of	education	and	training	for	the	
dairy industry.

Hairdressing students 
learn from Beauty and 
the Geek stylist

Hairdressing 
students learnt 
valuable	tips	
and techniques 
from Australian 
Hairdresser of 
the Year and 
feature stylist 

on Beauty and the Geek reality show, Joey 
Scandizzo during his visit to Shepparton 
during	November.	Teaming	up	with	multi	
award winning fashion and beauty 
photographer, Andrew O’Toole, the duo 
created a live on-stage photo shoot at the 
GV Hotel in Shepparton.  

More than 200 hairdressers from local 
salons	took	the	opportunity	to	attend	the	
event, which gave them a behind-the-
scenes	glimpse	into	the	hottest	hair,	fashion	
and beauty trends and what really goes on 
in editorial shoots. In the hours leading up 
to the event, Joey shared his knowledge by 
allowing	students	to	practice	and	re-create	
key fashion looks that would feature on 
stage that evening. 

Memorial Dairy Study 
Tour
The GippsDairy Don Campbell Memorial 
Study Tour of Tasmania was conducted in 
early	2013	in	conjunction	with	GippsDairy	
and facilitated by the NCDEA. 

Underpinned by a unit of competency, the 
tour	develops	participants’	analytical	skills	
to	help	them	better	understand	differences	
in farming systems. These skills were 
put	into	practice	when	the	twelve	young	
farmers	compared	the	featured	operating	
systems with that of their own working 
environments. 

The	program	also	provides	participants	with	
an opportunity to develop networks and 
identify	innovative	ideas	they	can	apply	to	
their	respective	farms.	This	year’s	cohort	of	
participants	included	assistant	farm	hands,	
trainees, share farmers, farm managers and 
service providers. 
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Automotive hosts VACC 
industry evening 
The Victorian Automobile Chamber of 
Commerce	(VACC)	held	an	industry	day	at	
the	automotive	centre	at	the	Wangaratta	
Campus.	CEO	of	Automotive	Skills	Australia,	
Mr	Geoff	Gwilym	presented	on	the	topic	
of	the	2013	Automotive	Environmental	
Scan	(E-scan)	to	more	than	30	industry	
representatives	in	attendance.	

The E-scan is a report that outlines 
the current and future environmental, 
economic and technological impacts on 
the	automotive	industry	in	Australia.	The	
E-scan	also	highlights	potential	courses	of	
action	worthy	of	consideration	by	industry,	
government and stakeholders.

Conversation practice to 
improve speaking and 
listening skills
GOTAFE	established	a	conversation	skills	
group	to	attract	and	encourage	students	
who want to increase their English speaking 
and listening skills. 

The	practice	sessions	were	facilitated	
by GOTAFE trained tutors and provide a 
valuable	opportunity	for	participants	to	not	
only	improve	their	skills	but	build	positive	
networks	with	participants	through	shared	
experiences and interests.

Inaugural Taste of 
Agriculture Day held in 
Northern Victoria
GOTAFE’s Agriculture and NCDEA 
Farming Northern Victoria team worked 
collaboratively	with	other	internal	GOTAFE	
departments, 10 schools from across 
the region, Charles Sturt University, the 
University of Melbourne and local service 
providers including the Goulburn Murray 
LLEN to organise the inaugural Taste of 
Agriculture Day. 

The one day event held in Northern Victoria 
promoted	the	training	opportunities	on	
offer	to	secondary	school	students,	and	
demonstrates the rewarding range of dairy 
and agriculture-focussed careers available. 
More	than	100	students	attended	the	event	
and	participated	in	a	range	of	activities,	
including	cattle	handling	and	sheep	
shearing. The program also showcased the 
successful outcomes achievable through 
cross-organisation	and	cross-department	
partnerships. 

Gippsland students 
participate in Taste of 
Agriculture event
More than 60 Years 9 and 10 students 
attended	four	Taste	of	Agriculture	events	
organised by GOTAFE’s Agriculture 
and NCDEA Farming Gippsland teams. 
Secondary school students located within 
the East Gippsland, Latrobe, Baw Baw, 
South Gippsland and Bass Coast Shires 
were	invited	to	attend	and	were	challenged	
to	broaden	their	perspectives	and	
understand the breadth of careers available 
within primary industries sector. 

Students visited a number of farms and 
rural businesses including a commercial 
Goat Dairy, Rotary Dairy, Veterinary 
Clinic,	Artificial	Insemination	Centre,	pea	
and	potato	growing	operation,	as	well	
as agricultural machinery dealerships 
and agricultural retailers. These tours 
demonstrated that a career in agriculture 
is	more	than	just	working	on	a	traditional	
farm. Achieving its aim, the Taste of 
Agriculture program resulted in a number 
of	participants	expressing	an	interest	in	
undertaking	a	Certificate	II	in	Agriculture	to	
kick-start their careers in the industry.

Beef farmers attend 
North East Beef School 
More than 80 experienced beef farmers 
from	across	the	North	East	region	attended	
a Beef School in August. The two day 
event was presented in partnership with 
the	Meat	and	Livestock	Association	and	
Department of Environment and Primary 
Industries. 

Farmers heard from a range of industry 
leaders on a variety of topics including the 
beef market outlook, a new pasture-fed 
cattle	assurance	scheme	and	the	latest	in	
health	and	nutrition	advice	for	cattle.

Hospitality Master 
Classes secure big name 
chefs

In March, Tobie 
Puttock	kicked	
off	the	2013	
GOTAFE 
restaurant 
master classes 
for the three 
on-campus 

restaurants located at Shepparton, 
Wangaratta	and	Seymour.	Toby,	best	known	
for his enduring friendship and business 
partnerships with Jamie Oliver, as well as 
his well-documented work with 
underprivileged	teens	at	the	Fifteen	
Restaurant, worked with GOTAFE’s budding 
chefs and front-of-house students to prepare 
an	Italian	inspired	five	course	menu.	

More than 100 guests were treated to this 
culinary delight which was matched with 
local wines. 

Additionally,	Rose	Ang	from	Sake	in	
Melbourne, and owner and chef Michael 
Ryan from Beechworth’s Provenance 
Restaurant were just two of the well-known 
chefs who visited GOTAFE and worked with 
the students throughout the year. 
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Dairy students tour New 
Zealand 
Five	National	Centre	for	Dairy	Education	
Australia	students	spent	eight	days	visiting	
farms	and	dairy	organisations	in	the	North	
Island of New Zealand on an annual United 
Dairy	Farmers	of	Victoria	(UDV)	Study	Tour	
during 2013. 

The NCDEA joined with the UDV and the 
Victorian	Farmers	Federation	(VFF)	to	
promote and provide worthy candidates 
for this annual tour for young Australian 
dairy	participants.	Students	apply	for	places	
through	a	rigorous	selection	process	and	
participation	in	the	tour	is	highly	sought	
after	among	young	dairy	enthusiasts.

Budget Rent a Car 
entrepreneur shares his 
story

During April, 
business 
entrepreneur, 
best-selling 
author and 
public speaker, 
Bob	Ansett	
shared his 

business experiences with more than 90 
members from North East Victoria and the 
Goulburn Valley’s business community. 

Bob, as he prefers to be called detailed 
how he built Budget Rent-a-Car into a $400 
million	international	business	and	drew	
on	his	wealth	of	business	and	sporting	
experience	to	provide	practical	advice,	
insights, anecdotes and new approaches 
to	small	business	and	opportunities	for	
growth	for	participants.	Bob’s	message	of	
optimism,	coupled	with	knowledge	and	
experience to create the right ingredients 
for	success,	inspired	participants	both	
personally	and	from	a	business	perspective.

Skills enhancement 
project
Together	with	GOTAFE	Automotive	and	
Hair	and	Beauty	departments,	staff	from	
Multicultural	Education	Centre	(MEC)	
formed	part	of	the	successful	vocational	
and language, literacy and numeracy 
project with selected students from 
McGuire Secondary College. Between 15 
and 18 students, mostly Year 10 students 
took part in the year-long program that 
focussed on teaching English through 
vocational	subjects.	

Tourism, Hospitality and 
Events Snapshot

 Ì Wangaratta’s	Hospitality	Department	
offered	front-of-house	on	campus	
training	for	the	first	time	at	the	
Wangaratta	Campus	in	2013.	

 Ì Seymour Campus increased the number 
of students enrolled in hospitality by 50% 
during 2013. 

 Ì Hospitality, events and tourism 
students	continued	to	support	their	
local	communities	by	donating	their	
time	and	skills	to	various	activities	and	
worthy causes including Relay for Life in 
Shepparton	(raising	$60,000)	the	Barmah	
Muster	as	well	as	the	Dookie	Wine	Show.

Hair and Beauty 
snapshot

 Ì Inaugural students of the Diploma of 
Beauty graduated from the Shepparton 
campus.

 Ì Hair and Beauty commenced delivery of 
Certificate	IV	in	Hairdressing	for	the	first	
time.

Agriculture snapshot
 Ì Ten students enrolled in a new dual 
qualification	combining	Certificate	IV	in	
Agriculture and Diploma of Agriculture. 
During 2013 the majority of students 
completed	their	Agriculture	Certificate	
and	will	commence	preparation	to	
complete their Diploma studies in June 
2014. 

Automotive & 
Engineering snapshot

 Ì Certificate	III	in	Engineering	was	offered	
at	the	Wangaratta	Campus	for	the	first	
time	in	2013.	Six	first	year	apprentices	
enrolled	in	the	new	fabrication	course	
and	have	confirmed	their	enrolment	for	
their second year studies in 2014. 

 Ì Certificate	III	in	Marine	Craft	Construction	
was	offered	for	the	first	time	through	
GOTAFE.	Eight	first	year	students	
commenced	the	boat	construction	
course in 2013 and six second and third 
year	students	enrolled	with	GOTAFE	after	
transferring their studies from other 
training	organisations,	to	complete	their	
training	and	gain	accreditation.		The	
Automotive	Department	recognised	
a gap in the current market which led 
to	the	introduction	of	the	course.	The	
delivery	is	conducted	off-campus	and	is	
based	in	the	Mornington,	Queenscliff	and	
Geelong areas with possible expansion 
into other areas of regional Victoria and 
interstate in 2014. 

PartnErsHIPs 

Interpreting course 
delivered online
In partnership with RMIT University and 
funded	by	the	Office	of	Multicultural	Affairs	
and	Citizenship,	the	Diploma	of	Interpreting	
(Dari/English)	was	successfully	delivered	
to rural students via video-conferencing 
facilities.	

This	was	the	first	time	the	diploma	has	
been conducted via non face-to-face 
methods, and was made possible through 
technical and onsite support provided by 
GOTAFE. 
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Understanding a career 
in dairy
In partnership with the Regional 
Development	Program	(WestVic	Dairy)	six	
Taste of Dairy events, each held across two 
days, were delivered to secondary school 
students	within	the	Western	districts.	

Students were exposed to a life in dairy 
and	learnt	about	the	opportunities	and	
potential	career	pathways	that	are	available	
through	training	offered	by	GOTAFE’s	
Agriculture and NCDEA team. The program 
combined	classroom	activities	with	farm,	
factory and service provider visits. 

Deakin at your Doorstep 
inaugural graduates

Grace Collins 
and Damian 
Hurst were the 
first	students	to	
successfully 
graduate from 
the Deakin At 
Your Doorstep 

program	as	part	of	the	2013	graduation	
celebrations	for	the	Wangaratta	Campus.	
Deakin At Your Doorstep is a unique 
partnership between Deakin University and 
selected regional TAFE’s including GOTAFE. 

The program enables GOTAFE students to 
complete an Associate Degree locally in 
Wangaratta	that,	on	completion,	provides	
credits towards and guaranteed entry into a 
related Deakin University course.

Art brings people 
together 
The People Talking with People Through 
Art	initiative	was	a	joint	project	between	
Relationships	Australia,	Shepparton	Art	
Museum and GOTAFE. It provided student 
participants	with	the	opportunity	to	meet,	
and talk with community volunteers and 
the opportunity to explore concepts and 
gain a mutual understanding through art.

GOTAFE chosen to deliver 
training to SES 
GOTAFE’s Training and Assessment 
Department delivered a series of weekend 
workshops to Victorian State Emergency 
Service	(SES)	volunteers	to	assist	them	in	
gaining	their	Certificate	IV	in	Training	and	
Assessment	(TAE)	qualifications.	

The workshops conducted at GOTAFE’s 
Wangaratta	Campus	were	attended	by	
volunteers located in the North East 
Victoria and surrounding regions. The SES 
is	a	volunteer-based	organisation	that	work	
towards ensuring the safety of Victorians 
by providing emergency assistance to the 
community 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

Women’s leadership 
forum
GOTAFE partnered with the Australian 
Muslim	Women’s	Centre	for	Human	Rights	
to provide women with the opportunity to 
attend	a	leadership	forum.	

The forum explored and discussed 
leadership in its many forms including 
different	leadership	and	management	
styles and strategies.

Echuca nursing students 
graduate 
A partnership between GOTAFE and Echuca 
Regional	Health	(ERH)	culminated	in	the	
graduation	of	a	cohort	of	15	Diploma	of	
Nursing students. 

The new health facility currently being built 
has	further	increased	the	need	for	qualified	
and	experienced	nursing	staff	in	the	Echuca	
area, and GOTAFE has been able to address 
the need for training by providing on-site 
accredited training. 

coMMunIty

GOTAFE host search for 
best Hot Cross Bun

The Baking 
Industry 
Association	of	
Victoria’s	(BIAV)	
Annual Fruit 
Bowl 
Competition	
was held at 

GOTAFE’s Fryers Street Campus. More than 
200 bakers travelled from across Victoria 
and interstate, from as far as South 
Australia and Tasmania to compete in the 
competition.	The	categories	included	
Savoury Pastry, Fruit Flan, Bread, Chocolate 
and	the	national	title	for	Australia’s	Best	
Hot Cross Bun, which was won by Bart 
Honig of Mooroopna Bakery. Mooroopna 
Bakery has employed a number of GOTAFE 
apprentices.	GOTAFE	was	pleased	to	see	
the event grow with more than 200 
bakeries represented in 2013, a 25% 
increase	on	last	year’s	figures.	

Student art part of High 
Country Harvest Festival 
GOTAFE Visual Arts students had their 
artworks on display at a local café, Espresso 
in	Wangaratta,	as	part	of	the	High	Country	
Harvest	exhibition.	The	works	were	inspired	
by the harvest season and featured a wide 
variety of media including ink and pencil, 
print, acrylic, oil based paint, photography 
and	mixed	media	textile.	The	exhibition	
enabled students to explore the sensory 
delights of fresh locally grown produce 
and express their experiences through art 
in their own personalised style. The High 
Country	Harvest	Festival	celebrates	harvest	
time	in	the	High	Country	during	May,	
offering	a	program	of	innovative	events	
across the region held to showcase its 
gourmet	produce	and	local	artisans.	
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African inspired art 
featured at on-campus 
library

The Shepparton 
campus library 
held an art 
exhibition	
featuring art 
produced by 
GOTAFE 
student, Nickel 

Mundabi	Ngadwa.	The	collection	of	works,	
on display from September to December, 
included the acrylic on canvas piece 
Waterfall	(pictured).	Nickel’s	art	was	
created in both Congo and Australia and 
has	a	distinctly	African	feel.	Nickel’s	skill	in	
capturing the essence of Congolese design 
with	a	contemporary	flair	is	evident	in	his	
works.	All	of	his	creations	were	on	sale	
during	the	exhibition	and	included	stunning	
dynamic colour on canvas, carved wooden 
pieces and tribal masks. Nickel has won a 
number	of	prizes:	2011	National	Broadbank	
Network Art Prize 1st prize; 2010 
Heartlands Refugee Fine Art Prize 3rd prize; 
2013 Heartlands Refugee Fine Art Prize 
Special	Mention.	Late	in	2013	he	had	a	solo	
exhibition	at	Fo	Guang	Yuan	Gallery	in	
Melbourne. Nickel was born in the 
democratic	Republic	of	Congo	and	now	
lives in Shepparton with his wife and three 
children. Since arriving in Australia Nickel 
has immersed himself in the local 
community	and	is	an	active	member	of	the	
Congolese	and	artistic	community.	

Donated cubby house 
boosts school Christmas 
raffle
Appin Park Primary School’s Christmas 
raffle	received	a	major	boost	with	the	
donation	of	a	cubby	house,	built	by	
Wangaratta’s	building	and	construction	
students. Valued at $1400, the cubby house 
was	the	major	prize	for	the	raffle.	

Dookie Wine Show a sell-
out

The Dookie 
Wine	Show	
Dinner held in 
October was a 
sell-out event in 
2013. The event 
showcases the 
talent and 

creativity	of	GOTAFE	Tourism,	Cookery,	
Events	and	Tourism	and	Hospitality	staff,	
and students who assisted with the 
selection	and	preparation	of	the	menu	and	
the	organisation	and	theming	of	the	event.	
The	wine	show	evening	is	a	collaboration	
between GOTAFE and the local Agricultural 
Society	and	was	attended	by	a	record	
number of 220 guests who were treated to 
a	five	course	degustation	dinner.	The	menu	
was matched with award winning wines 
from	the	Dookie	Wine	Show	competition	
held during September. GOTAFE hosted the 
judging	component	of	the	Dookie	Wine	
Show;	the	panel	included	international	
wine judge, Lester Jesberg. The wine 
competition	recognised	exceptional	wines	
from North East Victoria and the Goulburn 
Valley, with the overall winner, announced 
on	the	night,	being	Murchison	Wines’	2012	
Murchison Cabernet Sauvignon. 

From refugee to business 
man 

GOTAFE hosted 
an evening with 
Najaf Mazari 
and Robert 
Hillman, 
authors of The 
Rugmaker of 
Mazar-e-Sharif, 

at the Fryers Street, Shepparton Campus 
Auditorium. Najaf Mazari, an Afghani 
refugee	who	fled	his	homeland	after	being	
captured by the Taliban, shared his 
remarkable story detailing his journey to 
Australia to a capacity audience. The 
insightful	story	described	how	hope,	coupled	
with	practical	support,	fostered	resilience	
and strength to overcome boundaries in the 
creation	of	a	successful	life.	

Health booklet to assist 
refugees
Staff	from	Multicultural	Education	Centre	
(MEC)	contributed	to	the	preparation	
of My Health in Shepparton booklet 
produced by Goulburn Valley Health. The 
publication	aims	to	increase	awareness	
of available health services and health 
literacy for newly arrived refugees and 
migrants.	Consultation	with	key	agencies	
including GOTAFE who work with refugees 
and migrants in Greater Shepparton was 
undertaken	by	GV	Health	Promotion	Team	
to ensure the booklet was well received 
and a useful resource. 

Butchers attend regional 
workshop 
More	than	30	butchers	and	apprentices	
travelled from as far as Bendigo, 
Seymour,	Yarrawonga	and	Wangaratta	to	
attend	a	regional	meat	workshop	at	the	
Shepparton campus during March. The 
Red	Meat	Networking	Club	(RMNC)	and	
representatives	from	Meat	and	Livestock	
Australia	(MLA)	including	Program	Co-
ordinator for Victoria\Tasmania, Michael 
Tan,	provided	practical	workshops	entitled	
Beefing	Up	Your	Profits	and	Racking	Up	Your	
Profits.	Leading	meat	retailers	presented	
at the event, sharing their knowledge and 
expertise.	Participants	were	able	to	sample	
beef and lamb products on site. 
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GOTAFE host Culinary 
Challenge 
The Hospitality Department at the 
Wangaratta	campus	hosted	the	regional	
finals	of	the	Murray	River	Culinary	
Challenge at the Tower Restaurant in 
August. The two top scoring students 
from	each	participating	school	gained	
themselves	a	place	in	the	final	after	
undertaking	the	initial	cooking	challenge.	
Secondary school students enrolled 
in	a	Vocational	Education	and	Training	
(VET)	Hospitality	Training	Package	can	
participate	in	the	competition.	In	2013	the	
challenge	involved	five	regions	and	more	
than two hundred students from Echuca, 
Shepparton,	Swan	Hill,	Wangaratta	and	
Wodonga	districts	participated.	GOTAFE	
staff	supported	the	event	in	numerous	
ways including the overseeing of the 
kitchen	operations,	and	the	front-of-house	
students.	Two	GOTAFE	staff	members	were	
part of the judging panel. 

BPACC celebrates 10 
years 
The Benalla Performing Arts and 
Convention	Centre	(BPACC)	celebrated	10	
years of entertainment at the launch of 
its 2014 theatre season during December. 
GOTAFE	Regional	Academy	of	Dramatic	
Arts,	Head	of	Theatre	Arts	Matt	Scholten	is	
responsible for the 2014 season program 
and said it was a broad program that 
highlighted	national	and	local	talent.

Barmah Muster gets a 
helping hand 
Hospitality, Tourism and Events students 
put	their	skills	into	practice	when	they	
became real life event managers at the 
Barmah Muster held in April.

The Diploma students partnered with 
the	Barmah	Muster	Committee	to	run	
the annual muster, and were involved in 
everything	from	ticketing	to	entertainment	
and	managing	amenities	and	exhibitors,	
gaining valuable hands-on experience. 
Their	contribution	to	the	Barmah	Muster	
will	form	part	of	the	final	assessable	
component of the last year of their studies.  

Jurassic Park inspired 
garden
Certificate	III	Horticulture	students	
completed a new garden space at 
Wangaratta	West	Primary	School	(WWPS).	

GOTAFE students designed and built 
the	garden,	incorporating	themes	of	
Jurassic Park, an enchanted garden and 
an	Australian	native	environment.	The	
students hope it will inspire an interest and 
love of gardening in the children. 

NAIDOC celebrations 
The	Wangaratta	campus	hosted	NAIDOC	
Celebration	Day	to	support	the	local	
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
community and celebrate Aborigines and 
Islanders	Day	Observance	Committee	
(NAIDOC)	week	during	July.	

As	part	of	the	celebrations,	the	Dirrawarra	
Indigenous Network presented a family 
day	of	cultural	experiences	and	activities	
including	gum	leaf	and	boomerang	painting	
activities	for	kids,	traditional	dance	and	
music, stone knapping, storytelling and 
displays of Aboriginal artefacts. 

Local artists converge on 
GOTAFE
The	Wangaratta	campus	hosted	more	than	
200	artists	during	May	for	the	Across	the	
Arts Forum. The forum brings together 
successful	artists	to	share	their	experiences	
and insights through workshops and 
discussions, honing their skills in the 
performing and visual arts over three 
stimulating	and	creatively	charged	days.	

In 2013 the event program quickly reached 
capacity numbers and organisers arranged 
additional	sessions	to	meet	the	needs	of	
the art community. 

Across the Arts occurs every two years and 
a website was developed to share photos 
from	the	event	as	well	to	keep	participants	
and the visual arts community informed 
and up-to-date with news and events. The 
website also enables interested members 
of the public the ability to view, register 
and book in advance for future scheduled 
forums and upcoming events.

Students raise funds 
for Zaidee Rainbow 
Foundation

Sport and 
Recreation	
students 
organised a 
charity fun run 
during October 
seeking support 
from local 

individuals,	community	organizations	and	
businesses	to	participate.	Students	
developed the event concept and chose 
Zaidee’s	Rainbow	Foundation	as	the	
recipient of the funds raised. 

The	students	encouraged	participating	
teams to dress in colourful and crazy 
outfits	(pictured)	in	support	of	Zaidee’s	
Foundation.	The	initiative	formed	part	
of the Diploma of Sport Development. 
GOTAFE was thrilled to support and 
contribute to such a worthy cause. 

Group effort to raise 
funds for the Cancer 
Council 
The Cancer Council’s Biggest Morning Tea 
celebrated	20	years	since	the	initiative	
began and GOTAFE’s Baking, Hospitality, 
Tourism, Events and Hair and Beauty 
Departments joined forces to raise funds 
for the worthy cause during May. 

Each department contributed to the fund-
raising	efforts:	baking	students	made	hot	
jam donuts  while hospitality and events 
students themed the event and served 
the	morning	tea	to	staff	at	the	on-campus	
restaurant in Shepparton.
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VCAL students pave the 
way
During March, fourteen VCAL students 
helped create a paved disabled access 
pathway by laying pavers at the Shepparton 
Theatre Arts Group’s Bakehouse rehearsal 
and theatre space. The students were 
involved in a personal development course 
at the Shepparton campus. 

aWards 

GOTAFE graduations
Four	GOTAFE	Graduation	Ceremonies	
were held during March. Approximately 
500	students	received	their	certificates	
in	recognition	of	successfully	completing	
nationally	accredited	qualifications.

The Outstanding Students of the Year for 
each campus was:

 Ì Benalla	Campus
Colette	Quin,	Advanced	Diploma	of	Arts	
(Acting)	

 Ì Seymour	Campus
Katherine Black,  Diploma of Nursing 

 Ì Shepparton	Campus
Claire Greenwood, Diploma of Nursing 
and Aaron Palmer, Diploma of Graphic 
Design	(joint	winners).

 Ì Wangaratta	Campus
Chris Dube, Diploma of Management 

The	guest	speaker	at	the	graduation	
ceremonies was Victoria Brown, eight 
years	member	of	the	Australian	Women’s	
Water	Polo	Team	the	Aussie	Stingers.	After	
narrowly	missing	out	on	selection	for	the	
2008 Beijing Olympics she made her mark 
as the number one goalkeeper and was 
named Australian Female Player of the Year 
in 2010. 

She sustained major injury and illness 
setbacks in 2011 but against the odds made 
selection	for	the	London	2012	Olympics.	
Well	known	for	her	resilience	and	strength	
of character, Victoria is of a fun loving 
Australian who was faced with many 
challenges in pursuit of a dream and who 
learnt an enormous amount along the way.

Apprentice awards and 
graduations 
The	GOTAFE	Apprentice	Awards	and	
Graduation	ceremonies	were	postponed	
in	2013	due	to	the	implementation	of	the	
Student	Management	System	(SMS).	The	
Graduations	and	awards	night	is	scheduled	
for early in 2014. 

The event will recognise outstanding 
TEC	students,	pre-apprentices	and	
apprentices	from	GOTAFE’s	Automotive,	
Baking, Building, Electrical, Engineering, 
Hairdressing, Hospitality and Plumbing 
trade areas. 

Photography students 
win national award 

GOTAFE 
photography 
students Kelley 
Wilson	and	
Phillip	Watt	
received awards 
at the Ilford 
National	

Photographic	Competition.	Kelley	and	
Phillip were awarded second prizes in the 
Second	Year	Tertiary	Level	and	First	Year	
Tertiary	Level	categories	respectively.	The	
winning images were taken as part of the 
course requirements for the photography 
component of the visual arts course. The 
Ilford	competition	is	a	national	
photographic	competition	that	is	open	to	
all	secondary	schools	and	tertiary	institutes	
that	offer	photography	courses	within	
Australia. 

Additionally,	Phillip’s	photography	was	
selected by Charles Sturt University to 
feature on their website and to be used in 
marketing	and	promotional	publications.	A	
collection	of	works	created	by	Kelley	was	
also featured at Exit 2013 during 
November,	along	with	the	creations	of	
other art and design students. EXIT 2013 
showcases the completed works of GOTAFE 
students and was exhibited at the 
Wangaratta	Exhibitions	Gallery	during	
November.	Photo	courtesy	of	Wangaratta	
Chronicle.

Young dad takes out 
state’s top apprentice 
award

Fourth year 
apprentice	
carpenter 
Matthew	Miller	
from Tocumwal 
was awarded 
the Master 
Builders State 

Apprentice	of	the	Year	award	during	May.	
About 800 people celebrated the 20 year 
old’s win, presented by the Victorian Higher 
Education	and	Skills	Minister	Peter	Hall	at	
Melbourne’s	Etihad	Stadium.	Matt’s	
achievements were recognized along with 
14	other	Victorian	apprentices	named	the	
best in their category studying at university, 
TAFE	and	registered	training	organizations.	

The	State	Apprentice	of	the	Year	Awards	
recognises emerging talent in the 
building	and	construction	industries,	
with	apprentices	from	across	the	state	
considered. 
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Wurreker award 
nomination
Within	the	TAFE	Institute	category	for	the	
Wurreker	Award,	GOTAFE	was	nominated	
along	with	KANGAN	TAFE	and	Wodonga	
TAFE.  The award is held annually and 
recognises	the	importance	of	education	
within the Koorie Community, and 
acknowledges the high standards of 
education	providers	within	many	different	
sectors	including	VET,	Tertiary	and	private	
training and RTO’s.

Success at Melbourne 
International Flower and 
Garden Show

Horticulture	
students Len 
Ingram, Luke 
Commisso and 
GOTAFE trainer 
Karen Rogers 
were awarded 
first,	second	

and	third	place	in	the	TAFE	section	of	the	
Great Victorian Hanging Basket 
Competition.	

The	section	was	judged	by	the	Royal	
Horticultural	Society	of	Victoria	(RHSV)	at	
the	Melbourne	International	Flower	and	
Garden	Show	(MIFGS)	held	during	March.

Len and Luke entered their hanging 
baskets along with fellow graduates of the 
Certificate	III	in	Horticulture	from	GOTAFE’s	
William	Orr	Campus.	After	completing	their	
course late in 2012, the students returned 
to the campus in January 2013 to design, 
plant and prepare their hanging baskets 
ready	for	the	competition.

staFF

Leadership programs
GOTAFE Commercial Manager Ross Graham 
completed the two year Leadership 
Development	Program	for	Education	and	
Training Managers. The leadership program 
is jointly delivered by The Chair Academy 
based in the United States and Victoria 
University.

Craig	Wall	and	Sonya	Dalgliesh	participated	
in the Fairley Leadership Program for the 
Goulburn Valley Region of Victoria.

Craig	Murphy	and	Brendan	White	
participated	in	the	Alpine	Leadership	
Program in North East Victoria.       

Leadership forums
GOTAFE held two, one day leadership 
forums in 2013.  All levels of management 
attended	these	designated	days	to	reflect	
on results and discuss current issues 
including: 

 Ì Employee Assistance Program

 Ì Study Support 

 Ì TSAF Funding

 Ì Priorities	&	Risks

 Ì OH&S

 Ì Merger talks

 Ì Organisational	Change

 Ì Certificate	IV	in	Training	and	Assessment	
(TAE	40110)

 Ì Two Course Rules 

VET Development Centre
GOTAFE was successful in obtaining a 
number	of	competitive	funding	grants	
offered	by	the	VET	Development	Centre	
in 2013 to supplement the support and 
development	of	key	staff	and	programs	
including: 

 Ì Workforce	Development	Grant	–	Up-
skilling for the new Student Management 
System

 Ì Industry	Engagement	–	International	
Asian	Tour	on	best	practice	of	Equine	VET	
Provision for pathways learning

 Ì Teaching	&	Learning	–	Responding	
to	National	Foundation	skills	training	
strategies	for	adults	-	better	equipped	to	
meet learners needs

 Ì Sixteen VET Scholarships were awarded 
for	staff	to	undertake	Diploma	in	
Vocational	Education	&	Training	
(TAE50111)	and	four	scholarships	
were awarded to undertake TAE40110 
Certificate	IV	in	Training	and	Assessment.

Staff Development Day
Staff	Development	days	were	held	in	
April and September at Shepparton and 
Wangaratta	Campuses	and	streamed	live	to	
remote campuses.   

Topics covered included:

 Ì Launch of Employee Assistance Program

 Ì SMS	implementation	and	update	
information

 Ì OH&S	actions	and	charts

 Ì HR topics including EBA’s, new Individual 
Performance Plans and rollout of training 
in	2013/2014	

At the conclusion of the September 
sessions,	further	OH&S	and	MyHR	optional	
training	was	offered.

corporate services
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Reward and Recognition 
Strategy
GOTAFE currently recognises its people for 
their	contribution	to	the	Institute	through	
the	Reward	and	Recognition	program.	

Educational Excellence 
Awards
The	annual	Educational	Excellence	Awards	
have	four	categories,	Teacher/Trainer	of	
the	Year	and	Innovative	Training	awards,	
for	teaching	staff	only,	and	Service	and	
Support	Excellence	Awards	for	innovation	
and customer service that are open to both 
teaching	and	non-teaching	staff.

Winners	of	these	awards	are	considered	
for	nomination	to	the	Victorian	Training	
Awards.

2013 Educational 
Excellence Award 
winners
Innovative	Training:
Matt	Powell	

Service	and	Support	Excellence	-	Customer	
Service:	
Jennie Freer

2013 Peer Awards
These awards are presented quarterly to 
an individual or team who demonstrate 
exceptional	performance	to	one	or	more	of	
GOTAFE’s strategic goals. 

Staff	from	all	areas	of	GOTAFE	are	given	an	
opportunity	to	nominate	a	staff	member	
or team who they believe to be a worthy 
recipient of an award. There were 10 
recipients of the Peer Awards in 2013.

Years of Service Awards
The annual Years of Service Award dinner 
was held in April at GOTAFE’s Tower 
Restaurant at Docker Street Campus, 
Wangaratta.	Seventeen	staff	received	Years	
of Service Awards for 10, 15, 20, 25 or 30 
years	of	service	with	the	Institute.	

The	event	was	attended	by	Institute	Board	
members and senior management as well 
as	the	recipients’	partners.	(The	service	
period recognised was April 1, 2012 to 
March	31,	2013).

Staff undertake TAE
GOTAFE has adopted the Training and 
Assessment	TAE	40110	qualification	as	the	
standard	for	all	teaching	staff.	All	current	
staff	have	been	reviewed	and	where	
appropriate, training has been undertaken. 
All recruitment will now require the TAE 
40110	qualification.

The	staff	upgrade	project	continued	in	2013	
with the aim to have all GOTAFE teaching 
staff	upgrade	their	current	training	and	
assessment	qualification	to	the	standard	for	
all	teaching	staff	Certificate	IV	in	Training	
and	Assessment	(TAE40110).	This	upgrade	
project consisted of three parts:

 Ì Full-time,	part-time	and	sessional	
teaching	staff	upgrading	eight	of	the	ten	
units	of	the	qualification	through	RPL	
assessment

 Ì The	elective	units	Facilitate	e-Learning	
(TAEDEL501A)	and	Address	adult	
language, literacy, numeracy skills 
(TAELLN401A)	were	selected	as	part	
of the upgrade project. These units 
were delivered through professional 
development workshops and contributed 
to	increasing	the	skill	capabilities	of	staff.

 Ì GOTAFE	teaching	staff	who	already	
held	the	most	recent	Certificate	IV	in	
Training	and	Assessment	(TAE40110)	
also	participated	in	the	professional	
workshops	for	the	two	elective	units.		A	
total	of	350	GOTAFE	staff	participated	in	
this project.

Trainer volunteers at 
Malaysian eco-tourism 
resort
Hospitality	trainer	Kirstie	Ash	travelled	to	
Malaysia	to	participate	in	a	month	long	
volunteer program during July and August. 

The professional development opportunity 
took	place	at	Bubbles	Dive	Resort	–	
Perhentian	Island	Malaysia	-	an	eco-friendly	
resort that has pledged to minimise its 
impact on the environment. The resort 
specialises	in	reef	protection,	turtle	
nesting,	snorkelling,	diving	and	teaching	
local groups and resort guests about 
the importance of travelling socially and 
environmentally responsibly.  

Kirstie	facilitated	sessions	and	group	
discussions with resort guests on a number 
of topics including eco-tourism and 
travel and also spoke to local school and 
community groups from the Kota Bhura 
and	Kuala	Besut	about	conservation.	She	
worked in the resort in varying roles from 
housekeeper	to	receptionist,	learning	all	
facets of the resort. She also learnt valuable 
eco-tourism related skills.

Highlights of her learning experience 
included	interaction	with	the	local	
community, releasing turtle hatchlings back 
to	the	sea,	replanting	coral	and	conducting	
scientific	reef	data	collection.	Kirstie	bought	
back	a	wealth	of	information	that	she	
shared with her students and which she 
hopes to include as part of the coursework 
in 2014. 

Hair and Beauty 
Professional 
Development
Hair	and	Beauty	staff	participated	in	a	
number of industry related professional 
development	opportunities,	including	Salon	
Melbourne during April, and Sydney Beauty 
Expo	during	August.	Additionally,	Sue	Egan	
and	Carmel	Cook	participated	in	the	Sharon	
Blain	Education	week	long	Hairdressing	
Boot Camp.

Detecting youth mental 
health issues
After	undertaking	a	14	hour	Youth	Mental	
Health First Aid course during April, 15 
GOTAFE	staff	increased	their	ability	to	
detect and assist adolescents who are at 
risk of developing a mental health problem 
or are in a mental health crisis. 
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EnVIronMEntaL
PErForMancE

Environmental Sustainability 
GOTAFE has an extensive 2012-2013 Environmental Management Plan and in 2013 maintained membership with the Sustainable Campus 
Group	with	eight	other	TAFEs	and	universities	nationally,	to	network,	share	ideas	and	annually	benchmark	environmental	performance.	
Sustainable	Campus	Group’s	‘Tertiary	Education	Sector	Sustainability	Report	2012’	outlined	the	findings	of	benchmarking	2012	year	data	
and	provided	valuable	information	on	the	sector’s	environmental	performance	for	2012	and	GOTAFE’s	relative	position	in	a	range	of	
measures.

Various	environmental	improvements	were	achieved	in	line	with	Environmental	Management	Plan	objectives	in	Management	&	
Communications,	Education	for	Sustainability,	Energy	Consumption	&	Greenhouse	Gas	Emissions,	Transport,	Waste,	Water,	Purchasing,	and	
Planning & Infrastructure.

Energy

Indicator 2013 2012 

Electricity Natural gas Green power Electricity Natural gas Green power

Total	energy	usage	(MJ) 13,152,957 10,474,112 0 12,347,136 12,488,759 1,584,367

Greenhouse gas emissions associated 
with	energy	use	(t	CO2	e)

4,896 578 - 4,596 689 -

Actions	undertaken

Photovoltaic cells Photovoltaic	cell	solar	arrays	installed	at	the	William	Orr	Campus	to	buildings	in	Plumbing	
and	Building	&	Construction	to	utilise	renewable	energy,	support	training	delivery	and	return	
power to the grid.

HVAC equipment Replaced	antiquated	HVAC	equipment	at	Shepparton	and	Wangaratta	campuses	to	improve	
energy	efficiency	and	reliability.

LED lights New	LED	lights	trialled	at	the	Wangaratta	Campus	with	a	view	to	future	retrofitting	energy	
efficient	LED	lights	as	a	replacement	for	older	fluorescent	lighting.

Explanatory	notes
Energy	data	above	is	for	both	training	operations	and	office	and	is	not	able	to	be	differentiated	for	office	only.	Energy	data	is	not	available	
for	shared/co-located	site	in	Western	Victoria	and	in	prison	campuses	at	Beechworth	and	Dhurringile.
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Transport

Indicator 2013 2012

Diesel 
vehicles

LPG vehicles Petrol 
vehicles

Diesel 
vehicles

LPG vehicles Petrol 
vehicles

Total	fuel	consumption	by	vehicles	(litres) 184,292 71,951 1,969 187,684 72,468 2,810

Total	vehicle	travel	(km) 2,443,940 558,658 12,665 3,334,284

Total greenhouse gas emissions from 
vehicle	fleet	(t	CO2	e)

530 122 5 670

Total	distance	travelled	by	aeroplane	(km) 324,849 138,990

Actions	undertaken

Online	vehicle	booking	&	notifications An	Ausfleet	online	vehicle	booking	system	is	providing	notification	to	managers	of	their	
staff	vehicle	bookings	and	is	facilitating	a	reduction	in	car	travel,	costs	against	budget	and	
emissions from car travel. 

Videoconferencing equipment New	videoconferencing	equipment	purchased	further	supports	options	to	car	travel	for	
meetings	of	staff.

Student travel app A new app, ‘Get me to class’ became available for GOTAFE students in 2013, allowing 
students	to	put	in	their	timetable	and	the	public	transport	options	to	get	them	to	class	on	
time	are	populated.

Explanatory	notes
Vehicles	include	cars	(pool	cars	and	manager-allocated	vehicles)	and	buses	for	transport	of	students.	Training	vehicles	(tractors,	quad	bikes)	
are excluded.

Waste

Indicator 2013 2012

Landfill Co-mingle 
recycling

Compost Landfill Co-mingle 
recycling

Compost

Total	units	of	waste	disposed	of	(kg/yr) 139,511 35,872 Not available 146,382 38,350 Not available

Recycling	rate	(percentage	of	total	waste) 21% 21%

Actions	undertaken

Waste	management	systems A	new	waste	collection	contract	with	Cleanaway	came	into	full	effect	in	2013	and,	in	addition	
to	expanded	recycling	services	at	campuses	at	Werribee	and		Seymour	and	improved	services	
at Benalla, has provided more comprehensive waste and recycling data.
A review of the waste management of hairdressing products at Shepparton and the waste 
management	bin	system	at	William	Orr	Campus	by	horticulture	students	were	typical	
examples	of	the	learning	activities	from	environmental	sustainability	units	delivered

Office	furniture Office	furniture	that	was	no	longer	required	was	sold	or	donated	for	re-use.

Explanatory	notes
Waste	is	for	both	training	operations	and	office.	Waste	data	is	not	available	for	shared/co-located	site	in	Western	Victoria	and	in	prison	
campuses at Beechworth and Dhurringile.

Paperboard & paper included with co-mingle recycling data above.
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Paper

Indicator 2013 2012

Total	units	of	copy	paper	used	(reams) Not	available Not	available

Actions	undertaken

Copy paper purchase All	copy	paper	purchased	is	certified	as	carbon	neutral.

Explanatory	notes
Paper	consumption	includes	use	on	GOTAFE	printer/photocopier	machines	by	staff	and	students.	

Total	paper	consumption	decreased	in	2013	on	2012	year	level	by	10.8%	as	more	use	of	online	training	delivery	and	electronic	storage	
occurred.

Water

Indicator 2013 2012

Total units of metered water consumed 
(kilolitres)

42,354 31,947

Actions	undertaken

Grounds watering Sprinkler	timing	set	to	minimise	usage	

Explanatory	notes
Kilolitres	consumed	data	is	potable/town	water	for	training	operations,	grounds	maintenance	and	office	use	for	campuses	other	than	
shared/co-located	site	in	Western	Victoria	and	prison	campuses	at	Beechworth	and	Dhurringile.	

Usage	in	2013	increased	due	to	a	particularly	hot	summer	and	increased	student	enrolments.	Rainwater	tanks	in	use	at	Benalla	and	
Seymour	campuses	and	Rural	Industries	Campus	Wangaratta	for	toilet	flushing,	grounds/landscape	and	horticulture	operations	is	not	
metered.
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InFrastructurE
BuILdIng Works and 
EquIPMEnt

Classroom upgrades 
support blended delivery 
Blended	training	delivery	options	in	
Agriculture	and	Dairy	Education	were	given	
a	significant	boost	at	the	Warragul,	Terang	
and	William	Orr	campuses	with	major	
upgrades	to	facilities	undertaken	in	each	of	
these	locations.	

Classrooms	were	identified	and	allocated	
as	blended	delivery	rooms	with	specific	
technology being installed, including 
interactive	SMARTBoards,	large	televisions,	
audio-visual equipment, new student 
computers and furniture. 

On a weekly basis the Diploma and 
Advanced Diploma of Agriculture courses 
are delivered via blended delivery from 
these	rooms	and	students	have	the	option	
of	attending	the	classes	face-to-face	or	
from	external	locations,	one	student	
utilising	the	online	system	to	log	in	from	
Canada while on holidays.

Building works 
undertaken at 
DemoDairy
Substantial	building	works	took	place	
at	DemoDairy	in	Terang,	the	location	of	
GOTAFE’s Agriculture and NCDEA Farming 
Western	Victoria	operations.	

In partnership with GOTAFE, the Gardiner 
Foundation	and	DemoDairy	have	developed	
and built a large purpose-built training room 
located	at	the	western	end	of	the	existing	
facility. The facility can accommodate groups 
of up to 35 people. The training room is a 
welcome	expansion	in	addition	to	the	newly	
developed blended delivery classroom next 
door,	and	a	number	of	new	staff	offices	will	
be included in the works. 

Quad bike training 
facilities established
Students enrolled in quad bike training 
put	into	practice	course	work	covering	the	
safe	use	and	operation	of	quad	bikes	at	the	
new	purpose-built,	on-site	training	activity	
course	located	at	the	William	Orr	campus.	

The course was established to meet the 
growing demand for quality training in this 
high-risk	farm	activity.	The	course	received	
a	tick	of	approval	from	ten	WorkSafe	
inspectors	who	participated	in	training	
during October.

On-campus Day Spa 
opens

GOTAFE’s 
Diploma of 
Beauty students 
benefitted	from	
the new 
purpose built 
day spa located 
at the Fryers 

Street, Shepparton Campus. The day spa 
was	officially	opened	during	October	with	
local	beauty	salons	invited	to	attend.	

Students learnt the most up-to-date beauty 
therapy techniques in the training facility 
housing nine individual treatment areas, 
including	a	vichy	shower	incorporating	
a wet room, eight massage and facial 
treatment	sections,	independent	heating	
cooling	system,	change	rooms,	waiting	area	
and	reception	facilities.		

The	training	facility,	replicating	a	
commercial day spa, is open to the public 
and operates as a retail business, giving 
students the opportunity to work on real 
life clients whilst gaining specialist beauty 
skills	specific	to	the	day	spa	industry.	

Additionally,	a	new	industry	standard	
hairdressing salon and training room 
opened	at	Wangaratta	Campus,	providing	
students with the ability to gain hands-on 
practical	experience	and	practice	on	real	
life clients in a space that replicates local 
hairdressing salons. 

systEMs and 
InForMatIon 
tEcHnoLogy

Internet bandwidth 
upgrade 
GOTAFE’s internet bandwidth was upgraded 
through AARNET to provide high quality 
internet services to facilitate GOTAFE’s ever 
increasing reliance on the current internet 
service and ICT infrastructure.  

Internet bandwidth has been upgraded 
from a 20MB to 1GB service to facilitate 
online	learning,	resulting	in	improved	
internet	service	to	students	and	staff.	
Specifically,	the	upgrade	has	improved	staff	
access to a number of websites including 
those listed in the VET Teacher E-learning 
Toolkit. 

These	sites	were	made	available	to	staff	to	
ensure all teachers had access to a range 
of	web	applications	that	support	learning	
and	teaching	practice	and	to	further	
develop online learning materials and web 
functionality	required	to	support	e-learning	
as part of the GOTAFE training system. 

GOTAFE also changed internet providers, 
choosing	AARNET	who	offered	favourable	
rates	as	part	of	the	TAFE/University	
collaboration	service.	

In	addition	to	the	bandwidth	upgrade,	
GOTAFE’s Network Systems Department 
implemented	a	new	Internet	Web	Gateway	
system to protect users and networks from 
security threats, and to increase speed and 
quality of network performance.

Internet gateway 
increases efficiency
GOTAFE’s internet network was inundated 
with increasing amounts of internet 
traffic,	and	congestion	at	internet	links	
undermined the performance of a number 
of	applications	and	resulted	in	impaired	
productivity.		

Increased bandwidth, coupled with 
more control in managing bandwidth 
allocation	and	utilisation	helped	to	improve	
productivity.	Barracuda	and	Bluecoat-12000	
were	installed	across	the	Institute	and	
assisted in managing the speed and 
efficiency	of	its	internet	traffic.	
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FInancIaL PErForMancE

summary of Business results for 2013

operating revenue $115,603,000 

Property, Plant and Equipment assets $84,922,000

student Enrolments 25,716

student contact Hours 12,260,252

SMS Project 
The	training	and	installation	of	the	Student	
Management	System	(SMS)	took	place	
during	2013	with	549	participants	attending	
the training.  

In 2013 GOTAFE has deployed a number 
of servers and expanded its infrastructure 
capacity	to	provide	the	basic	foundation	
for the new SMS system along with other 
integrations.

Telephone system 
upgrade
The	outdated,	multiple	site	based	NEC	IPS	
PABXs telephone system has been replaced 
with	the	latest	single	NEC	SV8300	multisite	
platform	technology.		The	new	system	
achieves the following key outcomes to 
benefit	staff:

 Ì management	of	a	single	platform	rather	
than several;

 Ì add-on	applications	including	voicemail	
and Q-Master Call Centre available to 
all users;

 Ì current handsets do not need to be 
repurchased, a cost saving to the 
Institute	as	replacement	handsets	
typically equate to over 50% of the 
hardware investment.

 

Werribee link upgrade 
improves cross campus 
connectivity
The	Werribee	link	was	upgraded	to	1GB	fibre	
link,	the	objectives	of	this	project	are	to:

 Ì Create a uniform, high capacity, low cost 
ICT service;

 Ì Improve	connectivity	within	and	across	
campuses,	assisting	reduction	of	
internal travel;

 Ì Encourage greater teaching and learning 
collaboration;	

 Ì Enable	more	flexible	delivery	of	training;

 Ì Increased capacity to store electronic 
data.

The	aim	of	the	Storage	Area	Network	(SAN)	
project	was	to	upgrade	the	Institute’s	
capability to store electronic data. The 
Institute’s	increasing	focus	on	moving	
towards a model of e-delivery brings with 
it the requirement to increase the volume 
of	storage	capability	for	educational	and	
administrative	purposes.		The	chosen	
solution,	Nimble	460G,	provides	the	
GOTAFE data centre with more storage and 
data	replication	to	DR	location.		This	project	
facilitated	the	completion	of	SMS,	email	
and network storage. 

New process assist 
management of staff 
and student email 
accounts
The	Forefront	Identity	Manager	project	
was	introduced	to	replace	the	existing	
method	of	creating	and	managing	staff	and	
student user accounts and email mailboxes 
with	a	more	robust	and	easily	configurable	
solution.	The	secondary	aim	of	the	project	
was to replace the student account 
provisioning in order to align with the new 
Student	Management	System	(SMS)	and	
generate	email	addresses	in	the	Microsoft	
Office	365	service.		

Microsoft email software 
upgraded
All	staff	email	accounts	were	moved	from	
Exchange	2007	to	the	new	Microsoft	
Exchange 2010. This upgrade had 
significant	proven	advantages	to	GOTAFE	
users and support team.  

Bandwidth upgrade for 
remote campuses
A new ‘bonding’ technology has been 
introduced	to	combine	multiple	ADSL	
services to increase the link capacity for 
the Leongatha and Terang Campuses.  This 
has	improved	connectivity	between	main	
campuses.
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our organIsatIon

Our Values, Vision and Purpose

Values
GOTAFE’s	people,	practices	and	

processes	commit	to	the	following	

values:	Responsiveness,	Creativity,	

Collaboration,	Excellence,	

Accountability,	Integrity	and	Respect

Vision
A	world	class	Institute	

delivering	quality	education	

and training beyond 

expectations

PurPose
To	deliver	quality	vocational	

training	and	tertiary	education	

that	responds	to	the	needs	

of	industry,	enterprises,	

communities	and	individuals	in	

the	regions	we	serve
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the Board of gotaFE 
demonstrates a broad 
range of background, 
skills and ability.

the Board endeavours 
to have an ongoing 
membership that covers 
all of the areas necessary 
to provide leadership and 
good governance for the 
Institute.

2013 Board Members       

GEOFFREY
OLIVER

REBECCA
WOOLSTENCROFT

PETER 
QUINN

JONATHON
KOOP

LISBETH 
LONG

CHRISTOPHER 
MCPHERSON

PAUL
CULPAN

JOANNE
DWYER

ADAM
FURPHY

MICHAEL 
TEHAN 

ANN
TELFORD

MICK
LOSCAVO
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MIcHaEL tEHan

chairman

Lawyer,	Tehan,	George	&	Co
Co-opted Director, Appointed 17/03/97

Michael is the senior partner of Tehan, 
George	&	Co,	a	legal	firm	operating	in	
Euroa	and	Seymour.	He	has	particular	skills	
in	legal	matters,	local	government,	audit,	
regional development, strategic planning, 
community networking and development, 
tourism,	hospitality	and	vocational	
education	and	training.	

Michael has a Bachelor of Laws and is 
a	Notary	Public	and	qualified	mediator.	
Michael is also a Board member of the 
Benalla	Performing	Arts	and	Convention	
Centre.

LIsBEtH Long

deputy chair

General	Manager,	Silent	Range	Estate
Ministerial (Industry) Director, Appointed 
14/07/08

Lisbeth has a Bachelor in Economics and 
is the General Manager of a vineyard and 
winery	at	Wangaratta.	She	has	extensive	
experience	in	education	and	training,	
governance, corporate management, 
finance,	law,	organisational	development,	

risk management and strategic planning.

adaM FurPHy 

deputy chair

Managing	Director,	J.	Furphy	&	Sons
Ministerial Director, Appointed 16/03/09

Adam has a Bachelor of Engineering 
(Mechanical)	and	is	the	Managing	Director	
of	J.	Furphy	&	Sons	which	is	a	fifth	
generation	manufacturing	business	based	
in Shepparton. He has experience with 
apprenticeships	and	industry	participation	
in	vocational	education.	He	has	experience	
in business development and business-to-
business	relationship	management.

Adam is presently Chairman of the La Trobe 
University	Shepparton	Campus	–	Regional	
Advisory	Board,	Chairman	of	the	Scott	
Peoples	Foundation	and	a	Trustee	of	the	
Shepparton	Mechanics	Institute.

gEoFFrEy oLIVEr

Small	Business	Operator
Co-opted Director, Appointed 17/03/97

Geoff	is	the	owner	of	a	retail	business	in	
Benalla and Chairman of Associated Retailers 
Pty	Ltd,	a	national	retail	purchasing	group.		
He is Chairman of the Board of the Benalla 
Performing	Arts	and	Convention	Centre	

He	has	particular	skills	in	regional	
development,	specifically	in	the	areas	of	
arts and theatre, business management, 
community networking, local government, 
education	and	training	and	marketing.

cHrIstoPHEr  McPHErson

Managing Director, McPherson Media 
Group	
Ministerial Director, Appointed 30/11/09

Chris is Managing Director of the McPherson 
Media Group and its publishing and 
printing	companies.	Chris	is	a	life	member	
and director of Victorian Country Press 
Association,	a	life	member	of	the	Pacific	
Area	Newspaper	Publishers	Association,	a	
life member and director of Country Press 
Australia and Chairman of Country Press 
Cooperative	Company	Limited.	

Chris has completed the Company Director’s 
Course Diploma and is a Fellow of the 
Australian	Institute	of	Company	Directors.	
In 2012 he completed a Bachelor of Applied 
Management	(BAMS)	through	GOTAFE.	

ann tELFord

Regional	Manager,	Environment	
Protection	Authority	(Hume	Region)

Ministerial Director, Appointed 30/11/09, 
Resigned 14/4/2013 

Ann holds an Australian and New Zealand 
School	of	Government	(ANZSOG)	Executive	
Master	of	Public	Administration,	a	Graduate	
Certificate	in	Educational	Leadership	
and Management and a Bachelor of Arts 
(Liberal	Studies).	She	has	experience	in	
local government, the community sector 
and the public service.

She also serves as a Board Member of 
the Alpine Valleys Community Leadership 
Program and the Benalla Performing Arts.

PEtEr quInn

Managing Director, GV Water
Ministerial Director, Appointed 26/10/11 

Peter is Managing Director of Goulburn 
Valley	Water,	holds	an	Executive	MBA,	
is a Churchill Fellow, a member of the 
Australian	Property	Institute	and	the	
Australian	Institute	of	Company	Directors.	
He currently serves on the Board of 
WaterAid	Australia	and	the	Victorian	Smart	
Water	Fund.

rEBEcca 
WooLstEncroFt

Partner,	MB+M	Group
Ministerial Director, Appointed 05/03/12

Rebecca is a Chartered Accountant and has 
a Bachelor of Commerce degree.  She is a 
Partner of MB+M Chartered Accountants 
Shepparton. Rebecca is presently a member 
of	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	
Australia.	Her	expertise	includes	strategic	
and business development plans for small 
and	medium	sized	businesses,	in	particular	
working with business owners to develop 
business and personal goals, and to set 
actions	around	those	goals	to	ensure	their	
achievement.

JoannE dWyEr

Chartered Accountant

Appointed 01/09/13

Joanne	is	a	Certified	Practising	Accountant	
and has a Bachelor of Commerce Degree. 
Joanne is an independent consultant with 
Brulant	Consulting	and	Dwyer	Securities	
Limited, and is a current member of the 
Australian	Institute	of	Company	Directors	
and	Certified	Practising	Accountant	of	the	
CPA Australia.

Joanne has held a number of directorships 
in	regional	Victoria,	and	her	expertise	lies	in	
Business Project Management and strategic 
planning.

PauL cuLPan

Chief	Executive	Officer,	GOTAFE
Appointed 01/01/09
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MIck LoscaVo

Staff	Representative
Appointed 16/12/11 to 15/04/2013

JonatHan kooP

Primary Producer

Appointed 01/09/13

Jonathan is a Chartered Accountant and 
a	graduate	of	the	Australian	Institute	of	
Company Directors, and has a Bachelor of 
Economics Degree.

Jonathan is a Primary Producer and is 
a current Board Member of North East 
Water.	He	possesses	strong	leadership	
and	analytical	skills,	and	his	expertise	
lies in strategic business planning and 
management.

New Constitution 
Amendments to the Education and Training 
Reform Act 2006 passed in 2010 resulted 
in	the	introduction	of	new	constitutions	at	
each	TAFE	institute.	The	amendments	are	
in	line	with	recommendations	from	the	
independent TAFE Reform Panel, which 
backed the State Government’s plans to 
establish professional skills-based boards, 
remake	TAFE	institutes’	constitutions	and	
establish stronger commercial and strategic 
planning guidelines. 

Minster	Hall	initiated	the	new	constitution	
which was adopted by the GOTAFE Board 
and	came	into	effect	on	the	15th	April	2013.

Michael Tehan was re-appointed as the 
chair by the Governor in Council, on the 
Government’s	recommendation.

Board Values and Code 
of Conduct
The	Board	of	GOTAFE	provides	effective	
corporate	governance	for	the	Institute	
within the legal framework provided by 
the various acts, orders and ministerial 
directions.	The	Board	has	adopted	a	vision,	
mission and values statement for the Board 
itself	and	for	the	Institute.

The Board operates in accordance with 
the Excellence in Governance: A Guide 
to	Best	Practice	in	TAFE	Institute	Boards	
manual published by the Victorian TAFE 
Association.	

General duties of the 
Board
The	duties	of	the	Board	are	set	out	in	the	
GOTAFE	Constitution.	 
The board must take all reasonable steps 
for	the	advancement	of	the	objectives	
of	the	Institute	and	the	board	under	the	
Act	and	this	Constitution;	operate	in	
accordance with the economic and social 
objectives	and	public	sector	management	
policy	established	from	time	to	time	by	the	
Government of Victoria; meet at intervals 
prescribed	in	this	Constitution;	provide	all	
assistance	and	information	as	the	Minister,	
the Secretary or the Deputy Secretary may 
reasonably require from the board; and 
ensure the safe custody and proper use of 
the	common	seal	of	the	Institute.

Meeting Attendance

Board Member Attendance

Michael Tehan 10/11

Lisbeth Long 10/11

Adam Furphy 8/11

Geoffrey	Oliver 8/11

Christopher McPherson 7/11

Ann Telford 2/2

Peter Quinn 10/11

Rebecca	Woolstencroft 9/11

Paul Culpan 2/2

Mick Loscavo 2/2

Joanne Dwyer 4/4

Jonathan Koop 4/4

Board Committees
The	Board	has	three	committees:

 Ì Executive
 Ì Audit   
 Ì Remuneration

The	Executive	Committee	acts	on	behalf	
of	the	Board	between	Board	meetings	and	
also	provides	an	oversight	of	the	Institute’s	
industrial	relations	matters.	

Members	of	the	Board	who	held	positions	
on	this	Committee	in	2013	were	Michael	
Tehan	(Chair),	Lisbeth	Long	and	Adam	
Furphy.

The	Audit	Committee’s	role	is	to	oversee	
the	role	and	effectiveness	of	the	Institute	
auditors and to ensure appropriate 
management response and follow up to 
meet the good governance requirements of 
the	Institute.	

Members	of	the	Board	who	held	positions	
on	this	committee	in	2013	were,	Peter	Quinn	
(Chair),	Rebecca	Woolstencroft,	Lisbeth	
Long,	Ann	Telford	(resigned	14/4/13),	
Joanne	Dwyer	(appointed	1/9/13)	and	
Jonathan	Koop	(appointed	1/9/13).

The	Remuneration	Committee	provides	
assurance	to	the	Board	relating	to	the	
effectiveness,	integrity	and	compliance	of	
remuneration	policies	and	practices.	The	
Remuneration	Committee’s	main	focus	is	on	
senior	executive	and	the	CEO	remuneration.	

The	Committee	also	concerns	itself	with	the	
overall	approach	to	remuneration	by	the	
Institute.	Members	of	the	Board	who	held	
positions	on	this	committee	in	2013	were	
Michael	Tehan	(Chair),	Lisbeth	Long,	Chris	
McPherson and Adam Furphy.

Only	Board	members	hold	positions	on	
these	committees.

Board Training
 Ì Michael Tehan, Joanne Dwyer, Lisbeth 
Long	attended	the	Victorian	TAFE	
Association	Governance	Forum	on	the	
29th November. The training will assist 
them	in	undertaking	their	Board	duties.	

 Ì Michael Tehan, Lisbeth Long, Peter 
Quinn,	Chris	McPherson,	Geoff		Oliver,	
Rebecca	Woolstencroft,	Jonathan	Koop,	
Joanne	Dwyer	attended	Health	and	
Safety Compliance for GOTAFE and 
Its	Officers	–	conducted	by	Steve	Bell,	
Practice	Leader,	Work	Health	and	Safety	
on the 18th of August.

 Ì Chris McPherson graduated with 
a Bachelor of Applied Business 
Management in July

 Ì Rebecca	Woolstencroft	attended	a	
Leadership	course,	Next	Generation	of	
Female Corporate Leaders in July

 Ì Michael	Tehan	attended	a	Law	Institute	
Forum in August
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Executive Management Team

the gotaFE Executive 
Management team’s 
focus is strategic 
leadership and business 
development, with 
day-to-day operations 
supported by middle 
management under a 
policy and procedural 
framework established 
by the Executive 
Management team 
under the Board’s 
delegation framework.

PETER
CARKEEK

ALBERT
AMADEI

SANDY
POWELL

GEOFFREY
COBBLEDICK

PAUL 
CULPAN

LOUISE
PEARCE

Paul Culpan
cHIEF ExEcutIVE oFFIcEr

The	Chief	Executive	Officer	(Director)	is	
employed	by	the	Board	of	the	Institute	with	
significant	delegations	of	authority	from	
the Board to:

 Ì Assist	the	Institute	Board	in	the	update	
and	implementation	of	its	long-term	
strategic	directions	in	operational	terms

 Ì Provide	leadership	and	authoritative	
advice	to	the	Institute	Board	and	Board	
Committees	on	the	strategic	directions,	
policies and review mechanisms for the 
Institute

 Ì Promote	and	represent	the	Institute	
to governments and government 
authorities	in	order	to	gain	contracts	
and	resources	to	achieve	the	Institute’s	
goals 

 Ì Lead	and	develop	the	Institute	to	
ensure that it maintains its status 
as	a	nationally	Registered	Training	
Organisation	(RTO)	and	that	its	functions	
are	benchmarked	against	best	national	
and	international	practice
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Albert Amadei
ExEcutIVE ManagEr

tEcHnoLogy IndustrIEs

Responsibilities	are:

 Ì Educational	development	
 Ì Relationship	development	
 Ì Management of teaching delivery teams 
and	support	staff	

 Ì Financial management 
 Ì Vocational	Education	and	Training	in	
Schools	(VETiS)	business	activity	

Technology Division includes:

 Ì Automotive	(Mechanical	and	Body)
 Ì Building and Plumbing
 Ì Electrical
 Ì Engineering	(Mechanical	and	
Fabrication)

 Ì Hair and Beauty
 Ì Hospitality & Baking
 Ì Retail
 Ì Shepparton	Technical	Education	Centre	
(TEC)

 Ì Wangaratta	Technical	Education	Centre	
(TEC)

 Ì Corrections	Education	Centre	

Geoffrey Cobbledick
gEnEraL ManagEr
FInancE and InFrastructurE

Responsibilities	are:

 Ì Financial management and procurement
 Ì Property, capital development, 

equipment and minor works 
 Ì Information	and	communications	
technology,	information	systems	

 Ì Audit and risk management
 Ì Environmental sustainability
 Ì Quality compliance 
 Ì Legal
 Ì Commercial	operations	-		Benalla,	
Wangaratta	and	Shepparton

 Ì Benalla	Performing	Arts	and	Convention	
Centre	(BPACC)

 Ì Organisational	Development	
 Ì Information	Access	
 Ì Student Services 

Peter Carkeek
ExEcutIVE ManagEr
natIonaL cEntrE For daIry EducatIon 
austraLIa (ncdEa) – daIry FarMIng

VocatIonaL PatHWays 

Responsibilities	are:

 Ì Coordinating	the	roll	out	of	the	National	
Centre	for	Dairy	Education	Australia	
(NCDEA)	within	Victoria	and	across	
Australia

 Ì Developing	industry	relationships	and	
harnessing industry resources 

 Ì Liaising with the regional industry 
guidance group network

 Ì Overall	operations	
 Ì Strategic development
 Ì Financial and team management

 Ì Marketing,	Communications	and	
Business	Development	-	marketing	and	
business	development	initiatives,	major	
events	and	publications	

Vocational	Pathways	Division	includes:

 Ì Multicultural	Education	Centre	(MEC)	
 Ì Koorie	Education	Unit	(KEU)	
 Ì Learning Skills Unit

Sandy Powell
ExEcutIVE ManagEr 
ruraL and ManuFacturIng IndustrIEs

Responsibilities	are:

 Ì Overall	operations
 Ì Strategic development
 Ì Financial management
 Ì Management of teaching delivery teams 
and	support	staff

 Ì Educational	development
 Ì Development of key industry 
relationships

Rural and Manufacturing Industries Division 
includes:

 Ì Agriculture
 Ì Amenity	Horticulture
 Ì Animal Sciences
 Ì Conservation	and	Land	Management;
 Ì Food Processing
 Ì Manufacturing
 Ì National	Centre	for	Dairy	Education	
Australia	(NCDEA)	–	Dairy	Processing

 Ì National	Centre	for	Equine	Education	
(NCEE)

 Ì Occupational	Health	and	Safety	(OHS)
 Ì Production	Horticulture
 Ì Transport	and	Logistics
 Ì Veterinary Nursing
 Ì Viticulture

Louise Pearce
ExEcutIVE ManagEr
sErVIcE IndustrIEs

Responsibilities	are:

 Ì Overall	operations
 Ì Strategic development
 Ì Educational	development	and	growth
 Ì Development of partnerships and 
articulation	with	Universities	and	ACE	
providers

 Ì Industry	engagement	and	relationship	
development with a range of 
organisations

 Ì Management of teaching delivery teams 
and	support	staff

 Ì Financial management 

Service Industries Division includes:

 Ì Art and Design 

 Ì Business

 Ì Information	Technology	(IT)

 Ì Management

 Ì Community Services

 Ì Children’s Services

 Ì Health -  includes Nursing and First Aid

 Ì GOTAFE	Regional	Academy	of	Dramatic	
Arts	(GRADA)

 Ì Sport	and	Recreation
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Organisational Chart

Chief	Executive	Officer
Paul Culpan

Service	Industries
Louise	Pearce	-	Executive	Manager

Business/Info Technology
Jo-Ann Craig

Automotive	&	Engineering
Brett	Ambrosio

Animal Sciences
Celia Turnbull

Community	Services
Cheryl Moylan

Building,	Plumbing	&	
Electrical

Brendan Rogash

Horticulture
Brendan	White

Design,	Art,	Sport	&	
Recreation

Ian Poole

Corrections	Education
Darren Payne

NCEE
Kath	White

Network	Systems
Kumar Santhakumar

Educational	Development
Jenny Jackson

Employer	Engagement
Carolyn Curnow

NCDEA Processing
Michael Robinson

Retail,	Hairdressing	&	Beauty
Kate Storer

Health
Jennifer Arnold

Hospitality
Ross Graham

TEC	Shepparton
Jon Lee

Technology Industries
Albert	Amadei	-	Executive	Manager

Rural	&	Manufacturing
Sandy	Powell	-	Executive	Manager

As at 31 December 2013

* Thomas Pamminger, Chief Finance Officer, from 3 March 2014
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Agriculture
Leigh Kildey

Facilities	&	Capital	Works
Neil Conrick

Koorie	Education
Michael Chisholm

Financial	Services
Phil Garoni

Marketing,	Communications	
&	Business	Development

Nadia Godfrey

Information	Access
Anne	Ritter

Multicultural	Education
Balvinder Kaur

Registrar
Sandy Parker

Learning	&	Quality
Sylvia Vagg

Human	Resources
Leisa Clark

NCDEA	Gippsland
Luke Prime

Student	Services
Mick Loscavo

Learning	Skills	Unit
Natasha McCormick

Quality	&	Planning
Peter	Watson

NCDEA Northern Victoria
Neil Aird

Wangaratta	Campus	
Manager
Andrew Kay

NCDEA Western Victoria
David Shute

Agriculture	&	
NCDEA Dairy Farming

Peter	Carkeek	-	Executive	Manager

Finance	&	Infastructure
*Geoff	Cobbledick	-	
General Manager

Specialist Manager

Commercial Manager

Support Manager

Campus Manager
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the Institute’s 2013 
annual report has been 
prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of 
the following acts, but not 
limited to; 

 Ì Education and Training 
Reform Act 2006 (ETRA)

 Ì taFE institute 
constitution

 Ì directions of the 
Minister for Higher 
Education and skills (or 
predecessors)

 Ì taFE Institute 
commercial guidelines

 Ì taFE Institute strategic 
Planning guidelines

 Ì Public Administration 
Act 2004

 Ì Freedom of Information 
Act 1982 (FOI Act)

 Ì Building Act 1993

 Ì Protected Disclosure 
Act 2012

 Ì Victorian Industry 
Participation Policy Act 
2003

The	required	reporting	appears	throughout	
this	publication,	either	in	the	main	body	of	
the Annual Report or on the following pages. 
A Disclosure Index appears at the end of 
this	publication	to	facilitate	identification	
of compliance with statutory disclosure 
requirements.

Making a request
The	authorised	Freedom	of	Information	
Officer	for	the	Institute	is	the	General	
Manager Finance and Infrastructure, who 
is	responsible	for	the	initial	receipt	and	
action	upon	requests	for	information	or	
access to a document or record. Enquiries 
regarding access can be made by phone 
to the General Manager Finance and 
Infrastructure	on	1300	GOTAFE	(1300	468	
233)	in	the	first	instance.	

As detailed in s17 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982 formal requests 
for access to documents or records are 
required	to	be	directed	in	writing	to:

The	Chief	Executive	Officer	
Attention:	Freedom	of	Information	Officer
Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	TAFE	
152	–	200	Fryers	Street,	
Shepparton, Victoria 3630

In summary, the requirements for making a 
request are:

 Ì it should be in writing;
 Ì it should identify as clearly as possible 

which document is being requested; and
 Ì it should be accompanied by the 

appropriate application fee (the fee may 
be waived in certain circumstances).

Charges for access are in accordance 
with	the	Freedom	of	Information	(Access	
Charges)	Regulations	1983.

Further	information	regarding	Freedom	of	
Information	can	be	found	at	www.foi.vic 
gov.au.

Freedom of Information
GOTAFE operates in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982	(FOI	Act)
and its amendments, allowing the public 
right of access to the documents held by 
GOTAFE.

During 2013 GOTAFE received one request, 
this	being	from	the	Australian	Education	
Union	regarding	staffing	and	course	
information.

This was a valid request and GOTAFE have 
complied with that request.

External Reviews

The	TAFE	Reform	Panel	issued	the	final	
report from a major review undertaken 
during 2013. The panel made 19 
recommendations	regarding	the	future	of	
the TAFE sector in Victoria. 

National Competition 
Policy
The	Institute	has	a	clearly	established	
policy	on	Competitive	Neutrality	that	helps	
ensure compliance with Government 
legislation	within	the	spirit	of	the	National	
Competition	Policy	and	the	Victorian	
Government’s	Competitive	Neutrality	
Principles. This policy is applicable to 
commercial	activity	and	to	pricing	of	
bids for that part of government-funded 
education	and	training	that	is	advertised	for	
competitive	tender.	

The	Institute	has	developed	and	maintained	
a pricing model that ensures prices charged 
for	business	activity	reflect	all	costs	
applicable and that all advantages and 
disadvantages of Government ownership 
are	included	in	pricing	calculations.

coMPLIancE InForMatIon

Statutory Requirements & Statements
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Non-Academic Student 
Fees 
2013 students enrolling in government-
funded programs were provided a brochure 
on	Institute	Fees	and	Charges.	This	
detailed:

 Ì fees and charges 
 Ì exemptions	and	concessions	
information	

 Ì financial	assistance	and	refunds	
 Ì Student	Services	and	Amenities	Fee

Fees and charges and Student Services 
information	was	also	available	on	the	
Institute’s	website.

The	purpose	for	which	the	Institute	
collected the Student Services and 
Amenities	Fee	was	to	provide	a	range	of	
services	and	amenities	to	students.	

The management of the funds from the 
fees was delegated to the Manager Student 
Services through budgets. 

In	2013	the	Institute	collected	a	net	
amount	of	$408,195	from	the	application	
of	the	Student	Services	and	Amenities	
Fee. This amount was fully expended on 
student	services,	amenities	and	activities,	
which	included	orientation	activities,	
student handbook, youth pathway plans, 
counselling,	disability	support,	first	aid	
assistance	and	student	activities,	support	
and	information	on	various	topics,	
accommodation,	public	transport,	course	
advice and fee payment assistance and 
health	information.	

The expenditure was as follows:

 Ì Salary	of	Student	Services	Officers	and	
Counselling	Officers	-	$886,188

 Ì Non-Salary - $59,117

The	services	provided	by	the	Institute	for	
students were further detailed within the 
Student Services brochures provided at the 
point of enrolment and displayed and made 
freely	available	throughout	the	Institute	
and on the GOTAFE website. 

Maintenance and 
capital works 
GOTAFE	continued	its	aim	for	the	provision	
of quality infrastructure, that is compliant 
with the following; 

 Ì Building Act 1993
 Ì Building Regulations 2006 
 Ì Building Code of Australia 

Actions	for	2013	included;

 Ì construction	works	on	the	joint	CSU	
and GOTAFE Regional University Centre 
located at GOTAFE’s Rural Industries 
Campus,	Wangaratta	commenced	
in 2013. The 7.8 million dollar joint 
development will provide a specialised 
centre	incorporating	lecture,	laboratory,	
student	and	staff	spaces	specifically	
aligned	to	higher	education	in	the	
agriculture sector. The project is 
scheduled	for	completion	in	2014

 Ì development	of	design	documentation	
and the commitment to proceed with 
the Goulburn Murray Trade Training 
Centre in Shepparton occurred in 
2013. The project, valued of 9.3 million 
dollars,	is	jointly	funded	by	DEEWR	
and	involves	a	consortium	made	up	
of GOTAFE and six local colleges. 
Construction	is	due	to	commence	in	
2014.

 Ì major refurbishment programs at 
Seymour,	Wangaratta	and	Shepparton	
Campuses. 

 Ì programmed,	reactive	and	general	
maintenance of buildings, plant and 
grounds across all campuses. 

 Ì compliance	to	Essential	Safety	
Measures and Cooling Towers System in 
accordance with the Victorian Building 
Authority. 

Industrial Relations
The	AEU	(Australian	Education	Union)	
consultative	Committee	met	regularly	
during 2013.  There was no Industrial 
Action	during	2013.

Negotiations	have	commenced	for	a	
new	Non-Teaching	PACCT	(Professional,	
Administrative,	Computing,	Clerical	and	
Technical)	Certified	Agreement.

 
Protected Disclosure Act 
 
GOTAFE has a procedure in place to 
meet the requirements of the Protected 
Disclosure Act 2012. There were no 
disclosures	made	to	the	Institute	during	
2013, nor any disclosures referred to or 
from the Ombudsman or taken over by the 
Ombudsman. 

There	were	no	recommendations	made	by	
the Ombudsman under the Act that related 
to	the	Institute.		The	Protected Disclosure 
Act 2012 supersedes the now repealed 
Whistleblowers’ Protection Act. 

Recruitment  

By the end of December 2013 GOTAFE 
had	advertised	64	positions,	60	of	these	
positions	were	advertised	both	internally	
and	externally	and	four	advertised	only	
internally.	Of	these	64	positions	16	were	
not	filled.	This	was	either	due	to	the	
position	being	withdrawn	or	due	to	the	
candidates	not	being	suitably	qualified	or	
experienced for the role. 

Design and print 
requirements 
GOTAFE’s Annual Report complies with FRD 
30A Standard requirements for the design 
and print of annual reports.
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Occupational Health 
and Safety (oH&s)
GOTAFE	is	committed	to	the	provision	of	
a safe and healthy working environment 
for	staff,	students,	contractors	and	visitors.	
During	2013,	the	Institute	implemented	its	
2012-2013	Occupational	Health	and	Safety	
(OHS)	Plan.	

Key performance indicators developed 
through	the	OHS	Committee	to	monitor	
Institute	OHS	performance	for	the	2013	year	
and completed in 2013 included:

 Ì Review and reissue of the OHS Policy
 Ì Review of the 2011-2012 OHS Plan and 

development of future strategies for  
2013-2014

 Ì Revision of OHS procedures
 Ì Audit of OHS Management system
 Ì Review	of	OHS	Committee	structure	&	

processes
 Ì Review	consultation	procedures/

processes 

Maintenance	of	incident	reporting,	follow-up	
and	finalisation	processes:

 Ì Review and reissue of the Incident Report 
form

 Ì Development		and	implementation	of	
an	Institute	hazard	register	to	monitor	
corrective	action	progress

 Ì There were 156 incidents reported within 
the	Institute	during	2013	(as	at	30th	
November	–	Compared	to	149	incidents	
reported	at	this	time	in	2012.	

This	variance	can	be	attributed	predominantly	
to a campaign to increase OHS awareness and 
improved systems. A  number of measures 
have been implemented including improved  
risk	identification	and	reporting	as	well	
as	better	performance	indicators,	which	
will assist in reducing and in some cases 
eliminating	any	potential	future	risks.

Provision	of	OHS	training	for	Institute	staff	
in	identified	priority	areas,	with	199	persons	
trained in the following areas:

 Ì OHS	Training	for	the	Board	and	Executive	
Management

 Ì OHS	Training	for	Managers/Supervisors	
 Ì Fire	&	emergency/evacuation	Procedures/
OHS	Induction

 Ì First Aid Training: Apply First Aid 
 Ì Contractor	Induction

Implementation	of	systematic	hazard	
identification	process:

 Ì 497	Workplace	Hazard	Inspections	were	
undertaken	across	the	institute.	

 Ì 763 Plant and Equipment risk assessments 
were	undertaken	across	the	institute.

 Ì 196 Manual Handling and Chemicals took 
place at the workplace level

Workcover & Injury 
Management 
Performance
The	Institute	Lost	Time	Injury	Frequency	
Rate	(LTIFR)	for	2013	Workcover	claims	
was	calculated	for	Standard	Workcover	
claims	and	all	Workcover	claims	(Standard	
and	Minor)	as	per	AS1885.	The	LTIFR	is	the	
number	of	occurrences	of	injury/disease	
for each one million work hours worked by 
staff	and	is	used	to	measure	OHS	trends	
over	time.	Results	for	2013	were:

 Ì Standard	Workcover	Lost	Time	Injury	
claims	–	4.37	occurrences/million	work	
hours	(Compared	to	2.96	in	2012)

The	variance	is	directly	attributed	to	a	
change in OHS management systems, which 
reports and measures more accurately and 
identified	inaccuracies	in	previous	reports.		
The new system is being used to review all 
measures currently reported. 

The	Average	Time	Lost	Rate	(ATLR)	for	
lost	time	injuries	was	measured	as	an	
indicator	of	injury/illness	severity	and	the	
effectiveness	of	the	injury	management	
return to work system. The ATLR for 
each	2013	lost	time	claim	was	6.75	days	
(Compared	to	8.00	days	in	2012).

Health	&	Safety	initiative	programs	were	
introduced during 2013. These were:

 Ì Implementation	of	an	Institute	wide	
safety	awareness	program	(Operation	
Safe	Tafe)

 Ì GOTAFE	&	Worksafe	involvement	
in	farm	safety	initiative,	(safe	work	
practices	for	farms,	orchards	and	rural	
businesses)	held	at	GOTAFE	Fryers	St.	
Campus	as	part	of	Work	Safe	Week.

Future strategies for improved OHS 
performance in 2014 have been developed 
by	the	OHS	Committee	and	endorsed	
by senior management with the goal 
to	achieve	accreditation	for	Australian	
Standard 4801, OHS Management system, 
which	will	assist	in	the	main	objective,	to	
make	GOTAFE	a	leader	in	best	practice.

Major Commercial 
Activity 
GOTAFE has undertaken no major commercial 
activities	during	2013	that	equate	to	five	per	
cent of the annual revenue. 

Additional Information 
Available on Request
In compliance with the requirements of 
the	Standing	Directions	of	the	Minister	
for Finance, details in respect of the items 
listed below have been retained by the 
GOTAFE and are available on request, 
subject to the provisions of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982. 

 Ì a	statement	that	declarations	of	
pecuniary interests have been duly 
completed	by	all	relevant	officers;

 Ì details	of	shares	held	by	a	senior	officer	
as	nominee	or	held	beneficially	in	a	
statutory authority or subsidiary; 

 Ì details	of	publications	produced	by	the	
entity	about	itself,	and	how	these	can	
be obtained; 

 Ì details of changes in prices, fees, 
charges, rates and levies charged by the 
entity;	

 Ì details of major research and 
development	activities	undertaken	by	
the	entity;	

 Ì details of overseas visits undertaken 
including	a	summary	of	the	objectives	
and outcomes of each visit; 

 Ì details	of	major	promotional,	public	
relations	and	marketing	activities	
undertaken	by	the	entity	to	develop	
community	awareness	of	the	entity	and	
its services; 

 Ì a	list	of	major	committees	sponsored	
by	the	entity,	the	purposes	of	each	
committee	and	the	extent	to	which	the	
purposes have been achieved.

Enquiries regarding details of any of the 
above should be addressed to:
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Mr Paul Culpan
Chief	Executive	Officer	
Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	TAFE	
152	–	200	Fryers	Street,	
Shepparton, Victoria 3630

Phone:		 1300	GOTAFE	(1300	468	233)
Email:  pculpan@gotafe.vic.edu.au
Web:		 www.gotafe.vic.edu.au

Application of 
Employment and 
Conduct Principles
GOTAFE	is	committed	to	recruiting	the	best	
available	people	into	the	organisation	and	
remunerating	them	appropriately.

Recruitment	practices	are	in	accordance	
with the Government guidelines to ensure 
that	the	Institute	meets	the	requirements	
of the Public Sector Management and 
Employment Act 1998. Recruitment 
processes	are	detailed	in	the	Institute’s	
Recruitment Policy and associated 
procedures.

The	Institute	observes	an	Employee	Code	of	
Conduct Procedure detailing the minimum 
obligations	and	standards	of	personal	
behaviour	and	conduct	expected	of	staff	
employed	by	the	Institute.	The	purpose	of	
the code is to promote adherence to the 
public sector values prescribed in the Public 
Administration Act 2004. The code outlines 
standards of behaviour rather than detailed 
policies and procedures.

All	new	staff	to	the	Institute	are	provided	
with a copy of the Code of Conduct 
for Victorian Public Sector Employees 
Handbook	at	the	point	of	induction.

Workforce information 
Average	Equivalent	Full	Time	(EFT)	Staffing	Statistics: 

Classification 2012 2013

Executive 2.2 2.0

Teaching 233.6 233.5

PACCT 120.7 116.1

Casuals/Sessional 69.7 138.3

Others	(Agreed	Contracts) 47.2 43.9

Totals 473.4 534.0

Note: The information above represents an average equivalent full-time (EFT) staffing figure for the 
2012 and 2013 calendar years, i.e. the sum of the monthly figures divided by 12.

Workforce	data	separated	by	gender: 

Classification Female Male

Teaching 156 129

PACCT 133 30

Casuals/Sessional 161 130

Others	(Agreed	Contracts) 19 29

Workforce	data	separated	by	age:

Classification
Under 

21 21-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 Over	61

Teaching 0 10 45 89 105 36

PACCT 0 19 33 47 45 19

Casuals/Sessional 16 27 51 75 80 42

Others              
(Agreed	Contracts)

0 0 6 19 21 2
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summary of Financial results
A	summary	of	the	financial	results	of	the	Institute	with	comparative	results	for	the	previous	five	years	appears	in	the	following	table:

Financial indicator 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Operating	Revenue	
[Excludes capital contributions, includes revaluation 
investment properties]

$115,603,000 72,766,000 53,493,000 53,141,000 48,132,000

Operating	Surplus/(Deficit)	
[Excludes capital contributions, depreciation and profit/
loss on asset disposals]

$16,553,000 14,507,000 (1,452,191) 2,103,000 3,268,000

Liquidity	Ratio	
[Current Assets / Current Liabilities adjusted to exclude 
long-term benefits]

4.02:1 4.81 2.88 3.08 2.62

The	increase	in	the	operating	revenue	in	2013	reflects	increased	delivery	of	student	contact	hours	and	resulting	increase	in	Victorian	
Government contestability funding, third-party delivery of specialist programs being a major contributor.  The improvement in the 
operating	result	for	2013	reflects	third-party	program	delivery	efficiencies.

Consultants 

The	Institute	engaged	a	total	of	eleven	consultants	during	2013;	costs	totalled	$89,711.13	
excl GST. Details of individual consultancies can be made available on request.

There were seven consultants engaged during 2013 that were less than $10,000 totalling 
$16,708.63 excl GST. There were four consultants engaged during 2013 that were in excess 
of $10,000 as follows: 

Consultant/Project Start to End Date

Total 
approved	

project	fee Expenditure

GHD PTY
Asbestos audit

22/08/2013	to	
20/12/2013

$15,250 $15,250

Greater	Shepparton	City	Council	
SPC Ardmona KidsTown Food 
Hub project

19/12/2013	to	
19/12/2013

$15,000 $15,000

POP Design  
Design documentation

03/09/2013	to	
31/10/2013

$11,985 $11,985

Vincent	Chrisp	Adams	Architects
Architectural services

28/02/2013	to	
12/12/2013

$30,767.5 $30,767.5

There are no future expenditure commitments with the above consultants.

GOTAFE contracted an external auditor, Burns, Counter & Associates, to undertake reviews 
of	19	qualifications	against	elements	in	Standards	15	and	16	of	the	(ASQA)	Standards	for	
NVR	Registered	Training	Organisations.	The	reviews,	conducted	between	May	and	August,	
and subsequent audit reports, proved most valuable to teaching centres and management 
of where improvements could be made. 

The GOTAFE Annual Report is published on GOTAFE’s public website and the above table 
is included. GOTAFE’s 2013 disclosure on consultants cannot be compared to previous 
disclosures	given	the	revised	definition	of	consultants.

attestation on 
compliance
Attestation	on	compliance	with	the	
Australian/New	Zealand	Risk	Management	
Standard.

I, Michael Tehan, Chair of the 
Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE 
(GOTAFE) Board, certify that the 
Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE 
(GOTAFE) has risk management 
processes in place consistent with 
the Australian/New Zealand Risk 
Management Standard (or equivalent 
designated standard) and an internal 
control system is in place that 
enables the executive to understand, 
manage and satisfactorily control 
risk exposures. The audit committee 
verifies this assurance and that the 
risk profile of GOTAFE has been 
critically reviewed within the last 12 
months.

Michael H. Tehan
Chair of the Board
GOTAFE, January 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To	the	Board	Members,	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education

The Statement of Performance

The	accompanying	statement	of	performance	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2013	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	

Technical	and	Further	Education	which	comprises	the	statement,	the	related	notes	and	the	declaration	of	the	Chair	of	the	

Board,	Chief	Executive	Officer,	and	Chief	Finance	and	Accounting	Officer	has	been	audited.	

The Board Members’ Responsibility for the Statement of Performance

The	Board	Members	of	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education	are	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	

fair	presentation	of	the	statement	of	performance	in	accordance	with	the Financial Management Act 1994 and for such internal 

control	as	the	Board	Members	determine	is	necessary	to	enable	the	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	the	statement	of	

performance that is free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the statement of performance based on the 

audit,	which	has	been	conducted	in	accordance	with	Australian	Auditing	Standards.	Those	standards	require	compliance	with	

relevant	ethical	requirements	relating	to	audit	engagements	and	that	the	audit	be	planned	and	performed	to	obtain	reasonable	

assurance about whether the statement of performance is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the statement 

of performance. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement	of	the	statement	of	performance,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.	In	making	those	risk	assessments,	consideration	

is	given	to	internal	control	relevant	to	the	entity’s	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	the	statement	of	performance	in	order	

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness	of	the	entity’s	internal	control.	An	audit	also	includes	evaluating	the	overall	presentation	of	the	statement	of	

performance.

I	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	I	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	my	audit	opinion.

Independence

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to 

direction	by	any	person	about	the	way	in	which	his	powers	and	responsibilities	are	to	be	exercised.	In	conducting	the	audit,	the	

Auditor-General,	his	staff	and	delegates	complied	with	all	applicable	independence	requirements	of	the	Australian	accounting	

profession.

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street, 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 
Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au 
Website	www.audit.vic.gov.au	

Auditing in the Public Interest
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Opinion

In	my	opinion,	the	statement	of	performance	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education	in	respect	of	the	

31	December	2013	financial	year	presents	fairly,	in	all	material	respects,	in	accordance	with	the	Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Performance Statement

This	auditor’s	report	relates	to	the	statement	of	performance	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education	

for	the	year	ended	31	December	2013	included	both	in	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education’s	annual	

report	and	on	the	website.	The	Board	Members	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education	are	responsible	

for	the	integrity	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education’s	website.	I	have	not	been	engaged	to	report	

on	the	integrity	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education’s	website.	The	auditor’s	report	refers	only	to	

the	subject	matter	described	above.	It	does	not	provide	an	opinion	on	any	other	information	which	may	have	been	hyperlinked	to/

from	these	statements.	If	users	of	the	statement	of	performance	are	concerned	with	the	inherent	risks	arising	from	publication	on	

a	website,	they	are	advised	to	refer	to	the	hard	copy	of	the	audited	statement	of	performance	to	confirm	the	information	contained	

in the website version of the statement of performance.

MELBOURNE John Doyle

18 March 2014 Auditor-General

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street, 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 
Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au 
Website	www.audit.vic.gov.au	

Auditing in the Public Interest
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In	our	opinion,	the	accompanying	Statement	of	Performance	of	the	Goulburn	Ovens	Institute	of	Technical	and	Further	Education,	in	respect	
of the year ended 31 December 2013, is presented fairly in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Financial 
Reporting	Directions	issued	under	that	legislation.

The Statement outlines the performance indicators as determined by the responsible Minister, pre-determined targets and the actual 
results	for	the	year	against	these	indicators,	and	an	explanation	of	any	significant	variance	between	the	actual	results	and	performance	
targets.

At	the	date	of	signing,	we	are	not	aware	of	any	circumstance	that	would	render	any	particulars	included	in	the	Statement	to	be	misleading	
or inaccurate.

Thomas Pamminger
Chief	Finance	Officer

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014

Michael Tehan
Chair of the Board

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014

Paul	Culpan
Chief	Executive	Officer	 	

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014

Statement Of Performance
For the year ended 31 december 2013
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KPI Definition
2013 

Target
2013 

Actual
2012 

Actual

2013
%	variance	
to target

2013
%	variance	
2012 actual Comments

stratEgIc aLIgnMEnt

Participation	of	15	-	24	
year olds

Number of Students within the age group Target not 
predetermined

8,750 8,346 - 4.84% No target was set for this cohort but the increase in the number of students aged 15-24 
between	2012	and	2013	reflects	the	effort	the	Institute	is	making	to	attract	and	retain	
students	undertaking	pre-apprenticeship,	apprenticeship,	traineeship,	disengaged	youth	
and	VCAL	programs.	The	activity	generated	through	arrangements	with	third	party	
contractors has also increased training to this cohort. 

Participation	of	25	-	64	
year olds

Number of Students within the age group Target not 
predetermined

11,605 11,761 - -1.33% No target was set for this cohort. The number of students aged 25-64 between 2012 
and	2013	has	been	largely	maintained.	Some	of	this	activity	has	been	generated	through	
relationships	established	with	third	party	contractors.	

traInIng outcoMEs

Module	Load	Completion	
Rate

Scheduled	hours	assessed	and	passed	or	satisfactorily	completed	
/	Total	scheduled	hours	reported	less	hours	recorded	with	Credit	
Transfer	and	continuing	studies	outcomes.

Target not 
predetermined

Data not available 89.90% - - The	Institute	has	implemented	retention	strategies	at	the	student	support	level,	which	
have	resulted	in	a	steady	improvement	in	retention	and	completion	rates	in	recent	years,	
from	82%	in	2008.		However,	implementation	of	the	new	Student	Management	System	in	
2013 does not provide this KPI measure.

Student	Satisfaction Of	the	student	surveys	returned,	the	proportion	of	graduates	satisfied	
with the overall quality of training.

90.00% 89.40% 84.00% -0.67% 6.43% A result just short of target, but higher than the overall Victorian TAFE’s result of 86.5%. 
The	Institute	continues	to	implement	strategies	to	improve	the	quality	of	training	to	
students.

FInancIaL ManagEMEnt

Total	Cost	per	Student	
Contact	Hour	(SCH)

Total	funded	expenditure	(excluding	Capital)	/	Total	SCH Target not 
predetermined

$8.08 $9.20 - -12.17% During	2013	the	Institute	has	continued	to	improve	productivity	and	to	drive	a	more	
efficient	delivery	model.	The	significant	increase	in	SCH,	whilst	not	proportionally	
increasing expenditure, has given an excellent result in this category.  

Working	Capital	Ratio Current	Assets	/	Current	Liabilities	(adjusted	to	exclude	long-term	
benefits	in	current	liability	measured	at	present	value)

> 1.5 : 1 4.02:1 4.81:1 - -16.42% Whilst	a	reduction	from	the	high	level	of	2012,	this	is	still	a	sound	result	for	GOTAFE	in	
an environment with changes to funding arrangements for the TAFE sector becoming 
effective	in	2013.		The	Board	recognises	the	extreme	importance	of	GOTAFE	having	
adequate	cash	reserves	to	meet	operational	requirements.	

Net	Operating	Margin Funded	Operating	Surplus	/	Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital) 4.12% 14.32% 19.94% 247.57% -28.18% The extremely sound performance against target in 2013 largely resulted from 
a	significant	increase	Government-funded	training	whilst	restricting	increases	in	
expenditure.  However, changes to funding arrangements for the TAFE sector in 2013 and 
cost	of	third-party	delivery	contributed	to	the	reduction	from	2012	to	2013.

Fee	for	Service	Revenue Fee	for	Service	Revenue	/	Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital) 10.32% 7.35% 11.88% -28.78% -38.13% Whilst	overall	Fee	for	Service	Income	generated	in	2013	was	only	1.8%	lower	than	2012,	
the	significant	growth	in	Government	Funded	training	has	resulted	in	a	larger	percentage	
reduction	in	this	category.			

organIsatIonaL ManagEMEnt

Revenue	per	EFT	Staff Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital)	/	Average	EFT	Staff $171,387 $247,815 $153,707 44.59% 61.23% The	significant	growth	in	Government-funded	activity,	and	with	staffing	levels	reduced,	a	
far	higher	ratio	has	been	recorded.	

Student Contact Hours Total number of student contact hours delivered against contracted 
delivery

Target not 
predetermined

12,260,252 6,334,598 - 93.54% This has been an outstanding result for GOTAFE with strategies implemented to maintain 
increases	in	training	delivery	activity	being	very	successful,	particularly	with	third-party	
specialist delivery.

EnVIronMEnt

Energy	Consumption Percentage	change	in	energy	consumption	for	Electricity,	Gas,	LPG,	
Green	Power	and	Heating	Oil:

Electricity Target not 
predetermined

-5.6% 1.1% - -609.09% The	Institute	continues	to	implement	energy	saving	measures,	with	seasonal	conditions	
further	contributing	to	the	energy	usage	reductions.	Changes	to	Government	
requirements	has	resulted	in	the	levels	of	Green	Power	being	purchased	by	the	Institute	
being terminated in May 2012.

Natural gas -16.1% 18.7% - -186.10%

Green Power Electricity - 0.0% 11.4% - -100.00%

statement of Performance
For the year ended 31 december 2013
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KPI Definition
2013 

Target
2013 

Actual
2012 

Actual

2013
%	variance	
to target

2013
%	variance	
2012 actual Comments

stratEgIc aLIgnMEnt

Participation	of	15	-	24	
year olds

Number of Students within the age group Target not 
predetermined

8,750 8,346 - 4.84% No target was set for this cohort but the increase in the number of students aged 15-24 
between	2012	and	2013	reflects	the	effort	the	Institute	is	making	to	attract	and	retain	
students	undertaking	pre-apprenticeship,	apprenticeship,	traineeship,	disengaged	youth	
and	VCAL	programs.	The	activity	generated	through	arrangements	with	third	party	
contractors has also increased training to this cohort. 

Participation	of	25	-	64	
year olds

Number of Students within the age group Target not 
predetermined

11,605 11,761 - -1.33% No target was set for this cohort. The number of students aged 25-64 between 2012 
and	2013	has	been	largely	maintained.	Some	of	this	activity	has	been	generated	through	
relationships	established	with	third	party	contractors.	

traInIng outcoMEs

Module	Load	Completion	
Rate

Scheduled	hours	assessed	and	passed	or	satisfactorily	completed	
/	Total	scheduled	hours	reported	less	hours	recorded	with	Credit	
Transfer	and	continuing	studies	outcomes.

Target not 
predetermined

Data not available 89.90% - - The	Institute	has	implemented	retention	strategies	at	the	student	support	level,	which	
have	resulted	in	a	steady	improvement	in	retention	and	completion	rates	in	recent	years,	
from	82%	in	2008.		However,	implementation	of	the	new	Student	Management	System	in	
2013 does not provide this KPI measure.

Student	Satisfaction Of	the	student	surveys	returned,	the	proportion	of	graduates	satisfied	
with the overall quality of training.

90.00% 89.40% 84.00% -0.67% 6.43% A result just short of target, but higher than the overall Victorian TAFE’s result of 86.5%. 
The	Institute	continues	to	implement	strategies	to	improve	the	quality	of	training	to	
students.

FInancIaL ManagEMEnt

Total	Cost	per	Student	
Contact	Hour	(SCH)

Total	funded	expenditure	(excluding	Capital)	/	Total	SCH Target not 
predetermined

$8.08 $9.20 - -12.17% During	2013	the	Institute	has	continued	to	improve	productivity	and	to	drive	a	more	
efficient	delivery	model.	The	significant	increase	in	SCH,	whilst	not	proportionally	
increasing expenditure, has given an excellent result in this category.  

Working	Capital	Ratio Current	Assets	/	Current	Liabilities	(adjusted	to	exclude	long-term	
benefits	in	current	liability	measured	at	present	value)

> 1.5 : 1 4.02:1 4.81:1 - -16.42% Whilst	a	reduction	from	the	high	level	of	2012,	this	is	still	a	sound	result	for	GOTAFE	in	
an environment with changes to funding arrangements for the TAFE sector becoming 
effective	in	2013.		The	Board	recognises	the	extreme	importance	of	GOTAFE	having	
adequate	cash	reserves	to	meet	operational	requirements.	

Net	Operating	Margin Funded	Operating	Surplus	/	Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital) 4.12% 14.32% 19.94% 247.57% -28.18% The extremely sound performance against target in 2013 largely resulted from 
a	significant	increase	Government-funded	training	whilst	restricting	increases	in	
expenditure.  However, changes to funding arrangements for the TAFE sector in 2013 and 
cost	of	third-party	delivery	contributed	to	the	reduction	from	2012	to	2013.

Fee	for	Service	Revenue Fee	for	Service	Revenue	/	Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital) 10.32% 7.35% 11.88% -28.78% -38.13% Whilst	overall	Fee	for	Service	Income	generated	in	2013	was	only	1.8%	lower	than	2012,	
the	significant	growth	in	Government	Funded	training	has	resulted	in	a	larger	percentage	
reduction	in	this	category.			

organIsatIonaL ManagEMEnt

Revenue	per	EFT	Staff Total	Revenue	(excl	Capital)	/	Average	EFT	Staff $171,387 $247,815 $153,707 44.59% 61.23% The	significant	growth	in	Government-funded	activity,	and	with	staffing	levels	reduced,	a	
far	higher	ratio	has	been	recorded.	

Student Contact Hours Total number of student contact hours delivered against contracted 
delivery

Target not 
predetermined

12,260,252 6,334,598 - 93.54% This has been an outstanding result for GOTAFE with strategies implemented to maintain 
increases	in	training	delivery	activity	being	very	successful,	particularly	with	third-party	
specialist delivery.

EnVIronMEnt

Energy	Consumption Percentage	change	in	energy	consumption	for	Electricity,	Gas,	LPG,	
Green	Power	and	Heating	Oil:

Electricity Target not 
predetermined

-5.6% 1.1% - -609.09% The	Institute	continues	to	implement	energy	saving	measures,	with	seasonal	conditions	
further	contributing	to	the	energy	usage	reductions.	Changes	to	Government	
requirements	has	resulted	in	the	levels	of	Green	Power	being	purchased	by	the	Institute	
being terminated in May 2012.

Natural gas -16.1% 18.7% - -186.10%

Green Power Electricity - 0.0% 11.4% - -100.00%
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Disclosure Index

REPORT OF OPERATIONS PAGE #

1 FRD 22D Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister 2

2 FRD 22D Objectives,	functions,	powers	and	duties 2-20, 23

3 FRD 22D Nature	and	range	of	services	provided	including	communities	served 2-20

MANAGEMENT AND STRUCTURE

4 FRD 22D Organisational	structure	and	chart,	including	accountabilities 24-27

5 FRD 22D Names of Board members 21-23

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

6 FRD 03A Accounting	for	Dividends	 N/A

7 FRD 07A Early	adoption	of	authoritative	accounting	pronouncements Financial Report 
18

8 FRD 10 Disclosure Index 38-41

9 FRD15B Executive	officer	disclosures Financial Report 
39-43

10 FRD 17A Long	Service	leave	wage	inflation	and	discount	rates Financial Report 
15-16

11 FRD19 Private provision of public infrastructure N/A

12 FRD 20A Accounting	for	State	motor	vehicle	lease	arrangements	prior	to	1	Feb	2004 N/A

13 FRD22 & SD 
4.2(k)

Operational	and	budgetary	objectives,	performance	against	objectives	and	achievements 28-32, 36-37, 
3-14

14 FRD 22D Occupational	health	and	safety	statement	including	performance	indicator	and	
performance against those indicators

30

15 FRD 22D Workforce	data	for	current	and	previous	reporting	period	including	a	statement	on	
employment and conduct principles

31

16 FRD 22D Summary	of	the	financial	results	for	the	year	including	previous	4	year	comparisons 32

17 FRD 22D Significant	changes	in	financial	position	during	the	year 32

18 FRD 22D Major	changes	or	factors	affecting	performance 32

19 FRD 22D Post-balance	sheet	date	events	likely	to	significantly	affect	subsequent	reporting	periods Financial Report 
37

20 FRD 22D Summary	of	application	and	operation	of	the	Freedom	of	Information	Act	1982 28

21 FRD 22D Statement of compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 
1993

29

22 FRD 22D Statement	on	National	Competition	Policy 28

23 FRD 22D Summary	of	application	and	operation	of	the	Protected	Disclosure	Act	2012 29

24 FRD 22D Summary of Environmental Performance. 15-17

25 FRD 22C Details	of	consultancies	over	$10,000	(refer	to	FRD	for	information	required) 32

26 FRD 22C Details	of	consultancies	under	$10,000	(refer	to	FRD	for	information	required) 32

27 FRD 22D List	of	certain	other	information	available	on	request	(as	specified	in	the	FRD) 30-31
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28 FRD 24C Reporting	of	office	based	environmental	impacts 15-17

29 FRD 25A Victorian	Industry	Participation	Policy	Disclosures N/A

30 FRD 26A Accounting	for	VicFleet	motor	vehicle	lease	arrangements	on	or	after	1	February	2004	 N/A

31 FRD 29 Workforce	Data	Disclosures	on	the	public	service	employee	workforce 31

32 FRD30A Standard requirements for the design and print of annual reports 29

33 SD 4.5.5 Risk	Management	compliance	attestation 32

34 SD	4.2	(g) Qualitative	and	Quantitative	information	to	be	included 2-21

35 SD	4.2	(h) Statement	that	Report	prepared	in	accordance	with	Financial	Reporting	Directions Financial Report 4

36 SD	4.2	(j) Sign-off	by	member	of	Responsible	Body 3, Financial 
Report 4

37 CG	10	(clause	27) Major	Commercial	Activities 30

38 CG	12	(clause	33) Controlled	Entities Financial Report 9

39 SD	4.2	(a) The	financial	statements	must	be	prepared	in	accordance	with:

•	 Australian	accounting	standards	(AAS	and	AASB	standards)	and	other	mandatory	
professional	reporting	requirements	(including	urgent	issues	group	consensus	
views);

•	 Financial	Reporting

•	 business rules.

Financial Report 4

40 SD	4.2	(b) The	financial	statements	are	to	comprise	the	following:

•	 income statement; Financial Report 5

•	 balance sheet; Financial Report 6

•	 statement of recognised income and expense; and Financial Report 
20-22

•	 cash	flows	statement;	and Financial Report 8

•	 notes	to	the	financial	statements. Financial Report 
9-51

OTHER REQUIREMENTS UNDER STANDING DIRECTION 4.2 Financial Report

41 SD	4.2	(c) The	financial	statements	must	where	applicable	be	signed	and	dated	by	the	Accountable	
Officer,	CFAO	and	a	member	of	the	Responsible	Body,	stating	whether,	in	their	opinion:

•	 the	financial	statements	present	fairly	the	financial	transactions	during	the	reporting	
period	and	the	financial	position	at	the	end	of	the	period;

•	 the	financial	statements	are	prepared	in	accordance	with	this	direction	and	
applicable	Financial	Reporting	Directions;	and	

•	 the	financial	statements	comply	with	applicable	Australian	accounting	standards	
(AAS	and	AASB	standards)	and	other	mandatory	professional	reporting	
requirements	(including	urgent	issues	group	consensus	views).	

 4

42 SD	4.2	(d) Rounding of amounts. Financial Report 
17

43 SD	4.2	(e) Review	and	sign	off	by	Audit	Committee	or	responsible	body Financial Report 4

44 SD	4.2	(f) Compliance with DTF Model Financial report Financial Report 9
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OTHER REQUIREMENTS AS PER FINANCIAL REPORTING DIRECTIONS IN NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - REFER TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Report

45 FRD 9A Disclosure	of	administered	assets	and	liabilities	 N/A

46 FRD 11 Disclosure	of	ex-gratia	payments Financial Report 
52

47 FRD 21B Disclosures	of	Responsible	Persons,	Executive	Officer	and	Other	Personnel	(Contractors	
with	significant	management	responsibilities)	in	the	Financial	Report

Financial Report 
39-43

48 FRD 101 First	time	adoption Financial Report 
17

49 FRD 102 Inventories Financial Report 
1, 13-14, 17, 19, 
25, 34

50 FRD 103D Non-current physical assets Financial Report 
7, 14-15, 23

51 FRD 104 Foreign currency Financial Report 
16, 31, 44-45

52 FRD 105A Borrowing costs Financial Report 
11

53 FRD 106 Impairment of assets Financial Report 
12-14

54 FRD 109 Intangible assets Financial Report 
6, 11, 12, 19, 23, 
30

55 FRD 107 Investment	properties Financial Report 
15, 19, 21, 22, 
29, 34

56 FRD 110 Cash	flow	statements Financial Report 8

57 FRD 112C Defined	benefit	superannuation	obligations Financial Report 
11, 17, 38

58 FRD 113 Investment	in	subsidiaries,	jointly	controlled	entities	and	associates N/A

59 FRD 114A Financial	instruments	–	general	government	entities	and	public	non-financial	
corporations

Financial Report 
44-48, 50

60 FRD 115 Non-current	physical	assets	–	first	time	adoption N/A

61 FRD 119 Contributions	by	owners N/A

62 FRD 119A Transfers through contributed capital Financial Report 
16, 33

63 FRD 120G Accounting	and	reporting	pronouncements	applicable	to	the	reporting	period Financial Report 
18

64 FRD 121 Infrastructure assets N/A

PART 7 OF THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ACT 1994 (FMA)

65 FMA	49	(a) Must	contain	such	information	as	required	by	the	Minister. Financial Report 4

66 FMA	49	(b) Must be prepared in a manner and form approved by the Minister. Financial Report 4

67 FMA	49	(c) Must	present	fairly	the	financial	transactions	of	an	institute	during	the	financial	year	to	
which they relate.

Financial Report 
2-4

68 FMA	49	(d) Must	present	fairly	the	financial	position	of	an	institute	as	at	the	end	of	the	year. Financial Report 
2-4

69 FMA	49	(e) Must	be	certified	by	the	Accountable	Officer	for	an	institute	in	the	manner	approved	by	
the Minister.

Financial Report 4
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COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LEGISLATION AND SUBORDINATE INSTRUMENTS

70 Legislation The	TAFE	institute	Annual	Report	must	contain	a	statement	that	it	complies	with	all	
relevant	legislation	and	subordinate	instruments,	including,	but	not	limited	to,	the	
following:

•	 Education	and	Training	Reform	Act	2006	(ETRA)

•	 TAFE	institute	constitution

•	 Directions	of	the	Minister	for	Higher	Education	and	Skills	(or	predecessors)

•	 TAFE	institute	Commercial	Guidelines

•	 TAFE	institute	Strategic	Planning	Guidelines

•	 Public	Administration	Act	2004

•	 Freedom	of	Information	Act	1982

•	 Building Act 1983

•	 Protected Disclosure Act 2012

•	 Victorian	Industry	Participation	Policy	Act	2003

28

71 ETRA s 3.2.8 Statement	about	compulsory	non-academic	fees,	subscriptions	and	charges	payable	in	
2013.

29

PRESENTATION OF REPORTING AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
Audited	Statements	of	Key	Performance	Measures	(KPIs)	must	include	an	audited	statement	of	performance	for	certain	
KPIs.

72 FRD 27B Reporting	and	performance	should	be	presented	using	KPIs	and	a	signed	Performance	
Management	Certificate	should	also	be	completed.	(The	following	11	are	the	mandatory	
KPIs)

1. Participation	of	15-24	year	olds.

2. Participation	of	25-64	year	olds.

3. Module	Load	Completion	Rate.

4. Student	satisfaction.

5. Total	Cost	per	Student	Contact	Hour	(SCH).

6. Working	Capital	Ratio.

7. Net	Operating	Margin.

8. Fee for Service Revenue.

9. Revenue	per	EFT	Staff.

10. Student	Contact	Hours	(SCH).

11. Energy	Consumption.

35-37

OVERSEAS OPERATIONS OF VICTORIAN TAFE INSTITUTES

73 PAEC and 
 VAGO  
(June	2003	
Special Review 
item	3.110)

•	 financial	and	other	information	on	initiatives	taken	or	strategies	relating	to	the	
institute’s	overseas	operations.

•	 nature	of	strategic	and	operational	risks	for	overseas	operations;

•	 strategies	established	to	manage	such	risks	of	overseas	operations;

•	 performance	measures	and	targets	formulated	for	overseas	operations;

•	 the	extent	to	which	expected	outcomes	for	overseas	operations	have	been	
achieved.

N/A



42    |    gotaFE 2013 annuaL rEPort

notes



gotafe.vic.edu.au  

1300 GOTAFE (1300 468233)

tec



2 013
Financial 

Report



   1

Contents

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Board members on 17 March 2014.  

The Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE has the power to amend and reissue the financial report. 

 

Victorian Auditor-General’s Report     2

Certifications      4

Comprehensive operating statement    5

Balance sheet      6

Statement of changes in equity    7

Cash flow statement     8

Notes to the financial statements    9

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies  9

Note 2 Income from transactions    20

Note 3 Expenses from transactions    21

Note 4 Other economic flows included in net result  23

Note 5 Cash and cash equivalents    23

Note 6 Receivables     24

Note 7 Investments and other financial assets   25

Note 8 Inventories     25

Note 9 Property, plant and equipment   26

Note 10 Biological assets     28

Note 11 Investment properties    29

Note 12 Intangible assets     30

Note 13 Other non-financial assets    30

Note 14 Payables      31

Note 15 Provisions     32

Note 16 Equity      33

Note 17 Cash flow information    34

Note 18 Commitments     35

Note 19 Leased assets     36

Note 20 Contingencies     36

Note 21 Economic dependency    36

Note 22 Subsequent events     37

Note 23 Remuneration of auditors    37

Note 24 Superannuation     38

Note 25 Key management personnel disclosures (Part I)  39

Note 25 Key management personnel disclosures (Part II)  42

Note 26 Related parties     43

Note 27 Institute details     44

Note 28 Financial instruments (Part I)    44

Note 28  Financial instruments (Part II)    47

Note 28 Financial instruments (Part III)   48

Note 28 Financial instruments (Part IV)   50

Note 29 Ex-gratia payments     51



2    |    Gotafe 2013 fINaNCIaL RepoRt

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board Members, Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education

The Financial Report

The accompanying financial report for the year ended 31 December 2013 of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and 

Further Education which comprises comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash 

flow statement, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the 

declaration of the Chair of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Finance and Accounting Officer has been audited.

The Board Members’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Board Members’ of Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education are responsible for the preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting 

requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board Members’ determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit, which 

has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant 

ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 

The audit procedures selected depend on judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by the Board Members’, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street, 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 
Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au 
Website www.audit.vic.gov.au 

Auditing in the Public Interest
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Independence

The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to 

direction by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, 

the Auditor-General, his staff and delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian 

accounting profession.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Goulburn Ovens 

Institute of Technical and Further Education as at 31 December 2013 and of its financial performance and its cash flows 

for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting 

requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education for 

the year ended 31 December 2013 included both in the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education’s 

annual report and on the website. The Board Members of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education 

are responsible for the integrity of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education’s website. I have not 

been engaged to report on the integrity of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of Technical and Further Education’s website. The 

auditor’s report refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information 

which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the financial report are concerned with the 

inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial 

report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

MELBOURNE   John Doyle

18 March 2014 Auditor-General

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Level 24, 35 Collins Street, 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000 
Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 
Email comments@audit.vic.gov.au 
Website www.audit.vic.gov.au 

Auditing in the Public Interest
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Declaration by Chair of the 
Board, Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer 
  

We certify that the attached financial statements for the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE has been prepared in accordance 
with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Managment Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions issued under that 
legislation, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, 
statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to and forming part of the financial report, presents fairly the 
financial transactions during the year ended 31 December 2013 and financial position of the Institute as at 31 December 2013.

At the date of signing this financial report, we are not aware of any circumstance that would render any particulars included 
in the financial report to be misleading or inaccurate. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to 
pay its debts as and when they became due and payable. 

The Chair of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer sign this declaration as delegates of, and in accordance with a resolution 
of, the Board of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE.   

Thomas Pamminger
Chief Finance Officer

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014

Michael Tehan
Chair of the Board

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014

Paul Culpan
Chief Executive Officer  

Wangaratta, 17 March 2014
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Comprehensive Operating Statement 
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Note
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Continuing operations

Income from transactions

Government contributions - operating 2(a)(i)  97,546  56,775 

Government contributions - capital 2(a)(ii)  1,142  1,460 

Sales of goods and services 2(b)  16,131  14,656 

Interest 2(c)  1,073  766 

Other income 2(d)  783  992 

Total income from transactions  116,675  74,649 

Expenses from transactions 

Employee benefits 3(a)  85,425  47,172 

Depreciation  3(b)  4,548  3,835 

Grants and other transfers 3(c)  68  83 

Supplies and services 3(d)  8,287  6,410 

Other operating expenses 3(e)  5,386  5,387

Total expenses from transactions  103,714  62,887

Net result from transactions (net operating balance)  12,961  11,762 

Other economic flows included in net result

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 4(a)  49  183 

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables/
payables 

4(b)  -    (473)

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 4(c)  73  21 

     Total other economic flows included in net result  122  (269)

          Net result from continuing operations  13,083  11,493 

Net result  13,083  11,493 

other eConomiC Flows – other Comprehensive inCome

items that will not be reClassiFieD to net result

Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus 16  -    8,727 

Total other economic flows – Other comprehensive income  -    8,727 

Comprehensive result  13,083  20,220 

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2013

Note
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Assets

Financial assets

Cash and deposits 5  12,226  5,997 

Receivables 6  15,183  7,458 

Investments and other financial assets 7  26,515  18,241   

Total financial assets  53,924  31,696 

Non-financial assets

Inventories 8  98  101 

Property, plant and equipment 9  84,922  86,654 

Biological assets 10  -   113

Investment properties 11  1,700  1,630 

Intangible assets 12  12,103 -

Other non financial assets 13  536  510 

Total non-financial assets  99,359  89,008 

Total assets  153,283  120,704 

LiAbiLities

Payables 14  11,412  4,494 

Provisions 15  6,892  6,417 

Total liabilities  18,304  10,911 

Net assets  134,979  109,793 

equity

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 (b)  42,601 29,518

Physical asset revaluation surpluss 16 (c)  46,298 46,298

Contributed capital 16 (a)  46,080  33,977 

Net worth   134,979  109,793 

Commitments for expenditure 18  464  434 

Contingent assets 20  383  -   

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

                                                 Changes due to:

Note

equity at  
1 Jan 
2013

$’000

total 
comprehensive 

result

$’000

transactions 
with owners in 

their capacity 
as owners 

$’000

equity at  
31 dec 

2013

$’000

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 (b)  29,518  13,083  -    42,601

accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year  29,518   13,083  -    42,601 

Contributed capital 16 (a)  33,977  -    12,103  46,080 

Contribution by owners at the end of the year  33,977  -    12,103  46,080 

Physical assets revaluation reserve 16 (c)  46,298  -    -    46,298 

asset revaluation reserve at the end of the year  46,298  -    -    46,298 

total equity at the end of the year  109,793   13,083  12,103  134,979

Changes due to:

Note

equity at  
1 Jan 
2012

$’000

total 
comprehensive 

result

$’000

transactions 
with owners in 

their capacity 
as owners

 $’000

equity at  
31 dec 

2012

$’000

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 16 (b)  18,025  11,493  -    29,518 

accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year  18,025  11,493  -    29,518 

Contributed capital 16 (a)  33,977  -    -    33,977 

Contribution by owners at the end of the year  33,977  -    -    33,977 

Physical assets revaluation reserve 16 (c)  37,571  8,727  -    46,298 

asset revaluation reserve at the end of the year  37,571  8,727  -    46,298 

total equity at the end of the year  89,573  20,220  -    109,793 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Note
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Cash Flows From operating aCtivities

Receipts

Government contributions - operating  99,438 57,499

Government contributions - capital  990  1,397 

User fees and charges received  13,281 12,286

Goods and services tax recovered from the ATO  5  58 

Interest received  1,019  606 

Other receipts  2,808 3,032

Total receipts  117,541 74,878

Payments

Payments to suppliers and employees  (97,160)  (61,300)

Goods and services tax paid to the ATO  (3,548)  (2,802)

Other payments  (68)  (83)

Total payments  (100,776)  (64,185)

Net cash flows from operating activities 17 (a)  16,765 10,693

Cash Flows From investing aCtivities

Payments for investments  (9,274)  (19,241)

Proceeds from sale of investments  1,000  1,000 

Purchases of non-financial assets  (2,275)  (2,759)

Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets  13  4,871 

Net cash used in investing activities  (10,536)  (16,129)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  6,229  (5,436)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  5,997  11,433 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5  12,226  5,997 

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The annual financial statements 
represent the audited general purpose 
financial statements for  Goulburn 
Ovens Institute of TAFE.

1.01
statement of 
compliance
These general purpose financial 
statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 (FMA) and 
applicable Australian Accounting 
Standards (AAS) which include 
Interpretations, issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards 
Board (AASB). In particular, they are 
presented in a manner consistent with 
the requirements of the AASB 1049 
Whole of Government and General 
Government Sector Financial Reporting.

For the purposes of preparing financial 
statements, the Institute is classed 
as a not for profit entity.  Where 
appropriate, those AAS paragraphs 
applicable to not-for-profit entities have 
been applied.    

Accounting policies are selected and 
applied in a manner which ensures 
that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance 
and reliability, thereby ensuring that 
the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is 
reported.     
     

1.02
Basis of accounting 
preparation and 
measurement
The accrual basis of accounting has 
been applied in the preparation of 
these financial statements whereby 
assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses are recognised in the 
reporting period to which they relate, 
regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.   

These financial statements are 
presented in Australian dollars, the 
functional and presentation currency of 
the Institute.

In the application of AAS, judgements, 
estimates and assumptions are 
required to be made about the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on professional 
judgements derived from historical 
experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated 
assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised and 
also in future periods that are affected 
by the revision. Judgements made 
by management in the application of 
AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates, 
with a risk of material adjustments in 
the next year, are disclosed throughout 
the notes to the financial statements. 

These financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the 
historical cost convention. Historical 
cost is based on the fair values of the 
consideration given in exchange for 
assets.   

Exceptions to the historical cost 
convention include:  

 Ì  non-financial physical assets which, 
subsequent to acquisition, are 
measured at a revalued amount 
being their fair value at the date of 
the revaluation less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and 
subsequent impairment losses. 
Revaluations are made with 
sufficient regularity to ensure 
that the carrying amounts do not 
materially differ from their fair 
value;    

 Ì  the fair value of an asset other 
than land is generally based on its 
depreciated replacement value; 

 Ì  derivative financial instruments, 
managed investment schemes, 
certain debt securities, investment 
properties after initial recognition, 
which are measured at fair value 
through profit and loss; and

 Ì available-for-sale investments which 
are measured at fair value with 
movements reflected in equity until 
the asset is derecognised.

The accounting policies set out below 
have been applied in preparing the 
financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2013 and the 
comparative information presented for 
the year ended 31 December 2012.

The following is a summary of the 
material accounting policies adopted by 
the Institute in the preparation of the 
financial report. The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied unless 
otherwise stated.    
   

1.03
Reporting entity
The financial statements cover the 
Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE as an 
individual reporting entity. The Institute 
is a TAFE Provider, established pursuant 
to an Order made by the Governor 
in Council under the Education and 
Training Reform Act 2006 on the 
recommendation of the responsible 
Minister.   

Its principal address is:

 Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE  
 Fryers Street     
 Shepparton, Victoria, Australia 3630

1.04
Basis of consolidation
The financial statements include all the 
activities of the Institute. The Institute 
has no controlled entities.

Note 1

Statement of significant accounting policies
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1.05
events after reporting 
date
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses 
arise from past transactions or other 
past events. Where the transactions 
result from an agreement between 
the Institute and other parties, the 
transactions are only recognised 
when the agreement is irrevocable at 
or before balance date. Adjustments 
are made to amounts recognised in 
the financial statements for events 
which occur after the reporting date 
and before the date the statements 
are authorised for issue, where those 
events provide information about 
conditions which existed at the 
reporting date. Note disclosure is made 
about events between the reporting 
date and the date the statements are 
authorised for issue where the events 
relate to conditions which arose after 
the reporting date and which may have 
a material impact on the results of 
subsequent years.

1.06
Goods and services tax 
(Gst) 
Income, expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the amount of 
associated GST, unless the GST incurred 
is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority. In this case it is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense

Receivables and payables are stated 
inclusive of the amount of GST 
receivable or payable. The net amount 
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the taxation authority is included with 
other receivables or payables in the 
balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash 
flow statement on a gross basis. The 
GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities 
which is recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is classified as 
operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingent assets or 
liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

1.07
Income from 
transactions
Amounts disclosed as income are, 
where applicable, net of returns, 
allowances and duties and taxes. 
Revenue is recognised for each of the 
Institute’s major activities as follows:

Government contributions

Government contributions are 
recognised as revenue in the period 
when the Institute gains control of the 
contributions. Control is recognised 
upon receipt or notification by relevant 
authorities of the right to receive a 
contribution for the current period.

Sale of goods and services

(i) Student fees and charges

Student fees and charges revenue 
is recognised by reference to the 
percentage of services provided. 
Where student fees and charges 
revenue has been clearly received in 
respect of courses or programs to be 
delivered in the following year, any 
non-refundable portion of the fees 
is treated as revenue in the year of 
receipt and the balance as Revenue 
in Advance.

(ii) Fee for Service

Fee for service revenue is recognised 
by reference to the percentage 
completion of each contract, i.e. in 
the reporting period in which the 
services are rendered. Where fee 
for service revenue of a reciprocal 
nature has been clearly received in 
respect of programs or services to be 
delivered in the following year, such 
amounts are disclosed as Revenue in 
Advance. 

(iii) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is 
recognised by the Institute when:

(a) the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods have 
transferred to the buyer;

(b) the Institute retains neither 
continuing managerial involvement 
to the degree usually associated 
with ownership nor effective 
control over the goods sold;

(c) the amount of revenue can be 
reliably measured;

(d) it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the 
Institute and; 

(e) the costs incurred or to 
be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured 
reliably.

Interest

Interest from cash, short-term deposits 
and investments is brought to account 
on a time proportional basis taking into 
account interest rates applicable to the 
financial assets.

Net realised and unrealised gains 
and losses on the revaluation of 
investments do not form part of income 
from transactions, but are reported as 
part of income from other economic 
flows in the net result or as unrealised 
gains and losses taken direct to equity, 
forming part of the total change in net 
worth in the comprehensive result.

Other income

(i) Dividend revenue

Dividend revenue is recognised 
when the right to receive payment is 
established.

(ii) Rental income 

Rental income is recognised on 
a time proportional basis and 
is brought to account when the 
Institute’s right to receive the rental 
is established.

Fair value of assets and services 
received free of charge or for 
nominal consideration

Contributions of resources received 
free of charge or for nominal 
consideration are recognised at their 
fair value when the transferee obtains 
control over them, irrespective of 
whether restrictions or conditions 
are imposed over the use of the 
contributions. Contributions in the form 
of services are only recognised when 
a fair value can be reliably determined 
and the services would have been 
purchased if not donated.
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1.08
expenses from 
transactions

Employee benefits

Expenses for employee benefits are 
recognised when incurred, except for 
contributions in respect of defined 
benefit plans.

Retirement benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution 
plans are expensed when they 
become payable. 

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The amount charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income 
in respect of superannuation 
represents the contributions 
made by the Institute to the 
superannuation plan in respect of 
current services of current Institute 
staff. Superannuation contributions 
are made to the plans based on the 
relevant rules of each plan. 

The Institute does not recognise any 
deferred liability in respect of the 
plan(s) because the Institute has no 
legal or constructive obligation to 
pay future benefits relating to its 
employees; its only obligation is to pay 
superannuation contributions as and 
when they fall due. The Department of 
Treasury and Finance recognises and 
discloses the State’s defined benefit 
liabilities in its finance report.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on property, 
plant and equipment, including 
freehold buildings but excluding land. 
Depreciation is generally calculated 
on a straight-line basis so as to write 
off the net cost or other revalued 
amount of each asset over its expected 
useful life to its estimated residual 
value. Leasehold improvements 
are depreciated over the period of 
the lease or estimated useful life, 
whichever is the shorter, using the 
straight-line method. The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed 
at the end of each annual reporting 
period.

Depreciation methods and rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of asset Method Rate

Buildings Straight 2.5% - 4.0%

Plant & equipment Straight 15.0%

Computer and electronic equipment Straight 15.0% - 34.0%

Furniture and fittings Straight 10.0%

Motor vehicles Straight 25.0%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate 
on an annual basis.  There has been no change in the depreciation methodology for 
2013.  The depreciation rate applied to core strategic buildings increased from 2.0% 
in 2012 to 2.5% for 2013 on advice from an independent valuer. This has the impact 
of increasing depreciation expense by $563,216 in 2013, which is immaterial when 
compared with total expenses and property, plant and equipment.

Interest Expense

Interest expense is recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest expense includes interest on bank overdrafts and short term and long 
term borrowings, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, 
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings and finance lease charges. 

Grants and other transfers

Grants and other transfers to third parties are recognised as an expense in the 
reporting period in which they are paid or payable.

Other operating expenses

Supplies and services

Supplies and services expenses are recognised as an expense in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held-
for-distribution are expensed when distributed.

Fair value of assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal 
consideration

Resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at 
their fair value.

1.09
other economic flows included in net result
Other economic flows measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities 
that do not result from transactions.

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and 
unrealised gains and losses from revaluations, impairments, and disposals of all 
physical assets and intangible assets.

Disposal of non-financial assets

Any gain or loss on disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date control 
of the asset is passed to the buyer and is determined after deducting from the 
proceeds the carrying value of the asset at the time.
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Gain/(loss) arising from fair 
value changes of biological 
assets

Biological assets are measured at fair 
value, and the resultant gain/(loss) is 
reported as an other economic flow.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives (and intangible 
assets not yet available for use) are 
tested annually for impairment (i.e. as 
to whether their carrying value exceeds 
their recoverable amount and so 
require write downs). 

All other assets are assessed annually 
for indications of impairment.

If there is an indication of impairment, 
the assets concerned are tested as to 
whether their carrying value exceeds 
their possible recoverable amount. 
Where an asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
difference is written off by a charge 
to the statement of comprehensive 
income, except to the extent that the 
write down can be debited to an asset 
revaluation reserve amount applicable 
to that class of asset.

If there is an indication that there has 
been a change in the estimate of an 
asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised, 
the carrying amount shall be increased 
to its recoverable amount. This 
reversal of the impairment loss occurs 
only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised in prior years. 

It is deemed that, in the event of the 
loss or destruction of an asset, the 
future economic benefits arising from 
the use of the asset will be replaced 
unless a specific decision to the 
contrary has been made. 

The recoverable amount for most 
assets is measured at the higher of 
depreciated replacement cost and fair 
value less costs to sell. Recoverable 
amount for assets held primarily to 
generate net cash flows is measured 

at the higher of the present value 
of future cash flows expected to be 
obtained from the asset and fair value 
less costs to sell. It is deemed that, in 
the event of the loss of an asset, the 
future economic benefits arising from 
the use of the asset will be replaced 
unless a specific decision to the 
contrary has been made. 

Net gain/(loss) on financial 
instruments

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 
includes realised and unrealised 
gains and losses from revaluations 
of financial instruments that are 
designated at fair value through profit 
or loss or held-for-trading, impairment 
and reversal of impairment for financial 
instruments at amortised cost, and 
disposals of financial assets.

Revaluations of financial instruments 
at fair value 

The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial 
instruments at fair value excludes 
dividends or interest earned on 
financial assets, which is reported as 
part of income from transactions.

Impairment of financial assets

Bad and doubtful debts are assessed 
on a regular basis. Those bad debts 
considered as written off by mutual 
consent are classified as a transaction 
expense. The allowance for doubtful 
receivables and bad debts not written 
off by mutual consent are adjusted as 
‘other economic flows’.

Other gains/(losses) from other 
economic flows

Other gains/(losses) from other 
economic flows include the gains or 
losses from reclassifications of amounts 
from reserves and/or accumulated 
surplus to net result, and from the 
revaluation of the present value of 
the long service leave liability due to 
changes in the bond interest rates.

1.10
financial assets

Cash and deposits

Cash and deposits, including cash 
equivalents, comprise cash on hand 
and cash at bank, deposits at call and 
those highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or 
less, which are held for the purpose of 
meeting short term cash commitments 
rather than for investment purposes, 
and which are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

For cash flow statement presentation 
purposes, cash and cash equivalents 
includes bank overdrafts, which are 
included as borrowings on the balance 
sheet.

Receivables

Receivables consist of:

 Ì statutory receivables, which include 
predominantly amounts owing from 
the Victorian Government and GST 
input tax credits recoverable; and

 Ì contractual receivables, which 
include  debtors in relation to goods 
and services, loans to third parties, 
accrued investment income, and 
finance lease receivables 

Receivables that are contractual are 
classified as financial instruments. 
Statutory receivables are not classified 
as financial instruments.

Receivables are recognised initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less an allowance for 
impairment.

A provision for doubtful recievables is 
made where there is objective evidence 
that the debts may not be collected 
and bad debts are written off when 
identified.

Investments and other financial 
assets

Investments are classified in the 
following categories: 

 Ì financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss,
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 Ì loans and receivables, and

 Ì available for sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the investments 
were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its 
investments at initial recognition.

Any dividend or interest earned on 
the financial asset is recognised in the 
consolidated comprehensive operating 
statement as a transaction.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, 
a part of a financial asset or part of 
a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when:

 Ì the rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired; or

 Ì the Institute retains the right to 
receive cash flows from the asset, 
but has assumed an obligation to 
pay them in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass 
through’ arrangement; or

 Ì the Institute has transferred its 
rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset and either:

(a) has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Institute has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to the 
extent of the Institute’s continuing 
involvement in the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, 
the Institute assesses whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired. 
Objective evidence includes financial 
difficulties of the debtor, default 
payments, debts which are more than 
60 days overdue, and changes in debtor 
credit ratings. All financial instrument 
assets, except those measured at fair 
value through profit or loss, are subject 
to annual review for impairment.

Bad and doubtful debts for financial 
assets are assessed on a regular basis. 
Those bad debts considered as written 
off by mutual consent are classified as 
a transaction expense. Bad debts not 
written off by mutual consent and the 
allowance for doubtful receivables are 
classified as ‘other economic flows’ in 
the net result.

The amount of the allowance is the 
difference between the financial asset’s 
carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the effective interest rate.

In assessing impairment of statutory 
(non-contractual) financial assets, 
which are not financial instruments, 
professional judgement is applied in 
assessing materiality using estimates, 
averages and other computational 
methods in accordance with AASB 136 
Impairment of Assets.

1.11
Leases
A lease is a right to use an asset for an 
agreed period of time in exchange for 
payment.

Leases are classified at their inception 
as either operating or finance leases 
based on the economic substance of 
the agreement so as to reflect the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. 

Leases of property, plant and 
equipment are classified as finance 
infrastructure leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership 
from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases

Finance leases

Institute as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under 
finance leases are recorded as 
receivables. Finance lease receivables 
are initially recorded at amounts equal 
to the present value of the minimum 
lease payments receivable plus the 
present value of any unguaranteed 
residual value expected to accrue at 
the end of the lease term. Finance 
lease receipts are apportioned between 
periodic interest income and reduction 

of the lease receivable over the term of 
the lease in order to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the net 
investment outstanding in respect of 
the lease.  

Institute as lessee

At the commencement of the lease 
term, finance leases are initially 
recognised as assets and liabilities at 
amounts equal to the fair value of the 
lease property or, if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payment, 
each determined at the inception of 
the lease. The lease asset is depreciated 
over the shorter of the estimated useful 
life of the asset or the term of the lease. 

Operating leases

Institute as lessor 

Rental income from operating leases is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease.

Institute as lessee

Operating lease payments, including 
any contingent rentals, are recognised 
as an expense in the comprehensive 
operating statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern of 
the benefits derived from the use of 
the leased asset. The leased asset is not 
recognised in the balance sheet.

1.12
Non-financial assets

Inventories

Inventories include goods and other 
property held either for sale or for 
distribution at a zero or nominal cost 
in the ordinary course of business 
operations. It includes land held-for-
sale and excludes depreciable assets.

Inventories held-for-distribution are 
measured at cost, adjusted for any 
loss of service potential. All other 
inventories, including land held for sale, 
are measured at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value.
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The basis used in assessing loss of 
service potential for inventories 
held-for-distribution include current 
replacement cost and technical or 
functional obsolescence. Technical 
obsolescence occurs when an item still 
functions for some or all of the tasks 
it was originally acquired to do, but no 
longer matches existing technologies. 
Functional obsolescence occurs when 
an item no longer functions the way it 
did when it was first acquired.

Cost is assigned to land for sale 
(undeveloped, under development and 
developed) and to other high value, low 
volume inventory items on a specific 
identification of cost basis.

Cost for all other inventory is measured 
on the basis of weighted average cost.

Inventories acquired for no cost or 
nominal consideration are measured at 
current replacement cost at the date of 
acquisition.

Non-current physical assets 
classified as held-for-sale, 
including disposal group assets

Non-financial physical assets (including 
disposal group assets) are treated as 
current and classified as held for sale if 
their carrying amount will be recovered 
through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use

This condition is regarded as met only 
when:

 Ì the asset is available for immediate 
use in the current condition; and

 Ì the sale is highly probable and 
the asset’s sale is expected to be 
completed within twelve months 
from the date of classification.

These non-financial physical assets, 
related liabilities and financial assets 
are measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell, 
and are not subject to depreciation or 
amortisation.

Property, plant and equipment

All non-financial physical assets, 
are measured initially at cost and 
subsequently revalued at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment.

The initial cost for non-financial 
physical assets under a finance lease is 
measured at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased asset or, if lower, 
the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, each determined at the 
inception of the lease.

Where an asset is received for no or 
nominal consideration, the cost is 
the asset’s fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

Non-financial physical assets such as 
national parks, other Crown land and 
heritage assets are measured at fair 
value with regard to the property’s 
highest and best use after due 
consideration is made for any legal or 
constructive restrictions imposed on 
the asset, public announcements or 
commitments made in relation to the 
intended use of the asset. Theoretical 
opportunities that may be available in 
relation to the asset are not taken into 
account until it is virtually certain that 
the restrictions will no longer apply.

The fair value of cultural assets and 
collections, heritage assets and 
other non-financial physical assets 
that the State intends to preserve 
because of their unique historical, 
cultural or environmental attributes, 
is measured at the replacement cost 
of the asset less, where applicable, 
accumulated depreciation (calculated 
on the basis of such cost to reflect the 
already consumed or expired future 
economic benefits of the asset) and 
any accumulated impairment. These 
policies and any legislative limitations 
and restrictions imposed on their use 
and/or disposal may impact their fair 
value.

The fair value of infrastructure systems 
and plant, equipment and vehicles, is 
normally determined by reference to 
the asset’s depreciated replacement 
cost, or where the infrastructure is 
held by a for profit entity, the fair value 
may be derived from estimates of the 
present value of future cash flows. For 
plant, equipment and vehicles, existing 
depreciated historical cost is generally 
a reasonable proxy for depreciated 
replacement cost because of the short 
lives of the assets concerned.

Certain assets are acquired under 
finance leases, which may form part of 
a service concession arrangement.

The cost of constructed non-financial 
physical assets includes the cost of 
all materials used in construction, 
direct labour on the project, and an 
appropriate proportion of variable and 
fixed overheads.

Where an asset is received for no or 
nominal consideration, the cost is 
the asset’s fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

For the accounting policy on 
impairment of non-financial physical 
assets refer to Note on Impairment of 
non-financial assets.

Leasehold improvements

The cost of a leasehold improvements 
is capitalised as an asset and 
depreciated over the remaining term 
of the lease or the estimated useful life 
of the improvements, whichever is the 
shorter.

Restrictive nature of cultural and 
heritage assets, Crown land and 
infrastructures

Certain agencies hold cultural assets, 
heritage assets, Crown land and 
infrastructure, which are deemed 
worthy of preservation because of the 
social rather than financial benefits 
they provide to the community. 
Consequently, there are certain 
limitations and restrictions imposed on 
their use and/or disposal.

Non financial physical assets 
constructed by the Institute

The cost of non-financial physical 
assets constructed by the Institute 
includes the cost of all materials used 
in construction, direct labour on the 
project, and an appropriate proportion 
of variable and fixed overheads.
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Revaluations of non-current 
physical assets

Non-current physical assets measured 
at fair value are revalued in accordance 
with FRDs issued by the Minister for 
Finance. This revaluation process 
normally occurs every five years, based 
upon the asset’s Government Purpose 
Classification, but may occur more 
frequently if fair value assessments 
indicate material changes in values. 
Revaluation increases or decreases 
arise from differences between an 
asset’s carrying value and fair value.

Revaluation increases are credited 
directly to equity in the revaluation 
reserve, except to the extent that 
an increase reverses a revaluation 
decrease in respect of that class 
of property, plant and equipment, 
previously recognised as an expense 
(other economic flows) in the net 
result, the increase is recognised as 
income (other economic flows) in 
determining the net result.

Revaluation decreases are recognised 
immediately as expenses (other 
economic flows) in the net result, 
except to the extent that a credit 
balance exists in the revaluation reserve 
in respect of the same class of property, 
plant and equipment, they are debited 
to the revaluation reserve.

Revaluation increases and revaluation 
decreases relating to individual assets 
within a class of property, plant and 
equipment are offset against one 
another within that class but are not 
offset in respect of assets in different 
classes. 

Biological assets

Bloodstock

Bloodstock is measured at fair value 
less estimated point of sale costs.

Investment properties 

Investment properties represent 
properties held to earn rentals or 
for capital appreciation or both. 
Investment properties exclude 
properties held to meet service delivery 
objectives of the Institute.

Investment properties are initially 
recognised at cost. Costs incurred 
subsequent to initial acquisition are 
capitalised when it is probable that 
future economic benefits in excess of 
the originally assessed performance of 
the asset will flow to the Institute.

Subsequent to initial recognition at 
cost, investment properties are re-
valued to fair value with changes in 
the fair value recognised as income 
or expenses in the period in which 
they arise. The properties are not 
depreciated.

Rental income from the leasing of 
investment properties is recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis, over the 
lease term.

1.13
Liabilities 

Payables

Payables consist of: 

 Ì contractual payables, such as 
accounts payable, and unearned 
income including deferred income 
from concession arrangements. 
Accounts payable represent 
liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the Institute prior to the 
end of the financial year that are 
unpaid, and arise when the Institute 
becomes obliged to make future 
payments in respect of the purchase 
of those goods and services; and

 Ì statutory payables, such as goods 
and services tax and fringe benefits 
tax payables.

Contractual payables are classified as 
financial instruments and categorised 
as financial liabilities at amortised 
cost. Statutory payables are recognised 
and measured similarly to contractual 
payables, but are not classified as 
financial instruments and not included 
in the category of financial liabilities at 
amortised cost, because they do not 
arise from a contract.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the 
Institute has a present obligation, the 
future sacrifice of economic benefits 
is probable, and the amount of the 
provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is 
the best estimate of the consideration 
required to settle the present obligation 
at reporting date, taking into account 
the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. Where a provision 
is measured using the cashflows 
estimated to settle the present 
obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cashflows.

Employee benefits

The calculation of employee benefits 
includes all relevant on-costs and are 
calculated as follows at reporting date.

(i) Wages and salaries, and annual 
leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, 
including non-monetary benefits, 
annual leave and accumulated sick 
leave expected to be wholly settled 
within 12 months of the reporting 
date are recognised in the provision 
for employee benefits in respect 
of employee services up to the 
reporting date, classified as current 
liabilities and measured at their 
nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to 
be wholly settled within 12 months 
of the reporting date are recognised 
in the provision for employee 
benefits as current liabilities, 
measured at present value of the 
amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply 
at the time of settlement.

(ii) Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) 
is recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits. 
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Current Liability - unconditional LSL 
representing 7 years is disclosed as 
a current liability even when the 
Institute does not expect to settle the 
liability within 12 months because 
it will not have the unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the 
entitlement should an employee take 
leave within 12 months. 

The components of this current 
liability are measured at:

 Ì present value - component that is 
not expected to be settled within 
12 months. 

 Ì nominal value - component that is 
expected to be settled within 12 
months.

Non-current liability - conditional 
LSL representing less than 7 years is 
disclosed as a non - current liability. 
There is an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the entitlement 
until the employee has completed 
the requisite years of service.

This non-current LSL liability is 
measured at present value. Gain 
or loss following revaluation of the 
present value of non-current LSL 
liability due to changes in bond 
interest rates is recognised as an 
other economic flow (refer to Note 
4(c)). 

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable 
when employment is terminated 
before the normal retirement 
date, or when an employee 
accepts voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for these benefits. The 
Institute recognises termination 
benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either terminating the 
employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan 
without possibility of withdrawal or 
providing termination benefits as a 
result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling 
due more than 12 months after 
balance sheet date are discounted to 
present value.

Employee benefits on-costs

Employee benefits on-costs (payroll 
tax, workers compensation, 
superannuation, annual leave and 
long service leave accrued while on 
LSL taken in service) are recognised 
separately from provision for employee 
benefits.

Performance Payments

Performance payments for TAFE 
Executive Officers are based on a 
percentage of the annual salary 
package provided under the contract 
of employment. A liability is provided 
for under the term of the contracts at 
reporting date and paid out in the next 
financial year.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is considered 
to exist where the Institute has a 
contract under which the unavoidable 
cost of meeting the contractual 
obligations exceed the economic 
benefits estimated to be received. 
Present obligations arising under 
onerous contracts are recognised as a 
provision to the extent that the present 
obligation exceeds the economic 
benefits estimated to be received.

1.14
Commitments
Commitments include those operating, 
capital and other outsourcing 
commitments arising from non-
cancellable contractual or statutory 
sources and are disclosed at their 
nominal value and inclusive of the GST 
payable. 

1.15
Contingent assets and 
contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities are not recognised in the 
balance sheet, but are disclosed by 
way of a note (refer note 20) and, if 
quantifiable, are measured at nominal 
value. Contingent assets and liabilities 
are presented inclusive of the GST 
receivable or payable respectively.  
 

1.16
equity

Contributed capital 
Funding that are in the nature of 
contributions by the State government 
are treated as contributed capital when 
designated in accordance with UIG 
Interpretation 1038 Contribution by 
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 
Sector Entities. Commonwealth capital 
funds are not affected and are treated 
as income.   
 

1.17
foreign currency 
translations 

Functional and presentation 
currency

The functional currency of each group 
entity is measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment 
in which that entity operates. The 
Institute’s financial statements are 
presented in Australian dollars which 
is the parent entity’s functional and 
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are 
translated into functional currency 
using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the date of the transaction. 
Foreign currency monetary items are 
translated at the year end exchange 
rate. Non-monetary items measured 
at historical cost continue to be carried 
at the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value are reported at 
the exchange rate at the date when fair 
values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on 
the translation of monetary items 
are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period 
in which they arise, except where 
deferred in equity as a qualifying cash 
flow or net investment hedge.
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Exchange difference arising on the 
translation of non-monetary items are 
recognised directly in equity to the 
extent that the gain or loss is directly 
recognised in equity, otherwise the 
exchange difference is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 
 

1.18
materiality
In accordance with Accounting 
Standard AASB1031 ‘Materiality’, 
accounting policies need only be 
identified in the summary of accounting 
policies where they are considered 
‘material’. Accounting policies will be 
considered material if their omission, 
misstatement or non-disclosure has the 
potential, individually or collectively, to:

(a ) influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of the 
financial report; and 

(b) affect the discharge of 
accountability by the management or 
governing body of the entity.

1.19
Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial report have 
been rounded to the nearest thousand 
dollars, unless otherwise stated.  
    
 

1.20
Comparative information
When required by Accounting 
Standards, comparative figures have 
been adjusted to conform to changes 
in presentation for the current financial 
year.     
    

1.21
Change in accounting 
policy 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Institute has applied AASB 13 for the 
first time in the current year. AASB 13 
establishes a single source of guidance 
for fair value measurements. The scope 
of AASB 13 is broad; the fair value 
measurement requirements of AASB 13 
apply to both financial instrument items 
and non-financial instrument items for 
which other A-IFRS require or permit fair 
value measurements and disclosures 
about fair value measurements, except 
for share-based payment transactions 
that are within the scope of AASB 
2 Share-based Payment, leasing 
transactions that are within the scope 
of AASB 17 Leases, and measurements 
that have some similarities to fair 
value but not fair value (e.g. net 
realisable value for the purposes of 
measuring inventories or value in use for 
impairment assessment purposes).

AASB 13 defines fair value as the 
price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction in the principal 
(or most advantageous) market at 
the measurement date under current 
market conditions. 

Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit 
price regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. Also, 
AASB 13 includes extensive disclosure 
requirements.

AASB 13 requires prospective application 
from 1 January 2013. In addition, 
specific transitional provisions were 
given to entities such that they need 
not apply the disclosure requirements 
set out in the Standard in comparative 
information provided for periods before 
the initial application of the Standard. 
In accordance with these transitional 
provisions, the Institute has not made 
any new disclosures required by AASB 13 
for the 2012 comparative period (please 
see note 9, 11 and 28-4 disclosures). 

Other than the additional disclosures, 
the application of AASB 13 has not had 
any material impact on the amounts 
recognised in the consolidated financial 
statements.

AASB 119 Employee benefits

In the current year, the Institute has 
applied AASB 119 Employee Benefits 
(as revised in 2011) and the related 
consequential amendments for the first 
time.

AASB 119 (as revised in 2011) changes 
the accounting for defined benefit 
plans and termination benefits. The 
most significant change relates to the 
accounting for changes in defined 
benefit obligations and plan assets.  This 
change has no impact on the Institute 
because  the entity has no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay future 
benefits relating to its employees; its 
only obligation is to pay superannuation 
contributions as they fall due. The 
Department of Treasury and Finance 
recognises and discloses the State’s 
defined benefit liabilities in its financial 
statements.

In addition, AASB 119 also changes 
the definition of short-term employee 
benefits.  These were previously benefits 
that were due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period in which the employees 
render the related service, however, 
short-term employee benefits are now 
defined as benefits expected to be 
settled wholly before twelve months 
after the end of the reporting period in 
which the employees render the related 
service. As a result, accrued annual 
leave balances which were previously 
classified by the Institute as short-term 
benefits no longer meet this definition 
and are now classified as long-term 
benefits. This has resulted in a change 
of measurement for the annual leave 
provision from an undiscounted to 
discounted basis.

This change in classification has 
not materially altered the Institutes 
measurement of the annual leave 
provision.
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1.22
New and revised aasBs in issue but not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 31 December 2013 
reporting period. As at 31 December 2013 the following standards and interpretations (applicable to the Institute) had been 
issued but were not mandatory for financial year ending 31 December 2013. The Institute has not, and does not intend to, 
adopt these standards early.

Standard/
Interpretation Summary

Application 
date of 

standard Impact on entity financial statements

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments

This standard simplifies requirements 
for the classification and measurement 
of financial assets resulting from Phase 
1 of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement (AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement).

1 Jan 2015 Subject to AASB’s further modifications to AASB 9, 
together with the anticipated changes resulting from the 
staged projects on impairments and hedge accounting, 
details of impacts will be assessed.

AASB 1053 Application 
of Tiers of Australian 
Accounting Standards 
and AASB 2010-2 
Amendments to Australian 
Accounts Standard arising 
from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements

These standards set out the tiers of 
financial reporting and the reduced 
disclosure framework.

1 Jan 2014 The Victorian Government is currently 
considering the impacts of Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) for certain 
public sector entities, and has not decided 
if RDRs will be implemented in the Victorian 
public sector.

AASB 1055 Budgetary 
Reporting

AASB 1055 extends the scope of 
budgetary reporting that is currently 
applicable for the whole of government 
and general government sector 
(GGS) to NFP entities within the GGS, 
provided that these entities present 
separate budget to the parliament.

1 Jan 2014 [If separate budget is presented to the parliament]:

 Ì The entity will be required to restate in the financial 
statements the budgetary information in accordance 
with the presentation format prescribed in Australian 
Accounting Standards and explain the significant 
variances from the original budget. 

[If separate budget is not presented to the parliament]:

 Ì This Standard is not applicable as no budget disclosure 
is required.

In addition to the new standards above, the AASB has issued a list of amending standards that are not effective for the 2013 reporting period 
(as listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial and references changes that are expected to have insignificant 
impacts on public sector reporting. The two AASB Interpretations in the list below are also not effective for the 2013 reporting period and 
considered to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.

 Ì AASB 2011-13 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Improvements to AASB 1049

 Ì AASB 2011-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Orderly adoption of Changes to the ABS GFS Manual and Related 
Amendments

 Ì AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards to Remove Individual Key Management Personnel Disclosure 
Requirements.

 Ì AASB 2011-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and 
Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

 Ì AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13.

 Ì AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 
120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039, 1049]

 Ì AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011).

 Ì AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

 Ì AASB 2011-12 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Interpretation 20

 Ì 2012-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Measurement – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

 Ì 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.

 Ì 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.

 Ì 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle.

 Ì 2012-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

 Ì 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1049 - Relocation of Budgetary Reporting Requirements

 Ì 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non Financial Assets

 Ì Interpretation 21 Levies
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1.23
Critical accounting 
judgements and key 
sources of estimation 
uncertainty
In the application of the Institutes 
accounting policies, judgements, 
estimates and assumption about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabili-
ties must be made. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors 
that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assump-
tions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods.

Key sources of estimation 
uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions 
concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.

Fair value measurements and 
valuation processes

Some of the Institute’s assets are 
measured at fair value for financial 
reporting purposes. In estimating the 
fair value of an asset the Institute uses 
market-observable data to the extent 
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs 
are not available, the Institute engages 
third party qualified valuers to perform 
the valuation.

Information about the valuation tech-
niques and inputs used in determining 
the fair value of various assets is sum-
marised below and at notes 1, 9 and 11.

In addition, the following table provides 
an analysis of assets that are measured 
subsequent to initial recognition at fair 
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based 
on the degree to which the fair value is 
observable.

 Ì Level 1 fair value measurements are 
those derived from quoted prices 
(unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets.

 Ì Level 2 fair value measurements 
are those derived from inputs other 
than quoted prices included within 
Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices).

 Ì Level 3 fair value measurements 
are those derived from valuation 
techniques that include inputs 
for the asset that are not based 
on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).    
    
 

Assets measured at 
fair value  Fair Value as at 

Fair Value 
Hierarchy 

Valuation Technique(s) and key 
assumptions

Significant 
unobservable 

input(s)

Relationship of 
unobservable 
inputs to fair 

value

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

 Level 1 

Quoted bid prices (unadjusted) in an 
active market for identical assets or 
liabilities that the entity can access 

at the measurement date. 

 NA  NA 

Investment 
properties 1,700 1,630

Level 2

Discounted cash flow. Future 
cash flows are estimated based 

on forward exchange rates (from 
observable forward exchange 

rates at the end of the reporting 
period) and contract forward rates, 

discounted at a rate that reflects the 
credit risk of various counterparties.

NA NA
Market-based fair valuation

Freehold Land 3,126 3,126

Crown Land 9,677 9,677

Buildings used solely 
for educational 
purposes

60,158 62,327

Depreciated replacement cost as 
applied to non specialised assets.Buildings used 

for commercial 
communal purposes

6,707 6,943

Level 3  Depreciated replacement cost.

Specialised 
assets, estimates 

made on 
replacement cost 

of asset.

The higher the 
construction 

cost, the higher 
the fair value.
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Note 2

Income from transactions

2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

(a) GraNts aNd other traNsfers (other thaN coNtributioNs by owNers)

Government financial assistance

(i)  Government contributions - operating

Commonwealth government recurrent  -    68 

State government recurrent  95,368  55,391 

Other contributions by State Government  2,178  1,316 

Total government contributions - operating  97,546  56,775 

(ii) Government contributions - capital

Commonwealth capital  214  - 

State capital  928  1,460 

Total government contributions - capital  1,142  1,460 

Total government financial assistance  98,688  58,235 

(b) sales of Goods aNd services 

Student fees and charges  6,199  4,312 

Rendering of services:

Fee for service - Government  4,388  4,623 

Fee for service - International operations - onshore  -    52 

Fee for service - Other  4,105  3,972 

Total rendering of services  8,493 8,647 

Other non-course fees and charges:

Sale of goods  1,439  1,697 

Total other fees and charges  1,439  1,697 

Total revenue from sale of goods and services  16,131  14,656 

(c) iNterest 

Interest from financial assets not at fair value through P/L:

Interest on bank deposits  1,073  766 

Total interest revenue from financial assets not at fair value through P/L  1,073  766 

Net interest income  1,073  766 
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2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

    

(d) Other incOme

Rental revenue

Investment properties  158  152 

Other  190  200 

Total rental revenue  348  352 

Donations, bequests and contributions  30  13 

Other revenue  405  627 

Total other income  783  992 

note 3

Expenses from transactions
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

(a) emplOyee benefits

Salaries, wages, overtime and allowances  79,820  41,853 

Superannuation  2,903  2,864 

Payroll tax  1,712  1,715 

Worker's compensation  227  242 

Long service leave  325  (98)

Annual leave  145  (119)

Termination benefits  59  543 

Other  234  172 

Total employee benefits  85,425  47,172 
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2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

(b) Depreciation

Depreciation of non-current assets

Buildings  2,816  1,836 

Plant and equipment  1,064  1,299 

Motor vehicles  668  700 

Total depreciation  4,548  3,835 

Total depreciation  4,548  3,835 

(c) Grants anD other transfers (other than contributions by owners)

Grants and subsidies apprentices and trainees  68  83 

Total grants and other transfers  68  83 

(D) supplies anD services

Purchase of supplies and consumables  2,396  2,253 

Communication expenses  977  836 

Contract and other services  1,835  1,157 

Cost of goods sold/distributed (ancillary trading) 265  405 

Repairs and maintenance  1,310  977 

Fees and charges  1,504  782 

Total supplies and services  8,287  6,410 

(e) other operatinG expenses

General Expenses

Marketing and promotional expenses  531  501 

Occupancy expenses  1,001  1,096 

Audit fees and services  155  79 

Staff development  212  238 

Travel and motor vehicle expenses  1,012  1,088 

Motor vehicle taxes  24  53 

Other expenses  582  807 

Insurances  153  136 

Total other operating expenses  3,670  3,998 

Direct operating expenses of investment properties

Properties generating rental income - repairs and maintenance  4  5 

Total direct operating expenses of investment properties  4  5 

Operating lease rental expenses

Minimum lease payments  328  259 

Total operating lease rental expenses  328  259 

Subtotal  4,002  4,262 

Equipment below capitalisation threshold  1,384  1,125 

Total other operating expenses  5,386  5,387 
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Note 4

Other economic flows included in net result
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

(a) Net GaIN/(Loss) oN NoN-fINaNCIaL assets (INCLudING ppe aNd  
INtaNGIBLe assets)

Revaluation of non-current physical assets 70  50 

Net gain/(loss) arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of 
biological assets

(113)   66

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of physical assets  92  67 

Total net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities  49  183 

(B) Net GaIN/(Loss) oN fINaNCIaL INstRumeNts aNd statutoRy 
ReCeIvaBLes / payaBLes of:

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit and 
loss

-  (473)

Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables/payables  (473)

(C) otheR GaINs/(Losses) fRom otheR eCoNomIC fLows

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service leave liability 73  21 

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of annual leave liability - -

Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 73  21 

Note 5 

Cash and cash equivalents
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Cash at bank and on hand  12,226  5,997 

Total cash and cash equivalents  12,226  5,997 

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as shown 
in the statement of cash flows as follows: 

(a) ReCoNCILed to Cash at the eNd of the yeaR

Balances as above  12,226  5,997 

Balance as per cash flow statement  12,226  5,997 

(B) Cash at BaNk aNd oN haNd

These are non-interest bearing.
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Note 6

Receivables
2013 
$000

2012 
$000

CuRReNt ReCeIvaBLes

Contractual

Trade receivables 1  3,489  2,252

Provision for doubtful contractual receivables(a) (See also Note 6(a) below)  (577)  (577)

Revenue receivable

Amount receivable from:

Victorian Government bodies  11,062  4,929 

Other parties  276  384 

Total contractual  14,250  6,988 

Statutory

GST receivable from ATO  933  470 

Total statutory  933  470 

Total current receivables  15,183  7,458 

Total receivables  15,183  7,458 

1  The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 30 days. Debts attributable to Victorian Government bodies that are 
outstanding greater than 30 days may be charged penalty interest in accordance with the Victorian Government’s Fair Payments 
Policy. 
A provision has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and services, based on past default 
experience. There was no change to the provision for the current financial year.   

(a) movemeNt IN the pRovIsIoN foR douBtfuL CoNtRaCtuaL ReCeIvaBLes

Balance at beginning of the year  (577)  (104)

Increase in provision recognised in the net result -  (473)

Balance at end of the year  (577)  (577)

(B) aGeING aNaLysIs of CoNtRaCtuaL ReCeIvaBLes

Please refer to Note 28(iv) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables.

(C) NatuRe aNd exteNt of RIsk aRIsING fRom CoNtRaCtuaL ReCeIvaBLes

Please refer to Note 28 for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables.
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Note 7

Investments, loans and other financial assets
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CurreNt iNvestmeNts aNd other fiNaNCial assets  

Fixed Interest bearing bills, bonds/Term Deposits  26,515  18,241 

Total current investments and other financial assets  26,515  18,241 

Total investments and other financial assets  26,515  18,241 

(a) ageiNg aNalysis of iNvestmeNts, loaNs aNd other fiNaNCial assets

Please refer to Table 28(iv) in Note 28 for the ageing analysis of investments, loans and other financial assets. 

(b) Nature aNd exteNt of risk arisiNg from iNvestmeNts, loaNs aNd other fiNaNCial assets

Please refer to Note 28 for the nature and extent of risks arising from investments, loans and other financial assets.

(C) term deposits

The deposits are bearing floating interest rates between 3% and 4% (2012 - 4% and 6%).
These deposits have an average maturity of 102.28 days.

Note 8

Inventories
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CurreNt 
Supplies and consumables - at cost  8  13 

Work in progress - at cost  67  70 

Inventories held-for-sale

at cost  23  18 

Total current inventories  98  101 
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Note 9

Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings
Construction 

in Progress
Plant & 

Equipment
Motor 

Vehicles Total

At 1 January 2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost  410  18,217  816  -    -    19,443 

Valuation  13,294  72,475  -    13,884  3,117  102,770 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (30,479)  -    (11,213)  (951)  (42,643)

Net book amount  13,704  60,213  816  2,671  2,166  79,570 

Year ended 31 December 2012

Opening net book amount  13,704  60,213  816  2,671  2,166  79,570 

Additions  -    13  1,320  468  1,112  2,913 

Disposals  -    -    -    (40)  (681)  (721)

Net revaluation increments/ 
decrements  (901)  9,628  -    -    -    8,727 

Depreciation expense 1  -    (1,836)  -    (1,299)  (700)  (3,835)

Transfers to/from construction 
in progress  -    1,252  (1,252)  -    -    -   

Closing net book amount  12,803  69,270  884  1,800  1,897  86,654 

At 31 December 2012

Cost  -    -    884  -    -    884 

Valuation  12,803  112,610  -    14,184  2,888  142,485 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (43,340)  -    (12,384)  (991)  (56,715)

Net book amount  12,803  69,270  884  1,800  1,897  86,654 

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount  12,803  69,270  884  1,800  1,897  86,654 

Additions  -    -    930  1,177  1,268  3,375 

Disposals  -    (14)  -    -    (545)  (559)

Net revaluation increments/ 
decrements  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Depreciation expense 1  -    (2,816)  -    (1,064)  (668)  (4,548)

Transfers to/from construction 
in progress  -    425  (534)  109  -    -   

Closing net book amount  12,803  66,865  1,280  2,022  1,952  84,922 

At 31 December 2013

Cost  -    -    1,280  -    -    1,280 

Valuation  12,803  113,021  -    15,376  2,923  144,123 

Accumulated depreciation  -    (46,156)  -    (13,354)  (971)  (60,481)

Net book value at the end of 
the financial year  12,803  66,865  1,280  2,022  1,952  84,922 

Footnote        
1 The useful lives of assets as stated in Note 1 are used in the calculation of depreciation as shown in note 3(b).
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(a) vaLuatIoNs of pRopeRty, pLaNt aNd equIpmeNt

The valuation of land and buildings was undertaken by the Valuer-General Victoria as at 31 December 2012.  Except for a property 
comprising land and buildings at Wangaratta, for which in the valuer’s opinion there is an active and liquid market and so valued 
at fair market value, the fair values are determined in accordance with the following criteria.  The valuation of buildings is at fair 
value based on the going concern presumption and using the assets’ depreciated replacement cost.  The valuation of land is at 
fair value based on the highest and best use of the land with constraints based on the existence of substantial buildings and other 

improvements.

(B) pLaNt aNd equIpmeNt CaRRIed at faIR vaLue

Plant and equipment carried at fair value
A valuation of plant and equipment was undertaken by the Institute management to determine its fair value.  The effective date of the 
valuation is 31 December 2013.
Details of the Institute’s  land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: 

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Fair Value
$’000

Freehold land  -   3,126 - 3,126 

Crown land  -    9,677 -  9,677 

Buildings used solely for 
educational purposes

- 60,158 - 60,158

Buildings used for commercial 
communal purposes

- 6,707 - 6,707

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. 

(C) NoN-CuRReNt assets pLedGed as seCuRIty

The Institute has no non-current assets pledged as security.

(d) RestRICted assets

The Institute has no restrictive assets.      
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Note 10 

Biological assets

BIoLoGICaL assets - aNImaLs

Nature - Mares

Activities - Equine studies   

2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

BeaReR assets 
Mature assets

Mares -  113 

Total bearer assets -  113 

Qty Qty

Quantities

Mares -  2 

Total quantity -  2 

There were no reportable outputs arising from the mares for the years ended 31 December.

2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

BIoLoGICaL assets - ReCoNCILIatIoN

Reconciliation of changes in carrying amount of biological assets

Carrying amount at 1 January  113  47 

Increases/(decreases) due to:

Net gain/(loss) arising from change in fair value (113)  66 

Carrying amount at 31 December  -    113 
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Note 11

Investment properties
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

At FAir vAlue

Opening balance at 1 January  1,630  1,580 

Net gain/ (loss) from fair value adjustments  70  50 

Closing balance at 31 December  1,700  1,630 

a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties 

Rental income  158 152

Other income - insurance recovery  -   2

Direct operating expenses (rent generating properties)  (4) (5)

Total recognised in profit and loss  154  149 

b) vAluAtioN bAsis

Investment properties were revalued to fair value by a registered independent valuer as at 31 December 2013 in accordance with 
AASB 140.

Details of the Institute’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December are as follows:

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Fair Value
$’000

Shepparton  -    770  -    770 

Seymour  -    930  -    930 

Total  -    1,700  -    1,700 

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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Note 12

Intangible assets
Software

$’000
Total

$’000

CuRReNt INtaNGIBLe assets

At 31 December 2012  -    -   

Cost  -    -   

Accumulated amortisation and impairment  -    -   

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount  -    -   

Additions 1  12,103  12,103 

Amortisation charge 2  -    -   

Closing net book amount  12,103  12,103 

At 31 December 2013

Cost  12,103  12,103 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment  -    -   

Net book value at the end of the financial year  12,103  12,103 

Footnotes

1 The Institute is required to disclose significant intangible assets, as follows:

The Institute has capitalised its share of the development cost of its Student Management System (SMS) software.  The development 
cost was charged to the Institute by the Department of Education and Early Childhood Development (DEECD) of the Victorian 
Government as a Capital Contribution. 
DEECD engaged Deloitte Australia to provide a fair value assessment of the SMS in accordance with AASB 13.  The resulting valuation 
amount was allocated to Victorian TAFE Institutes adopting the SMS in proportion to the 2012 Equivalent Full Time Student numbers of 
the nine participating Institutes. 
The carrying amount of the Capital Contribution charged to Goulburn Ovens TAFE by DEECD was $12,102,881.  Under Australian 
Accounting Standards, the Capital Contribution is required to be disclosed at fair value.  The charge by DEECD was made late in 
December 2013 and will be referred to a qualified independent valuer for assessment of the fair value of the SMS software to the 
Institute.   
The SMS software was installed as at 31 December 2013, with no amortisation to be charged for 2013.  A useful life of the SMS 
software is yet to be determined and will be referred to a qualified independent valuer for resolution.   

2  Amortisation charged is reported as an expense from transactions in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.   
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Note 13

Other non-financial assets
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CuRReNt otheR NoN-fINaNCIaL assets

Prepayments  536  510 

Total current other non-financial assets  536  510 

Total other non-financial assets  536  510 

Note 14

Payables
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CuRReNt

Contractual

Supplies and services  9,080  3,397 

Other employee entitlements payable within 12 months  586  220 

Revenue in advance  177  321 

 9,843  3,938 

Statutory

GST payable  1,521  515 

FBT payable  48  41 

Total current payables  11,412  4,494 

Total payables  11,412  4,494 

 

Notes     
1. The average credit period is 30 days. No interest is charged on payables.    
2. For an analysis of the sensitivity of payables to foreign currency risk refer to Note 28.  

Maturity analysis of contractual payables     
Refer to Note 28 for maturity analysis of contractual payables. 
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Note 15

Provisions
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CuRReNt pRovIsIoNs expeCted to Be settLed wIthIN 12 moNths

Employee benefits

Annual leave  2,034  1,913 

Long service leave  90  104 

Performance payments  35 30

Total current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months  2,159  2,047 

CuRReNt pRovIsIoNs expeCted to Be settLed afteR 12 moNths

Employee benefits

Annual leave  198  174 

Long service leave  3,340  3,114 

Total current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months  3,538  3,288 

Total current provisions  5,697  5,335 

NoN-CuRReNt

Employee benefits

Long service leave  1,195  1,082 

Total non-current provisions  1,195  1,082 

Total provisions  6,892  6,417 

The requirement to make provision for the cost of annual leave and long service leave arises from employees’ entitlement as 
specified in their relevant workplace employment award.

Timing of the resulting outflows is largely determined by the management approval of applications by employees to take the 
respective leave up to their recorded leave balance.

Payment of annual leave and long service leave is made from cash reserves.

The calculation and classification methodology of the provisions is outlined in Note 1.13

movemeNts IN pRovIsIoNs
Movements in each class, other than employee provisions during the financial year 
are set out below:

Carrying amount at start of year  6,417 6,626

Additional provisions recognised  1,107 787

Amounts used  (632)  (996)

Carrying amount at end of year  6,892 6,417
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Note 16

Equity
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

(a) CoNtributed Capital

Balance at 1 January  33,977  33,977 

Capital contributions  12,103  -   

Balance at 31 December  46,080  33,977 

(b) aCCumulated surplus / (defiCit)

Balance at 1 January  29,518  18,025 

Net result for the year  13,083  11,493 

Balance at 31 December  42,601  29,518 

(C) reserves

Composition of Reserves

Physical asset revaluation surplus  46,298  46,298 

Balance at 31 December  46,298  46,298 

Total equity  134,979  109,793 

movemeNts iN reserves

Asset Revaluation Surplus - Land

Balance at 1 January  10,984  11,885 

Revaluation (decrement) on non-current assets  -  (901) 

Balance at 31 December  10,984 10,984

Asset Revaluation Surplus - Buildings

Balance at 1 January  35,314  25,686 

Revaluation increment on non-current assets  -    9,628 

Balance at 31 December  35,314  35,314 

Nature aNd purpose of reserves      

Asset Revaluation Reserve - Land     
The Asset Revaluation Reserve reflects any increases/decreases in the values of land.  

Asset Revaluation Reserve - Buildings     
The Asset Revaluation Reserve reflects any increases/decreases in the values of buildings.  
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Note 17

Cash flow information
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

(a) ReCoNCILIatIoN of opeRatING ResuLt afteR INCome tax to Net Cash 
fLows fRom opeRatING aCtIvItIes

Net Result for the year  13,083  11,493 

Non-cash flows in operating result

Depreciation of non-current assets  4,548  3,835 

Net (gain) / loss on sale of non-current assets  (92)  (67)

Allowance to recoverable amounts  -    473 

(Revaluation)/devaluation of biological assets 113 (66)

(Revaluation)/devaluation of investment properties  (70)  (50)

Total non-cash flows in operating result  4,499  4,125

Movements in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  (7,725)  (4,805)

Decrease / (increase) in inventories  3  14

Decrease / (increase) in other assets  (26)  78 

Increase / (decrease) in payables  6,456  (3)

Increase / (decrease) in employee benefits  475  (209)

Total movement in operating assets and liabilities  (817)  (4,925)

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities  16,765  10,693 

(B) NoN-Cash fINaNCING aNd INvestING aCtIvItIes
         There were no acquisitions of plant and equipment by means of finance leases.

(C) CRedIt staNdBy aRRaNGemeNts wIth BaNks
         The Institute has no credit standby arrangements with banks.

(d) LoaN faCILItIes
         The Institute has no loan facilities with financial institutions.
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Note 18

Commitments
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

CommItmeNts foR expeNdItuRe

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities 
is as follows: 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Payable:

Within one year  116  35 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment  116  35 

GST reclaimable on the above  (11)  (3)

Net Commitments Property, Plant and Equipment  105  32 

Total capital expenditure commitments  105  32 

The above capital expenditure commitments for both 2013 and 2012 are for the cost of motor vehicles

(b) Lease commitments

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not 
recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year  269  205 

Later than one year but not later than five years  126  237 

Total lease commitments  395  442 

GST reclaimable on the above  (36)  (40)

Net commitments Operating leases  359  402 

Representing:

Non-cancellable operating leases  359  402 

Total lease commitments  359  402 

(I) opeRatING Leases

Properties
The Institute, as lessee, leases land at Wangaratta, and building floor space at Tatura, Terang, Warragul, Leongatha and Cranbourne. 
The Institute leases out certain land and buildings that are in excess to current requirements.    

Equipment
The Institute contracts for photocopier materials usage on a per copy basis. 

Communications Access
The Institute leases out its own communications tower space that is in excess to current requirements.

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating 
leases are payable as follows: 

Within one year  245  187 

Later than one year but not later than five years  114  215 

Total minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases  359  402 
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Note 19

Leased assets
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

NoN-CaNCeLLaBLe opeRatING Lease ReCeIvaBLes

Payments due:

Within one year  310  348 

Later than one year and not later than five years  204  480 

Total operating lease receivables  514  828 

GST reclaimable on the above  (47)  (75)

Net commitments operating leases assets  467  753 

The Institute leases out certain land, buildings and equipment, which are excess to current requirements, at current market rates.

Note 20

Contingent Assets and Contingent 
Liabilities 
Contingent Assets

Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE is presently considering a proposal by Goulburn-Murray Water to discontinue the supply of channel 
water to the Institute’s Wm Orr Campus, Shepparton property.  In compensation, Goulburn-Murray Water has offered to pay the 
Institute the sum of $383,240 (plus GST) in total, individually costed for the estimated loss of value to the property, the purchase of 
water shares, and an allowance for the cost of provision of an altenative domestic and stock water supply.

There were no contingent assets in 2012.

Contingent Liabilities 

A complaint has been filed against the Institute in the Fair Work Commission by an ex-employee of the Institute in relation to an 
application for unfair dismissal. The matters are currently proceeding in the Commission and no estimate can yet be made as to any 
settlement conditions that may apply.

A contingent liability reported in 2012 in relation to a claim for unfair dismissal by a former employee has been resolved. 
   

Note 21

Economic Dependency
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Victorian State Government Department of Education and Early Childhood 
Development

 98,240  57,942 

 98,240  57,942 

Victorian State Government Department of Education and Early Childhood Development
The Institute has an economic dependency on funding for recurrent and specific funding of education and capital programs. 
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Note 22

Subsequent Events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which significantly affected or may significantly affect 
the operations of the Institute, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Institute in future financial years.  
 

Note 23

Remuneration of Auditors
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Remuneration of Victorian Auditor General’s Office for:

Audit of the financial statements  22  22 

Total remuneration of Victoria Auditor General’s Office  22  22 

Remuneration of other auditors for:

Continuous audits, qualifications audits and grant acquittals  133  57 

Total remuneration of other auditors  133  57 

Total remuneration of auditors  155  79 
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Note 24

Superannuation
Employees of the Institute are entitled to receive superannuation  benefits and the Institute contributes to both defined 
benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final 
average salary.

The Institute does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation 
contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State’s defined benefit 
liabilities in its financial statements.

However, superannuation  contributions  paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in 
the Comprehensive Operating Statement of the Institute.

The name and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the Institute are as follows:

2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

paId CoNtRIButIoN foR the yeaR

Defined benefit plans:

State Superannuation Fund - revised and new  168  198 

State Employee Retirement Benefits Fund  1  11 

Total defined benefit plans  169  209 

Defined contribution plans:

VicSuper  1,676  1,685 

Other  1,006  970 

Total defined contribution plans  2,682  2,655 

Total paid contribution for the year  2,851  2,864 

CoNtRIButIoN outstaNdING at yeaR eNd

Defined contribution plans:

Other than VicSuper  51  -   

Other accruals  6  -   

Total defined contribution plans  57  -   

Total contributions outstanding at year end  57  -   

The above amounts were measured as at 31 December of each year, or in the case of employer contributions they relate to the years 
ended 31 December.
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Note 25-1

Key Management Personnel Disclosures 
(Part I)
RespoNsIBLe peRsoNs ReLated dIsCLosuRes      
In accordance with the directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following 
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.      
     

i. Minister

The relevant Minister is The Hon Peter Hall MLC, Minister for Higher Education and Skills. Remuneration of the Minister 
is disclosed in the financial report of the Department of Premier and Cabinet. Other relevant interests are declared in the 
Register of Members interests which is completed by each member of the Parliament.    
  

ii. Members of the Board of Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE     

The following persons were responsible persons and executive officers of the Institute during the year:  

 Ì Director and Chairperson - Mr Michael Tehan, Ministerial nominee

 Ì Chief Executive Officer - Mr Paul Culpan

 Ì Director - Mr Adam Furphy, Ministerial nominee

 Ì Director - Ms Lisbeth Long, Ministerial nominee

 Ì Director - Mr Christopher McPherson, Ministerial nominee

 Ì Director - Ms Rebecca Woolstencroft, Board nominee

 Ì Director - Ms Joanne Dwyer, Board nominee - Appointed 1 September 2013 

 Ì Director - Mr Jonathan Koop, Board nominee - Appointed 1 September 2013

 Ì Director - Ms Sarah McKenzie, student representative - Term expired 31 March 2013

 Ì Director - Ms Ann Telford, Ministerial appointment - Resigned 14 April 2013

 Ì Director - Mr Geoffrey Oliver, Board nominee - Term expired 28 February 2014

 Ì Director - Mr Peter Quinn, Ministerial nominee - Resigned 3 March 2014    

 Ì Acting Chief Executive Officer - Mr Geoffrey Cobbledick - Appointed Acting Chief Executive Officer for the period from 4th 
April to 5th April inclusive, 31st May to 3rd June inclusive, 30th September to 1st October inclusive and 23rd December to 
31st December inclusive      

iii. Executive Officers     

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of Institute 
during the financial year:

 Ì Mr Albert Amadei, Executive Manager    

 Ì Mr Peter Carkeek, Executive Manager    

 Ì Ms Leisa Clarke, Executive Manager, Appointed 2nd April 2013    

 Ì Ms Louise Pearce, Executive Manager    

 Ì Mr Andrew Powell, Executive Manager    

All of the above persons were also key management persons during the year ended 31 December 2013
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Responsible persons

RemuNeRatIoN of BoaRd memBeRs
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Remuneration received, or due and receivable from the Institute in connection with the 
management of the Institute. Includes termination payments and bonuses paid at end 
of contracts.   583 582 

INCome RaNGe
2013 

No.
2012 

No.

The number of Board members whose remuneration from the Institute was within the 
specified bands are as follows:

Nil  1  -   

$1 - $10,000  4  9 

$10,001 - $20,000  3  -   

$20,001 - $30,000  2  -   

$30,001 - $40,000  1  -   

$50,001 - $60,000  -    1 

$80,001 - $90,000  -    1 

$180,001 - $190,000  1  1 

$230,001 - $240,000  -    1 

$240,001 - $250,000  1  -   

Total number of Responsible Persons  13  13 

There were no retirement benefits paid by the Institute in connection with the retirement of Responsible Persons of the Institute.
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executive officers  

exeCutIve offICeRs’ RemuNeRatIoN
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

The number of executive officers whose total remuneration exceeded $100,000 during 
the financial year are shown in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration is 
exclusive of bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and 
retirement benefits.

Base remuneration of executive officers  639  723 

Total remuneration of executive officers  639  724 

INCome RaNGe
2013 

No.
2012 

No.

The number of executive officers whose remuneration from the Institute was within 
the specified bands are as follows: 

$80,001 - $90,000  1  1

$100,001 - $110,000  -    1 

$130,001 - $140,000  2    4 

$140,001 - $150,000  2   -

Total executive officers  5  6 

Total amount 639 724

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) 639 724
   

key management personnel
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

Short-term employee benefits  1,221  1,278 

Termination benefits  -    28 

Total key management personnel compensation  1,221  1,306 
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Note 25-2

Key Management Personnel Disclosures 
(Part II)

Loans to key management personnel       

There were no loans in existence at reporting date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Institute or any related 
party to Responsible Persons of the Institute or Responsible Persons-related party of those Responsible Persons.

Other transactions with key management personnel       

 Ì Mr. M. Tehan is a member of the Advisory Board of FCJ College Council Benalla which engaged the services of the Goulburn 
Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

 Ì Mr. M. Tehan is a member of the Independant Tribunal and the Audit Committee of the Goulburn Valley Football League which 
provided sponsorship rights and advertising services to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and 
conditions.

 Ì Mr. M. Tehan, until 13 March 2012, was a member of the Audit Committee of the Strathbogie Shire Council which engaged 
the services of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services on normal commercial terms and 
conditions.

 Ì Mr. M. Tehan is a member of the Board of the Benalla Performing Arts and Convention Centre which provided operational 
services, venue hire and sponsorship to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions. 
The Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE provided financing towards the operation of the Benalla Performing Arts and Convention 
Centre on normal commercial terms and conditions. The Benalla Performing Arts and Convention Centre engaged the services 
of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of catering services on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. A. Furphy is Managing Director of J Furphy & Sons Pty Ltd, which provided operational services to the Goulburn Ovens 
Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions. J Furphy & Sons Pty Ltd engaged the services of the Goulburn 
Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. C. McPherson is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of McPherson Media Pty Ltd which provided internet 
services to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. C. McPherson is Executive Director of McPherson Newspapers Pty Ltd which engaged the services of the Goulburn Ovens 
Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. P. Quinn is the Managing Director of Goulburn Valley Water which provided operational services to the Goulburn Ovens 
Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions. Goulburn Valley Water engaged the services of the Goulburn 
Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services and venue hire on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. J. Koop is a Director of North East Water which provided operational services to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on 
normal commercial terms and conditions. North East Water engaged the services of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE for 
the provision of training services and venue hire on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Ms. A. Telford is a member of the Board of the Benalla Performing Arts and Convention Centre which provided operational 
services, venue hire and sponsorship to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions.  
The Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE provided financing towards the operation of the Benalla Performing Arts and Convention 
Centre on normal commercial terms and conditions. The Benalla Performing Arts and Convention Centre engaged the services 
of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of catering services on normal commercial terms and conditions.

 Ì Mr. G. Cobbledick is a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the City of Greater Shepparton which provided operational 
services to the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions. The City of Greater Shepparton 
engaged the services of the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE for the provision of training services and venue hire on normal 
commercial terms and conditions. The City of Greater Shepparton provided activity sponsorship to the Goulburn Ovens 
Institute of TAFE on normal commercial terms and conditions.       
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Note 26

Related parties

key management personnel
Disclosures relating to directors and specified executives are set out in Note 25.

transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2013 
$’000

2012 
$’000

saLe of Goods aNd seRvICes

Training, venue hire and sponsorship  118  33 

Total sale of goods and services  118  33 

puRChase of Goods

Operational services  133  50 

Sponsorship and media advertising  24  25 

Internet services  28  28 

Contribution to operation activity  97  - 

Total purchase of goods  282  103

outstanding balances
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

CuRReNt ReCeIvaBLes (saLe of Goods aNd seRvICes)

Related parties  2 2

Total current receivables  2 2   

CuRReNt payaBLes (puRChases of Goods)

Related parties  94  2

Total current payables  94  2

No provision for doubtful debts has been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised in 
respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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Note 27

Institute details
 
The registered office of the Institute is:

Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE
Fryers Street, Shepparton, Victoria, Australia 3630

The principal place of business is:

Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE  
Fryers Street, Shepparton, Victoria, Australia 3630  

Note 28-1

Financial Instruments (Part I)
     

financial risk management     

i. Financial risk management objectives 

The Institute’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest 
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Institute’s overall financial risk 
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the financial performance of the Institute by adhering to appropriate business principles. Compliance with policies 
and procedure is reviewed by management on a continuous basis.  The Institute does not enter into or trade financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Institute uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include 
sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and other price risks, ageing analysis for credit risk and data analysis in 
respect of investment portfolios to determine market risk.

The Institute’s Finance Section co-ordinates access to financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to 
the operations of the Institute. These risks include market risk (including currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, 
financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in note 1 of the financial statements.    
 

ii. Financial risk exposures and management     

The Institute’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, short term 
investments, accounts receivables and payables and leases.

The main risks the Institute is exposed to through its financial instruments are market risk, foreign currency risk, price risk, 
funding risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
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iii. Categorisation of financial instruments     

Carrying amount of financial instruments by category:

Note Category
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

fINaNCIaL assets

Cash and deposits 5 Cash  12,226  5,997 

Receivables1 6 Loans & receivables  14,250  6,988 

Other financial assets - term deposits 7 Investments  26,515  18,241 

Total  52,991  31,226 

fINaNCIaL LIaBILItIes

Payables1 14 Financial liabilities  10,057  3,938 

Total  10,057  3,938 

Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category:

Note Category
2013 

$’000
2012 

$’000

fINaNCIaL assets

Receivables 4 Loans & receivables  -    (473)

Total  -    (473)

Note1 : Receivables and payables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables and statutory payables.

market risk
The Institute in its daily operations is exposed to a number of market risks. Market risks relate to the risk that market rates and 
prices will change and that this will have an adverse affect on the operating result and /or net worth of the Institute. e.g. an 
adverse movement in interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates.

The Board ensures that all market risk exposure is consistent with the Institute’s business strategy and within the risk tolerance 
of the Institute. Regular risk reports are presented to the Board.

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing market 
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

foreign currency risk     
The Institute is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies arising from the delivery of services in currencies other than 
AUD$. This risk is managed by natural hedging where possible.

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing foreign 
currency risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

price risk
The Institute is exposed to price risk in respect of fee for service and contract services which are subject open market 
competition.

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing price 
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
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Interest rate risk     

Interest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in interest rates to change the expected net interest earnings in the 
current reporting period and in future years. Similarly, interest rate risk also arises from the potential for a change in interest 
rates to cause a fluctuation in the fair value of the financial instruments.

The objective is to manage the rate risk to achieve stable and sustainable net interest earnings in the long term. This is 
managed predominately through a mixture of short term and longer term investments.     
  

funding risk    

Funding risk is the risk of over reliance on a funding source to the extent that a change in that funding source could impact on 
the operating result for the current year and future years.

The Institute manages funding risk by continuing to diversify and increase funding from Commercial activities, both 
domestically and off shore.

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing funding 
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Concentrations of credit risk     
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised 
financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet 
and notes to the financial statements.

There are no amounts of collateral held as security at 31 December 2013.

Credit risk is managed on an Institute-wide basis and reviewed regularly by the Institute Board.  It arises from exposures to 
customers as well as through deposits with financial institutions.  The Institute monitors credit risk by actively assessing the 
rating quality and liquidity of counter parties:     

 Ì only banks and financial institutions with an ‘A’ rating are utilised;    

 Ì all potential customers are rated for credit worthiness taking into account their size, market position and financial standing;

 Ì customers that do not meet the Institute’s strict credit policies may only purchase in cash or using recognised credit cards.

The Institute does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under financial 
instruments entered into by the Institute.     

The trade receivables balance at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 do not include any counter parties with external 
credit ratings. Customers are assessed for credit worthiness using the criteria detailed above.   

The Institute minimises credit risk in relation to student loans receivable by direct debit agreements entered into with students 
who are unable to pay fees at the time of enrolment. 

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing funding 
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

 

Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Institute’s governing body, which has built an appropriate 
policy for the investment of liquid assets.  The Institute manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking 
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and 
liabilities.

There has been no significant change in the Institute’s exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity 
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.    
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Note 28-2

Financial Instruments (Part II)
     

summarised sensitivity analysis
The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Institute’s financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate 
risk. 

Carrying 
Amount

Interest Rate Risk

31 December 2013 -1% +1%

Result Equity Result Equity

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and deposits  12,226  (122)  (122)  122  122 

Recievables1  14,250  -    -    -    -   

Other financial assets - term deposits  26,515  (265)  (265)  265  265 

Total increase/ (decrease) in financial assets  52,991  (387)  (387)  387  387 

LIABILITIES

Payables1  10,057  -    -    -    -   

Total increase/ (decrease) in financial liabilities  10,057  -    -    -    -   

Total increase / (decrease)  63,048  (387)  (387)  387  387 

Carrying 
Amount

Interest Rate Risk

31 December 2012 -1% +1%

Result Equity Result Equity

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  5,997  (60)  (60)  60  60 

Receivables1  6,988  -    -    -    -   

Other financial assets - term deposits  18,241  (182)  (182)  182  182 

Total increase/ (decrease) in financial assets  31,226  (242)  (242)  242  242 

LIABILITIES

Payables1  3,938  -    -    -    -   

Total increase/ (decrease) in financial liabilities  3,938  -    -    -    -   

Total increase / (decrease)  35,164  (242)  (242)  242  242 

Note1 : Receivables and payables disclosed here as financial instruments exclude statutory receivable and statutory payables.
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Note 28-3

Financial Instruments (Part III)
     

financial instrument composition and interest rate exposure
The tables below reflect the un-discounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments of a fixed period of maturity, 
as well as management’s expectations of the settlement period for all other financial instruments. As such, the amounts may 
not reconcile to the balance sheet.      

Exposure to interest rate risk is insignificant and may arise primarily through the Institute’s investments. Minimisation of risk 
is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non interest bearing financial instruments.  The Institute’s exposure to interest 
rate risk is set out below.

2013

Weighted 
average 

effective rate

Total Carrying 
Amount per 

Balance Sheet
Floating 

interest rate
Fixed interest 

rate
Non-Interest

Bearing

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and deposits

Cash at bank and on hand 2.80%  12,226  12,221  -    5 

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables  -   3,489  -    -   3,489   

Revenue receivables  -    11,338  -    -   11,338

Investment, loans and other financial assets

Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits 3.88%  26,515  -    26,515  -   

Total financial assets  53,568  12,221  26,515  14,832 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Contractual liabilities

Trade and other payables  -    10,057  -    -   10,057   

Total financial liabilities  10,057  -    -    10,057

2012

Weighted 
average 

effective rate

Total Carrying 
Amount per 

Balance Sheet
Floating 

interest rate
Fixed interest 

rate
Non-Interest

Bearing

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and deposits

Cash at bank and on hand 3.53% 5,997 5,992 - 5

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables - 2,252 - - 2,252

Revenue receivables - 5,313 - - 5,313

Investment, loans and other financial assets

Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits 4.41% 18,241 - 18,241 -

Total financial assets 31,803 5,992 18,241 7,570

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Contractual liabilities

Trade and other payables - 3,938 - - 3,938

Total financial liabilities - 3,938 - - 3,938



Notes to the fINaNCIaL statemeNts  |    49

ageing analysis of financial assets
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, 
and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for 
the Institute’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

2013

Carrying
amount

Not past
due 

and not 
impaired

Maturity dates
Impaired
financial 

assets
Less than
1 month

1-3 
months

3 months
- 1 year 1-5 years

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables  3,489  109  721  1,479  559  44  577 

Revenue receivables  11,338  11,338  -    -    -    -    -   

Investment, loans and other 
financial assets

Fixed interest bearing bills, 
bonds/term deposits

 26,515  -    9,372  14,033  3,110  -    -   

Total contractual assets  41,342  11,447  10,093  15,512  3,669  44  577 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Contractual liabilities

Trade and other payables  10,057  9,882  170  5  -    -   -

Total contractual liabilities  10,057  9,882  170  5  -    -   -

2012

Carrying
amount

Not past
due 

and not 
impaired

Maturity dates
Impaired
financial 

assets
Less than
1 month

1-3 
months

3 months
- 1 year 1-5 years

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables  2,252  1,066  396  161  35  17  577 

Revenue receivables  5,313  5,313  -    -    -    -    -   

Investment, loans and other 
financial assets

Fixed interest bearing bills, 
bonds/term deposits

 18,241  -    13,490  4,751  -    -    -   

Total contractual assets  25,806  6,379  13,886  4,912  35  17  577 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Contractual liabilities

Trade and other payables  3,938  3,774  152  3  9  -    -   

Total contractual liabilities  3,938  3,774  152  3  9  -    -   
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Note 28-4

Financial Instruments (Part IV)
     

fair value estimation 
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure 
purposes.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair 
values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is 
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Institute 
for similar financial instruments.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value and 
based on credit history it is expected that the receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will be received when due.

For other assets and other liabilities the fair value approximates their carrying value. Financial assets where the carrying 
amount exceeds fair values have not been written down as the Institute intends to hold these assets to maturity.

The carrying amounts and aggregate net fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:

2013 2012

28 Financial instruments

Carrying
Amount

$’000

Net Fair
Value
$’000

Carrying
Amount

$’000

Net Fair
Value
$’000

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 12,226 12,226  5,997  5,997 

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables 2,912 2,912  1,891  1,891 

Revenue receivables 11,338 11,338  5,097  5,097 

Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits 26,515 26,515  18,241    18,241   

Total financial assets 52,991 52,991  31,226  31,226 

Financial liabilities

Payables 10,057 10,057  3,938  3,938 

Total financial liabilities 10,057 10,057  3,938  3,938 
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The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair 
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.     
   

 Ì Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.       

 Ì Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

 Ì Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that 
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).       

       
Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet are categorised into the following levels:    
   

 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3

28 Financial instruments

2013

$’000

Quoted  
Prices 

$‘000

Observable  
Price Inputs 

$‘000

Un-
observable  

Inputs 
$‘000

FINANCIAL ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand  12,226 12,226 - -

Contractual receivables       

Trade receivables 2,912 - 2,912 -

Revenue receivables 11,338   -   11,338  -   

Investments, loans and other financial assets

Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits 26,515  26,515 -  -   

Total financial assets 52,991 38,741 14,250 -

Financial liabilities        

Payables 10,057 - 10,057 -

Total financial liabilities  10,057 - 10,057 -

 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3

28 Financial instruments

2012

$’000

Quoted  
Prices 

$‘000

Observable  
Price Inputs 

$‘000

Un-
observable  

Inputs 
$‘000

FINANCIAL ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand  5,997  5,997  -    -   

Contractual receivables

Trade receivables 1,891 - 1,891 -

Investments, loans and other financial assets

Revenue receivables 5,097   -    5,097  -   

Fixed interest bearing bills, bonds/term deposits 18,241 18,241  -  -   

Total financial assets 31,226 24,238 6,988 -

Financial liabilities        

Payables 3,938 - 3,938 -

Total financial liabilities  3,938 - 3,938 -
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Note 29

Ex-gratia Payments
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Ex-gratia payments - 19

Total ex-gratia payments - 19

The ex-gratia payment in 2012 was in relation to employee retirement.
This disclosure is made in accordance with the requirements of Financial Reporting Direction 22 of the State Government of Victoria.



gotafe.vic.edu.au
1300 GOTAFE (1300 468 233)


	GOTAFE 2013 Annual Report Cover Front_WEB
	GOTAFE 2013 Annual Report Content_WEB
	GOTAFE 2013 Annual Report Cover Back_WEB
	2013 Financial Report Cover Front_WEB
	GOTAFE 2013 Financial Report Content_WEB
	2013 Financial Report Cover Back_WEB

